MOUNT CARMEL

H plice 76 pul dowit 4cal
Vd Vad

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING AGENDA

10.

11.

September 25, 2025 - 5:30 P.M.
City Hall, 100 Main Street E.

Call to Order
Invocation/Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Welcome from the Mayor

Approval and/or Correction of the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Meeting dated August
28, 2025, monthly financial report, and department reports.

Visitors’ Comments:

Old Business:
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: WWTP Improvements Phase 1B- Bids and Budget
B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-658- Amendment to Personnel Policies and
Procedures

New Business:
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-659- Annual Performance Review of Town
Administrator/Manger and Modification of Employment Agreement
B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Memorandum of Understanding between BAE Systems and Town
of Mount Carmel, TN Fire Department
C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Surplus of Fire Department Vehicle

Board Comments: Mayor, Vice-Mayor, Aldermen, Staff Comments: City Manager, Asst. City Manager,
City Attorney

Adjourn



MOUNT CARMEL

A place 7e putiewn 400l
Yt Vad

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee Board of Mayor and Aldermen
was held at Town of Mount Carme! City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on August 28, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER
5:30 pm by Mayor John Gibson

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Vice-Mayor Bare and Alderman Binstock

ROLL CALL:
BMA Present | Absent City Administration Present
Alderman Darby Patrick v Jim Stables, City Manager
Alderman James Cross v Allen Coup, City Attorney
Alderman Mindy Shugart v Tyler Williams, Asst. City Manager/CFO/Recorder

Alderman Philip Binstock
Alderman Jim Gilliam
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare
Mayor John Gibson

ANRNANAN

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR
Mayor Gibson welcomed everyone

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITON
Carl Calton for 30 years of service in Public Works (August 30, 1995)

APPROVAL and/or correction of the July 24, 2025, Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting
minutes, departmental and financial reports.

Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare

Second: Alderman Cross

Approved: All present voting in favor

VISITOR COMMENTS
Lynne Binstock- thanked the BMA for working to address speeding issues.



OLD BUSINESS
A. SECOND READING: Ordinance 25-542: Municipal Court Costs

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman Jim Gilliam v
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare v
Mayor John Gibson v
NEW BUSINESS

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Amendment to Personnel Policies and Procedures (Rev.
2025). Regarding holidays, replace Juneteenth with National Election Day.

Motion: Alderman Gilliam
Second: Alderman Cross

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman Jim Gilliam v
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare v
Mayor John Gibson v

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-655 Fees, Fines, Rates, & Costs

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent
Alderman Philip Binstock v




Alderman Jim Gilliam

v
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare v
Mayor John Gibson v

. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-656 Participation in Public Entity Partners
Property Conservation Grant

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

RN I

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIRANIANIRN

Mayor John Gibson

. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-657 Participation in National Opioid
Settlement

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

NN

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANIANEN

Mayor John Gibson

. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Acceptance of Bid for FY26 Street Paving- Glass
Machinery & Excavation, Inc.

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman James Cross v




Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANEANRN

Mayor John Gibson

F. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Acceptance of Bid for Fire/Police Parking Lot Paving-
Watts Paving & Maintenance, Inc.

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

AN

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart Absent

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANERNIRNIRAN

Mayor John Gibson

G. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Acceptance of Bid for WWTP Improvements Phase 1B-
Morgan Contracting, Inc.

ltem withdrawn from agenda due to bid being over budget.

ADJOURN
Motion: Alderman Binstock at 6:19 P.M.
Second: Vice-Mayor Bare
Approved: All present voting in favor

Approve:

John Gibson, Mayor
Attest:

Tyler Williams, City Recorder



GENERAL FUND:

MOUNT CARMEL

K petaic Lo gl Logire el

FINANCIAL REPORT

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TN

Month ending 08/31/2025

Checking Account (First Horizon)

LGIP Investment Account

Capital Outlay Savings (First Horizon)

TOTAL:

DRUG FUND:

Drug Fund Checking (First Horizon)

Special Drug Fund (First Horizon)

TOTAL:

SEWER FUND:

Checking Account (First Horizon)

Savings/Bond Reserve 2014 (First Horizon)

Savings/Sewer Savings 2014 (First Horizon)

LGIP Investment Account

TOTAL:

BALANCE:

$563,480.44

$6,500,748.98

$101,667.01

$7,165,896.43

BALANCE:

$15,615.11

$0.00

$15,615.11

BALANCE:

$780,961.50

$106,419.45

$35,097.58

$502,637.09

$1,425,115.62

GRAND TOTAL CASH ON HAND:

Current Savings Rate: 3.20%
Current LGIP Rate: 4.27%

$8,606,627.16



%298 ST0TZ'th (58'68/9) (19'st9°¢) 0000008 3500 puy saul4 1nod A 0T1S€
%00°00T 00°05 000 00°0 000§ S82|AIBS 04 S3B.1RYD - [03U0D JeWIUY 0TSbE
%00°00T 00°008 00°0 00°0 00°008 334 NOLLVLID 13)01L 3 (174373
%00"00T 00°000°€E 00'0 000 00°000'€E Poenuo) AemybiH 3e3s 0TEPE
%00°005- (00°005‘0) (00°000°€) 000 007008 aNUBAY JuaHedad 201j0d TeLeg
%00°00T 00°000°0T 000 000 00°000°0T anuaAay Juawpedsq il 0z/E€
%00°00T 00°00S 00'0 000 00°00S suoneuoqd Areigr 6TLEE
%00°00T 00°000's 000 00°0 00°000's Auno) woy yuern T1LE€
%00"00T 0070000 000 000 00700002 SJUSWILISA0H AJuUnoD WO sjueln 0TLE€
%S5°2/L 80'552Z (¢6'v1L'D) (26'v0L'D) 00'000°01 Bumagsyods 265€€
%00°00T 00°000'89 000 00°0 00°000'89 SXe_JO N3l Ul SuaWAed BAL 165¢€
%TT 08 T$'500°7 (6S'v61) (se'er0) 00°005C uofjezju1opoly uojeodsuell 865€€
%€6°28 6T'P1S'TE (18'58b'9) (szert’e) 00°000'8¢ Xg| aujjoses) d)els [457%3
%€9'78 97°658'€ET (b2vb1'80) (b6°659°€T) 00000291 BNUAARY PlY 123115 93BIS 165€€
%00°001 00°00b'C 000 00°0 00°00t'C Xe} joog 2035 0£SE€
%128 SE'b08'295 (s9's61'TZT) (¥6°012'09) 00°000'689 xe| sojes Sjels 01S€€
%b0'16 PIH0T'6 (98'568) (98'568) 00°000°0T TZ-02Ad ALTIGVSIA IH OSHD 6TrEE
%00°00T 00'000°002 00°0 000 00°000'002 ANVYID 2dd7 31V1S X423
%00°00T 00'008' 00°0 000 00°008'% Aed Jusws|ddns =3€15 0TbES
%0€£'€8 0S°€b2'81 (05'95£'€) (52'8£8'T) 0000522 }RNUO) (€IS0d 161£€
%00'00T 00'000°0€T 00°0 000 00°0000€T ANU3AY JuelS JWOH 06TE€E
%00°00T 00°0000T2 000 000 00'000°0T2 jueID) UoRebIW plezeH YiNad ozIEe
%00°00T 0000002 00°0 000 00°000'02h sjuein Juswdofpasg Ajunwwio) 01TEE
%0E'Sb §5°058'¢ (sb'609'p) (0T'sb8'T) 00°00S'8 s)wRd Bulpping 0T9Z€
%0005 007052 (00'052) 00°0 00°005 s3sudI abelvAsg JoYodlY 00zee
%LY'6L 89°'6/9'/¥ (zeroze'en) (zeroze'en) 00'000'09 Xe|_ asiyouel] Al 3|qeD [413 83
%61°98 60'b0VLt (16'565"7) (bL'L0L's) 00700055 Xe| 123g 3[esa|oym 0T/1€
%9¢'G8 66'7£8'789 (tozet’s1n) (05°216°65) 00°000'008 Xe] S9[es (2307 0191¢
%LS5°26 00'0b2's (00°092) (00°88) 00°00S°€ xe| doid UQ 3500 HN0D puy ‘Is319)u] 00€TE
%00°00T 00°000°0% 00'0 000 00°000°0% (s1ea) Jold) saxe| Auadold 00Z1€
%TT'66 €0°T9T'0€5'T (£6'86'TT) (£6'888'8) 00°0p12hS’T (sunD) sexel Auadoid 0011€
pazijeadun % pazijealun pazijeay AlA pazijeay LW pajewnsy [ejol

%/9'9T aApeledwo) Apuoy pun4 |e1aua9 OTT :pung
P Jo T abed SZ0¢ 1snbny

INd 8T:ZT §20Z/61/6 sl /ajeq A1) - sanuaAady Jo Juswalels 291 :Aq pajeald

SWBI||IM J3JAL

|owLie?) JUNO JO UMO]

SONUDADY JO JUSWRleIs Do :awepN azejdwa)



%bET6 16'€8€'065Y (60"952'08€) (05°z£5°66T) 00°0vT'1L6'Y OTIT :pund.od|ejol
%66'18 688811 (51°'192) (8LL21) 000SH'T 3NUDASY SUOREDIUNWILOIBRL 1669¢
%0196 0T'Sbe'eh (06'%52'T) (89'+1H) 00°000'SP SPNUABY SNOBUR|[BDSHIA 0669¢
196png oN (00S) (00°tS) (00'¥S) 000 juswdinb3 Jo sfes 0££9¢
%bT E8 2E°L0L'6be (89'¢62'05) (25'126'v0) 00°000'00€ sBuiuley 3sa.euf 0019€
%00°00T 000001 00°0 00'0 00°000'T SIS0 puy Sauld HnoD) Auno) 0916¢
%81°L6 2962 (8£'¢04) (b2'66€) 00°000'sZ JusLuRDI04ug paads 0joUd XeupaYy [44513
pazijeayun % pozijealun pazijeay dlA pazijeay Al pejewnsy jejoL

%/9°91

aapesedwo) Ajyjuopy

pund [e13ua0) OTT :pund

 Jo 7 obey

Wd 81:2T S202/61/6

SWel|[1p JIIAL

owiL /ajeq

§20z 3snbny
A1) - sanuanay jo Juswajels
[oWw.e) JUNoy JO UMOL

291 :Aq pajeatd

SINUDARY JO JusWalels Do :oweN ajejdwa)



LCT :pund .o |ejol
suonnquiuo) bnig 00¢SE
saul4 pajeRy bnig orise

pazijeayun % pazijeay ALA pozijeay ALW pajewns |ejoL

aaneiedwo) Ajyauop

punj 6rug  £ZT :pund

ST0T Isnbny
A1) - senuaAdy Jo JuswAels
|sunE) JUNO JO UMOL

IWd 8T:2T 5¢02/61/6

291 :Aq pajess)
S3NUBASY JO Juswalels Do awepN ajejdwa]



%Lb"T6 61°£96'8YLT (1s'zeL’cTe) (€€'SET'PIT) 00'00£2£6'T TTP :pund.od |ejol
%00°0S€- (00'05¢€) (00"0S¥) (00"0S%) 00001 Jamas - SNoBUR|[EISI 662.¢E
%00°00T 00°000°07 00'0 00°0 00°'000°0T s394 del 1omas 9624€
%00°00T 00°058'829'T 000 000 00°058'829'T vdyv S6TLE
%S’ TE 09'Sb6 (0v'¥50'0) (00°680'T) 00°000'€ s994 Bupunodoy ¥62LE
%65'€8 #1'666'880'T (95°¥62'€12) (95°0£8'80T) 00°0S£'20€'T sabiey) S0IAIRS JamMag 012LE
%lEEL §b'925°02 (§S'€L¥'2) (LLse's) 0000082 sBujuies 3sasRu] 0019€
pezijeayun % pazijealun pazijeay AlA pozijeay ALW pajewys3 jejoL

%/9°91 aaneledwo) Ajyuop punj Jamag TIb i pund
t 4o 1 obed SZ0z I1snbny

Wd 81:2T 5202/61/6

swiel[jip J9lAL

il /ajeq

31D - sonuaAdy Jo JuswAle}S
[owIe) JUNOY JO UMOL

291 :Aq pajeas)

SONUIADY 1O JUSWSIEIS DO :oweN ajejdwa)l



000 00°0 000 BWWO) JO Joquiey) 0D supme
00°0 %00°0 (00°005'2) 000 (00°005'D) (00005'2) veL
00'0 000 00°0 uoneuoq suszpp) JOUdS
0070 %000 (00°000°€€) 000 (00°000°€€) (00'000°€€) x4
00°0 000 000 Aouaby aounosey uewny N1 1S4
0070 %000 (00'005'0) 0070 (00'005'0) (000050 wL
00°0 00'0 00°0 PLISI awdopAIq UL IS
00'S€9'T %LSp (00'szT'vE) 00°S€9'T (00'09£'s€) (00°092's€) 0zs
00°0 000 000 sebJey) S0IAISS sueq
16'¥8¢'T %9£'91 (6v'58b'21) 1Sp15°¢ (00°000'ST) (00'000'ST) 169
0070 000 000 s)s07) |esielddesy
00'0 %00'0 (00°000'6) 000 (00°000°6) (00'000°6) 165
00’0 000 000 20uURINSUL
000 %Sb°88 (00°THb'vT) 00'655'0TT (00"000's2T) (00 000's2T1) 1S
00'0 000 00°0 SSDIAISS UOREDIUNWILIOD J3Y)0 puy suoydsfar
90°8¢T %0b"9 (b6'1/8'T) 90°8¢T (0070000 (00°000'0) S¥T
000 00'0 00°0 samn
82°09b'T %IT'8 (2L6€5'91) 8C°09b'T (00'000°8T) (00°000'8T) 0be
000 000 00'0 uonepRy 2iqnd
00'0 %ET'8b (00°525"p1) 00'SZY'ET (00°000'87) (00"000'82) 9eT
00°0 000 00°0 sang
00'8/€'€ %L0°SL (oo'zz1'n) 00°8/¢’E (00°005'%) (00°005"t) 144
00'0 000 00°0 JoAely puy uewIBplY JO S84
S£°806 %T9'T (og'egz’en) 0£'992'1 (00°000'p1) (00'000°+T) 191
000 000 00°0 @ouelnsu] JuswAoldwaun
00'§ 396png oN 00°0T 00°0T 00°0 000 yigs
00°0 000 000 (teys s, odojdw) 1seQ
8'69 196png oN ST'SET GT'GET 00°0 000 271
JUSWUIDAO0N [eldulds 000TH
douesquunouyg pasn % a|qe|ieAy spung seduesqunIugz 19bpng {ejo) sjuswpuswy w3(q0 J9jua) pelqo
Jrenyy [seinupuadx3 /326png jeuiblo qns 350D
alwW alA

%/9°9T rdAneledwo) Ajyjuol G S
97 Jo T abey §20¢ ¥shbny
IWd 02:2T S5¢02/61/6 2wl /a3eq saduequindug pue sainypuadx3 Jo Juswlels 91 :Aq pajeas)
SWwel||Ipm 1AL 113sM) jouwIe) JUNO JO UMO]

aunyipuadxg Jo Juswelels Do raweN ajejdway



00'0 000 000 S3DIIBS GIM
00°0 %000 (00'0b1°E) 000 (00'ov1'e) (0o0'ov1e) L12
000 00°0 00°0 SSDIAIBS JBULBIU]
$6°081 %e6°ET (90'611°T) ¥6°08T (00"00€'T) (00'00£'1) 912
00°0 00°0 000 JoAely puy URWLISP]Y JO S394
0070 196png oN 00051 00°0ST 00°0 00'0 191
00'0 000 00'0 Buiurel] puy uoneonpy aa4o[dwz
00°S.L %LO0'TT (00'sz2'9) 00'SZ/ (00"0002) (00°0002) 8b1
00°0 000 00'0 aoueinsuy Juawiojdwaun
8b'9¢ %5681 (z8'92%) 81°ceT (00°059) (00°059) b1
00°0 000 000 uopesuadwo)) S,USW oM
0070 %00"00T 000 00°005'Z (00°005'2) (00°005'2) 91
00'0 00°0 00'0 ueld Juswalnay a3iojdwa
£9'289'1 %89'81 (85°2£9'pT) Sb79e’e (00 000°8T) (00"000°81) 348
00°0 000 000 soueInsu] a’kojdwg
S8'6bb'y %89°07 (10°815'8€) 66°150°01 (00°009'8t) (00°009'8t) W
000 0070 000 (a1eys sJahojdws) 150
€S THL'T %9T b1 (Tr'est'od) 88/t (00°00¢'v0) (00°002'v2) b1
00°0 000 00°0 snuog SewisHy)
000 %000 (00°009'27) 000 (00°0097) (00'009'7) pET
00°0 00°0 000 sabem
§6°669'HT %EP'ST (£082+'0£7) €6'T2E'6b (00°052'61€) (00°05£'61€) 121
uonensWpY |epueuly  00STH
00'0 000 000 uawdinbgy
G6'€68'L %/S'1E (§¥°901'2T) S6°€68/ (00°000'52) (00'000's2) ob6
00°0 000 000 JURIS) SWOH
000 %00°0 (00°0000€T) 00°0 (00'000°0€T) (0o0'000°0€T) 06/
000 000 00°0 Q3IWAIY
00°0ST %B8E"6 (00°0sb'T) 00°0ST (00°009'1) (00°009'T) 9zL
Idueiqunoug Posn % ajqejieAy spung saouUeIquInoug yobpng Jejol sjudWpuawy 199{q0 J83ua) Pa{qo
/1emdy /seimyupuadx3 /¥ebpng jewibuo qns 150D
ainW alA

%79'9T :aAneledwon) AlYuoly OIT :pung
9T 4o ¢ abed §Z0z Isnbny
IWd 02:2T S§202/61/6 owil /ajeq sadueIquINduz pue sainypuadx3 Jo Jusalels 291 :Aq pajeasd
SWBI||IM JBIAL asn owle) JUnop Jo Umojl

aJnyipuadxg Jo Juswalels Do :ewepN ajejdwa]



000 00'0 000 snoauej[adsiiy
08'pLT %L£8'8 (£6'001') £0°66€ (00'005"b) (00'005'Y) 6Lt
000 000 00'0 saljddns samog Asuid
L97€8E %btLT (€€'918'T) L9°€8¢€ (00'002'0) (00°002'2) [42%3
000 000 00°0 abeysod puy sanddng 2010
1129t %0C'LT (68'££0°2) 1T°29%'T (00"005'8) (00"005'8) 01€
000 000 00'0 334 UOISSILIWOD
0Z'19¢ %Sb'v1 (08'81'0) 02'19¢ (00°005'2) (00°005'2) 86
00°0 000 000 [PARIL
000 %9€°9 (b6'220'2) 90°LLY (00'005°2) (00°005°2) 08z
00°0 00°'0 00°0 sBuiping soueuajuiely puy Jleday
00'652'1 %62°€C (00°20s'11) 00°€6b'E (00'000'ST) (00°000'ST) 992
000 000 00°0 seolateg buluoz puy Bujuueld
00°€22'91 %00'00T 000 00°€72'9T (00'cze’ot) (0o0'€zz’ot1) VA4
000 00'0 00°0 poddng alemyjos/aiempleH Jandwo)
8/'1¢ %C8'8h (z8'6b'6T) 81°055'8T (00°000°8¢) (00°0008€) 174
000 000 00°0 saa4 Bupipny puy Bununoy
00°062'C %989 (00°216'TH) 00°880°¢€ (00"000'st) (00'000°5H) €92
000 000 000 SRS [eba
0S'G/6'T %b9'S (0s'pT0'es) 05'S/6'T (00°000's€) (00°000°s€) 474
00°0 000 000 SIDIAISS |EDIPA
00°0S %00°6¢ (00'0ST) 00°0S (00°002) (00'002) 152
00°0 000 00°0 abpnr Ao
0000k %£9°9T (00°000'%) 00'008 (00°008'%) (00"008'%) 052
00°0 000 000 BuisIoApY
00°669 %0EET (00'10£0) 00°669 (00°000°€) (00°000°¢) LET
0070 000 000 uoneRy dliqnd
9b°bT8 %691 (bS'SLT'D) 98 (00°000°5) (00°000°S) 92
0070 000 000 seng
00°05¢ %b6'C (00"052'8) 00°0S¢ (00°005'8) (00°005'8) SET
aoduesqunduzy pasn % ajqejieay spung saduelquindug jebpng JejoL sjusawpuawy wa(qo l83ud) P°[qo
/1enoy /seimyipuadx3 /36png JeulbliQ qns 150D
dln dlA

%£9°9T raAeledwo) Ajyjuol OIT  puny
97 Jo € bed ST0z Isnbny
IWd 02:2T §202/6T/6 :awi) /ejeq seduelquinduz pue sainjpuadxy Jo Juswajels 91 iAq pageasd
SWel|Ip JSJAL HELY,) jawe) Junop Jo umol ain)ipuadx3 Jo juswialels Do

:awep ajejdwa]



00°0 00'0 000 woo3
00'0 %000 (00"00+'T) 000 (00'00v'T) (00°00%'T) 612
00°0 000 00°0 S3OIAIRS JRUIRIU]
96'6ST %0091 (b0"0p8) 96'65T (00"000'T) (00'000°'T) 912
0070 0070 000 Buurey) puy uonesnp3 ssAoldwy
0¥'98¢ %80T (09€T1T'91) 0v'988'1 (00'000°8T) (00'000°8T) 8b1
000 000 00°0 2ouelnsuT JuswAojdwaun
9b'vE %98 (62'95%) 1Ter (00°008) (00°00%) b1
000 000 00'0 uoijesuaduio) s,UsUBHop
000 %812, (00'6£€'€) 00°T99'8 (00"000°¢T) (00°000°2T) 9T
0070 000 000 Ueld JusSWa.nay sakojdwi3
69'b81'Z %8b'ST (0s'25€'sD) 05'7H9'y (00'000°05) (00'000°0€) b1
00°0 00'0 00'0 aoueinsut aaAojdwg
9e'bbl's %E9'5T (89'6¥£'60) 2E'0S'0T (00"000°0) (00°000°0b) Wl
00°0 000 00°0 (Sueys s 2holdwz) 1520
68'v61'C %L9'bT (16'05v°92) 60°6v5'y (00'000°T€) (00°0001€) w1
00°0 000 00'0 snuog Seunsuy)
0070 %000 (00"00£'€) 0070 (00"00£'€) (00'00£'€) PET
00'0 000 000 Sobep SWIRAQ
69°655'C %/ 0E (86'158°cT) 20819 (00°000°02) (00°000'02) [44!
000 000 00'0 sebem
9€'520'8¢ %9L°ET (bS'€56'29¢) 9b'9b8'/S (00°00t'02P) (00'00v'02b) 121
juswpedag adljod 00T
000 000 000 juswdinb3/poddns/iendwo) maN
00°0 %00'0 (00°000°s) 000 (00°000's) (00°000°s) LY6
00'0 000 000 uswdinbg
00°0 %000 (00'000'%) 000 (00'000'%) (00°000'%) 0b6
00°0 000 00°0 Jaido) asea bupessdo
L¥'C8 %/LL'0T (SH'8€€'T) SS'T9T (00°00S'T) (00°005'T) S79
QdueIqundugz Posn % a|qejieAy spung saduelquinoul 3obpng |ej0L sjuawpuswy Pelqo J9jud) Pfqo
/1eny [seimypuadxy /3e6png jeuiblQ qns 150D
dii dlA

%/9°9T :aAiesedwo)) AlYJuo OTT : pund
97T 4o ¢ dbed ST0T Isnbny
Wd 02:2T 520¢/61/6 iowiL /e3eq sedueIquInoul pue sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswajels $OT :Aq pajeasd
SWweljim 9IAL 39S [owe) JUNo JO UMO]

ainpuadxg Jo Juswielels Do awep ajejdway



00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg olpey
000 %000 (00'000'T) 000 (00°000'T) (00°000°T) o€
00'0 000 00°0 asuadx3 on4
6€'S€L'C %89°ET (19'49221) 6€'SEL'T (00°000°02) (00°000'02) £33
00°0 000 00°0 asuadxg bunessdo spIysA
92047 %1L'6 (vezL822) 99'/Th'C (00"000'52) (00°000'52) 0€e
00'0 000 000 Sar1ddNS L3XOLL-3
00°0 %00°0 (00°008) 00°0 (00°008) (00°008) 62€
000 000 00°0 suuoyun puy Bulyion
§9°04¢ %86'Gh (£6'0£v"0) £0'690'C (00'005p) (00'005'%) T4
00°0 00°0 000 S1S3A Jo0ud 19]Ing
000 %00'0 (00's24'€) 000 (00's22'€) (00's24'E) See
00'0 00'0 00°0 sajddng bunelado
£6'S.¢ %9.'C (Loves's) €6'5.¢C (00"000°01) (00°000°0T) 0ze
000 00°0 00°0 abeisod puy sanddns o0
21°09€ %006 (88'6£9'¢) T1°09€ (00'000'%) (00°000'%) 01€
00°0 000 00°0 SIVIAIBS [enPRIIU0D
000 %000 (00"00€'2) 0070 (00"00€') (00'00£'2) 062
000 000 00°0 [eARLL
00°0 %000 (00"00s'2) 00°0 (0070057 (00°005°2) 08¢
00°0 00°0 000 sBuipjing soueusjulely puy Jleday
00°0 %000 (00°000°S) 000 (00°000°s) (00°000°S) 997
000 000 00°0 Hoddng alemyos/aiempieH Jandwo)
00°0 %00°69 (00°005°€) 000059 (00'000°01) (00'000°0T) 174
00°0 00°0 000 SSOIAIDS |EDIPRI
00°S9T %0S°L¢C (00'sep) 00591 (00"009) (00'009) 15¢
000 000 000 SEDIAISS UOHEDIUNWIWOY) J3YI0 puUy auoyds|al
7028 %89'8 (8°64b'S) 7,025 (00°000'9) (00°000'9) SHT
00°0 00'0 00°'0 seng
00092 %£9°'98 (00'0b) 00°09¢ (00"00€) (00°00€) SET
Jdueiqunougz pasn % ajqejleAy spung s9ouRIqUINDUT jo6png |ejol sjuswipuawy P3(q0 1ud) paiqo
/1enmpy [seamyipuadx3 /3e6png JewibLO qns 150D
ali dlA

%£9°91 :2Aneledwo) Ajyiuol OTT : puny
9T Jo G afeq §20z Isnbny
IWd 02:2T 5202/61/6 :awiL/aeq saduelqunoug pue sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswales 91 :Aq pajeald
SWel||IMm J3JAL HELT)] Jowie) JUNOY JO UMO]

a.njipuadxd Jo Juswalels D91 awepN ajejdwal



00°0 000 000 sang
00'set %00°ST (00's£€) 00°SZT (00°00%) (00°008) SET
00°0 000 000 Bujuely puy uonednpy sakojdwy
00°0ET %E9'T (00°0£8'2) 00°0€T (00'000'8) (00'000'8) i
000 00°0 00°0 9oue.Insut Juawiojdwsun
€81 %T0'6 (26°€9¢) 80°9€ (00°00t) (00°00%) Vi
00°0 00°0 00'0 uoijesuadulo?) S,USWNIOM
00°0 %00°00T 0070 007002’ (00"002'E) (00'002'€) W1
00'0 00°0 000 ue|d JuaWaIRay dvAojdwl
20'STH %€E6°S (L¥'248'6) £5°229 (00°005°0T) (00'005'0T) ev1
000 00°0 00°0 2oueInsu] aakojdw
0z’ 396png oN 0Z'sk 0z'sk 00°0 00'0 42
00°0 000 00'0 (s1eys s 940jdw3) IsEQ
59'2/9 %b6'TT (€1'851'6) L8'THC'T (00'00%"0T) (00"00%'0T) i
000 000 00°0 snuog sewiskiy)
000 %000 (007006'1) 000 (00'006'T) (00°006'T) PeT
00'0 00'0 00'0 sabem
08'978'8 %€E0°CT (¢z'206'81T) 84/ST7'9T (00°091's€T) (00'091°5€T) 121
wswMedaq adld  00ZTH
0070 000 000 juswdinbg
000 %000 (00"000°0%T) 000 (00°000°0¥T) (00°000°0%T) 0v6
00°0 000 000 1Z-0Z A4 INVID ALTTIGISIA TH OSHL
000 %00°0 (00°000°0T) 00°0 (00"000°0T) (00"000°0T) S0L
00'0 000 000 Jaidop aseay bunesado
S6'95 %L0°TT (62°688) 12011 (00'000'T) (00'000'T) S29
000 000 000 sabieyd Majes 4o 1daq
PE'STY %LT'ST (16'1$5'D) 60°'85b (00°000°€) (00°000°¢) 095
000 000 000 SNoUe|[RISIN
00°08¢ %EE'SE (00'026) 00°0€S (00°005'T) (00°005'1) 6/
adueIquIndug pasn % ajqejieAy spunj seouRIqUINOU] jabpng |eloL sjusaWpudWy P3lqo J2jud) P2[q0
/1enpy /sainypuadx3 /3e6png Jeuiblio ans 150D
ain alA

%29°9T :aAnesedwo) Ajyiuoly OTT :puny
91 4o 9 obed ST0T Isnbny
Wd 0Z:2T §202/61/6 awiL/ajeq seduelqundug pue sainjipuadxy JO JUsWIAlElS 291 :Aq pajeasd
SWe||Ipm JSJAL asn jowe) Junopy Jo UMmoyl 2.n)puadxd Jo Juswalels D9

dweN ejdwal



000 000 000 3suadxg olpey
00°0 %000 (00'000's) 000 (00°000°S) (00'000°s) 9€e
00°0 00°0 00°0 asuadx3 |and
9b°26L %ITET (¥s'202'S) 9b'T6L (00'0009) (00'000°9) 1€€
00°0 000 000 asuadxg bunesado apPIYRA
seeer'e %101 (69°'2£8'92) sgzer's (00"000°0€) (00°000°0¢) 0€€
00°0 00°0 000 suuojun puy Bunpold
L6°69b %87 (86'91€D) SH'€89 (00°000°€) (00'000°€) 9z¢
000 0070 000 saliddns bunesado
#8°€€9 %ET'TT (91'99£'0) $8°€€9 (00'000°€) (00"000°€) 0ce
00'0 000 00'0 abeysod puy saljddns 230
§5'18 %9T1°8 (sb'816) G518 (00'000T) (00'000'T) 01€
00°0 00°0 00°'0 SIDIAIRG [ENPRIUOD
00°0 %00°0 (00°000'2) 000 (00°0000) (00°0007) 062
00°0 00°0 000 Bunsal eyso
000 %0070 (00'005°01) 000 (00'005°01) (00'005°0T) 182
00'0 000 00°'0 feAelf
000 %00'0 (00"000'T) 000 (00'000'T) (00"000'1) 08¢
00°0 00'0 000 s6uip|ing soueujulely puy Jledsy
79'1EV'9 %IS'LT (+0'566'2€) 96'400'Z (00°000°0%) (00"000°0t) 992
0070 00'0 00°0 poddng alemyos/aiempieH Jondwo)
[8'T8E'T %EL'0E (eT211'E) [8'T8E'T (00°005'%) (00°005'¥) 374
00°0 000 00°0 S3IAIDS |eDIPal
0070 %0005 (00°05) 00°0S (0o0'00T) (00°00T) 152
00°0 00°0 00°0 SBDIAIDS UOREDIUNWILIOD 4330 puy auoydapl
86°0 %zT'S (z0'652) 86'0b (00°008) (00°008) SHT
00°0 00°0 00°0 sam|uN
657259 %STL (T'24€'8) 657259 (00'000'6) (00"000°6) 1] 74
00'0 00°0 000 apeded/suoiieay dilqnd
000 %000 (00°000°S) 000 (00'000°s) (00°000'S) 82
aouelqunoug posn % a|qejieAy spund sauelqundug 1e6png |ejoL sjuswpusWwy »a(qo 193ud) P9[qo
/1lemoy /saanypuadxy /396png Jeuiblo qns 350D
diin alA

%£9°9T raAeleduio) Ajyiuoly G5 35U
97 4o /£ vbed $20z Isnbny
Wd 02:2T Szoz/61/6 owiy /ajeq saduelqundug pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswajels 91 :Aq pajeald
SWRIIM 19JAL 119sN jouwe) JUNo Jo UMo| alnipuadx3 Jo Juswales Do :dwep djejdwa]l



0070 000 00°0 snuog sewisuyd
000 %00°0 (00'005°€) 000 (00°005°€) (00°005°€) PET
00°0 000 000 sabe BWILBAQ
00'0 %S1°ST (Lz'16b"p) £/'805'T (00°000'9) (00°000'9) w
000 000 000 sabem
02'560'ST %I9'b1 (00°9+0'182) 00'%0T'8v (00'0S1'62€) (00°051°62¢€) [t4!
syeau3s puy sAemybiH  00TEY
000 000 000 Ssnosue|[RostiA
000 %000 (0o001) 000 (00700T) (00 001) 6Lt
00°0 00°0 00°0 ANg3dvs
000 %000 (00'000'52) 000 (00°000'62) (00°000'62) 062
00'0 00°0 00°0 uolyjowaq
000 %000 (00°000°0T) 000 (00"000°0T) (00'000°0T) 692
00°0 00°0 000 ssng
S0'SKEL 196png oN G0'GSS'ET G0'GSS'ET 000 00°0 [t rd
juwabeuely 19jemuiols /uonpadsug bulpjing  0zZyTy
00'0 00°0 00°0 sead
00°0 %05°L (00°055'S) 00°0St (00'000°9) (00°000'9) 0/1
juswpedaq |ouo) [ewiluy  Q0VTY
000 000 000 awdinby
000 %bS 98 (00°52b'18) 00°G/5'€S (00°000'509) (00°000'509) 0v6
000 00°0 000 Buined
00°0 %000 (00'000'02T) 000 (00'000°02T) (00'000°02T) 1€6
00°0 000 000 uonebniy piezeH Y34
000 %000 (00"000°0t2) 00°0 (00"000°0t2) (00'000'0v2) X7
000 000 000 SNOJUR|[RSIA
000 %000 (00"000'T) 000 (007000'T) (00'000'T) 6Lb
00'0 00°0 000 Juawdinb3 Juswyedaq il
69°20T'p1 %t 9E (z¢'605°0€) 8L°06v'L1 (00°000°8%) (00°000°8%) 1223
souelsqundugy Pasn % a]qejieAy spung saJjuelqundug jobpng [ej0l sjusWIpuUIY P3(q0 Jajud) Pelqo
/1enpy [seimyipuadxy /196png feuiblo qns 150D
dii ata
%L9'91 :anesedwo) AIuopw oTT : pung
9T Jo g abed §70¢ asnbny
Wd 0721 5202/61/6 :swiL/e3eq sadueiquINdul pue sainipuadxy Jo Juswalels 291 :Aq pajeald
SWel|IM J9IAL 19sn [owie) JUnopy Jo umoj

alnypuadx3 Jo Juawale)s Do :awep ajejdwa]



00'0 000 00°0 abe1sod puy saljddns 300
00°0 %000 (00'008) 000 (00'008) (007008) 01€
00°0 00°0 00°0 Buises] Juswdinbg
00'0 %00°0 (00'000'0) 000 (00'000'0) (00'000'20) ¥62
00°0 00°0 00°0 [oAeLL
00°0 %00°0 (00°00S) 000 (00°008) (00°005) 087
00°0 000 00°0 S}92415 puy Speoy adueusjulel puy Jieday
007009 %00y (00°00%'¥T) 00°009 (00°000°ST) (00°000°ST) 897
00°0 00°0 00°0 sbuipjing adueusjulely puy Jledsy
vb'8L2 %96°L (95'122°€) ¥b'8LC (00°005°€) (00°005°€) 99z
00°0 00°0 00°0 SJIAIDS [e3IP3ly
00°0ST %000 (00'05€) 00°0ST (00"00%) (00°005) 152
00°0 000 000 SSDIAIDS UOREdILNWIWOD J3YI0 puY Buoydapl
85°98¢ %I8'ET (2re1v'd) 85°98¢ (00°008D) (00°008'0) ShT
00°0 00°0 000 samnN
09°0Lb %bS'S (ov'620'8) 09°0Lb (00°005'8) (00°005'8) ov¢
00°0 00°0 00°0 S3DIAIRS JBUISIU]
WLbE YLELT (85'259'1) WLbE (00°000'0) (00'000'0) 91¢
00'0 000 000 Buute) puy uoneonp3 sa4ojdwi3
000 %00°0 (00°00S'T) 000 (00°005°T) (00"00s'T) 8bT
000 000 000 3aueInsuy JuswAojdwaun
000 %000 (00°00%) 000 (00°00t) (00"00%) Vigs
00°0 00°0 000 uoesusdwo) S,usunIopm
00°0 %65°6/ (00°086'1) 00°02Z'L (00'00£6) (00'00.'6) 91
00'0 00'0 000 uejd JuaWalIaYy saAojduiz
12°206'1 Yl 0C (8v'992'pT) TseesL's (00°000°8T) (00"000°8T) vl
000 00'0 000 oueInsuT aaAo|dwg
19'C€€E'S %be 1T (0£'1€€'6€) 0€£'899°0T (00°000°05) (00'000°0S) [ag!
000 000 000 (a1eys s shoidwz) iseQ
6€ THL'T %b8'ET (1201110 6/'68¢"E (00°005't2) (00005'%7) i
adueIqundUg pasn % ajqejieAy spung saduelqunoug 18bpng |ej0L sjuswpusWy 19(qo Jajua)d pelqo
/lempy /seamyipuadxy [196png |euibLQ qns 150D
aiw dlA

%/9°91 3Aneledwo) Alyjuoly OTIT : pund
97 Jo 6 dbed Sz0oz Isnbny
Wd 0Z:21 S§202/61/6 owi) foreq sedueIqUINJUZ pue sain}ipuadx3 Jo Juswalels 91 :Aq pajeasd
sweljim J9IAL asn [oue) JUnojy Jo Umol ainypuadx3 Jo Juswelels Do PweN ejdwal



00'0 00°0 000 Buined
00'88%'C %66 (1£°820'5b) 62 1L6Y (00'000°05) (00"000°05) 1€6
00°0 00°0 000 sal|ddns puy s|elisie
10'€9T'T %16'C (66'9£8'8€) T0°E9T'T (00 000°0t) (00°000°0%) 0ot
00°0 00'0 000 aaueUsIUIR|Y JYBI DRl
00'0 %00°0 (00°000'2) 000 (00°000'7) (00°000'2) £ve
000 000 000 saliddns puy sued ubis
000 %000 (00°000°s) 000 (00°000°S) (00"000°s) we
00°0 00'0 00'0 Bunybry yeens
§1'98/4'S %lLL (s8'€12'69) ST°98L°S (00°000'52) (00°000's2) a4
PIv 190136 8123  06TED
00°0 000 000 juswdinby
00°0 %000 (00"000°0€T) 00°0 (00°000°0€T) (00°000°0€T) ov6
00°0 000 00°0 Buined
00°0 %000 (00"000°05€) 00°0 (00°000°05€) (00°000'05€) 1€6
000 000 000 spunoio g *Bpig -Aepno |exde)
00°0 %00°0 (00"00596) 000 (00'00596) (00'00596) 443
00'0 000 00°0 Jedey sbeureiqg
000 %00°0 (00°000'T) 00°0 (00"000'T) (00'000'T) 8b
00°0 00°0 000 snoaue|[sas!iy
00'sZ %0S°C (00'sz6) 00°'SC (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 6Lt
000 000 000 asuadx3g jon4
Sb'SEb'y %¢STT (85'%90'b€) Sb'SEY'Y (00'005'8€) (00'005'8€) £33
00°0 000 000 asuadxg bunesado spIYRA
SLLETY %28'CT (8ez1508) 79'L8%'p (00"000'5€) (00'000°5€) oge
00°0 00°0 000 swoyiun puy Buiyio
000 %000 (00'000'S) 0070 (00°000°s) (00°000's) 9z¢
00°0 00'0 000 sa||ddng bunelado
16°20b %6L°L (s,'862'8) STT0L (00°000°6) (00000'6) (14
aduelquindug pasn % ajqejieAy spung saouesquinouy 3abpng [ejol sjuswpuswy P3(qo lajua) »3lqo
/lempdy /seamipuadxy /326png JeulblQ qns 350D
alw ala
%/9°9T :aanesedwo) Alyuop OTT :pung
9T 40 0T obed SZ0oT 1snbny
Wd 0T:2T §202/61/6 :PwiL /a3eq seduelquinoug pue sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswialels 291 :Aq pajeatd
SWwelljipm 491AL HELT,) [owIe) JUNo JO umo] ain)puadxg Jo Juauialels Do :awep ajejdwa)



000 000 000 uopesado puy juswidoAs( Hed
00°€48'L¢ %ES'TS (00'¥86'25) 0097028 (0o0'000°0TT) (00'000°0TT) su

00'0 00°0 000 ud1
000 %000 (00 000°00%) 000 (00°000°00%) (00"000°00%) ST

00°0 00°0 00°0 snosuejaasiiy
000 %00°0 (00'052) 00°0 (00'052) (00'052) 6/

00'0 000 000 sal|ddns bunessdo
000 %000 (007005'T) 00°0 (00°00s'T) (00°005'T) oze

000 000 000 3ied [RLOWSIY B\ UBIDIDA
000 %00°0 (00'00€) 000 (00°00€) (00'00€) 00€

000 000 000 saian
0£'£99 %SE'ET (0€2ee'y) 0£'/99 (00'000'5) (00'000°s) 1} 24
uopesddY  Obbbb

00°'0 000 000 SIVIMIBS [eNIDRIUC)
S£°121'0T %TEL (57'8/8'v52) S£121'0T (00'000'5£2) {00°000'5£2) 062

00°0 000 00°0 ue|d JUBWRISY 23A0|dwig
000 396png oN £9°6%C £9°64C 00°0 000 31

00°0 000 000 souelnsuI aakojdwg
00°0 196png oN 00'0 00°0 00°0 000 Wl

00°0 000 000 (a1eYs sJ9A0)dw3) IseD
00°0 12b6png oN seeee se'eee 000 00'0 1848

000 000 00°0 sebeM SWIHSAQ
000 196png oN 9€°02€ 9€'0CE 000 00'0 44}

00°0 000 000 sabem
00°0 196png oN 09°266'C 09°'266'C 00°0 000 4!
Buip/Aday puy 23sepm PIloS  00ZED

000 000 000 uswdinbgy
000 %00°0 (00°000'S) 000 (00'000's) (00°000'S) ov6

Qoueiqunduzy pasn % a|qejieAy spundg saduelqunouy jabpng |ejol sjuswpuawy p3[qo A3jUd) P3lqo
/1enpy /seimyipuadx3 /3e6png |euibli0 ans 3s0)
aln aiA
%L9°9T :aAieledwo) Ajyiuol OTT : puny
9T Jo 1T abeq SZ0z Isnbny

Wd 02:2T 5202/61/6 2wl /ereq sadueiquindul pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels SDY :Aq pajeas)
SWel|IM J9JAL 3sn [owe) JUNOY JO UMO] aJnjpuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do :dwepN jejdway



000 00°0 000 abeysod puy saijddns so0
90'TTT %689 (¥6'288'T) 9011 (00°00£'T) (00'00£'1T) (1] 83
00'0 000 000 foAell
00°0 %000 (00°009) 000 (00°00%) (00°005) 082
00'0 000 00°0 sbuipiing soueuajuiely puy Jledsy
00°0 %0070 (00°000°¢) 000 (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 997
000 00'0 00°0 Hoddng a1empos/aiemprey Jandwo)
000 %000 (00°005'9) 000 (00"005"9) (00'005'9) 852
00°0 000 00°0 SSOIAIRS [eIPAN
00'0 %00'0 (0000T) 000 (00'00T) (00001) 162
00°0 00°0 00'0 S3DIAIBS UOREDIUNWWO) J3Y3Q puy auoydajal
000 %00°0 (00'002) 000 (00°002) (00°002) S¥T
000 000 00°0 SN
T¥°58¢ %8601 (66'P1£'D) T¥°'582 (00°0097) (00°009°7) (1]74
00°'0 00°0 000 SIVIAIDS JRUIRU]
86'6ET %8L'L (20°099'1) 86'6€T (00°008'T) (00°008°T) 917
000 000 00°0 Bujules] puy uopesnp3 a4ojdwy
00°0 %000 (00°000'T) 000 (00°000'T) (00'000°T) 8v1
00°0 000 000 adueInsut JuswAojduwaun
062 % 1T (9z'ver) $L'ST (00'ovT) (00"0bT) Vig!
00°0 00°0 00°0 uoresuadwo) S,usunjIop
00°0 %00"00T 000 00°00£'T (00'00£'T) (00°00£'T) 9v1
000 00°0 00°0 (a1eys sJahojdug) IseQ
€295 %LLET (LLb1'e) €5°205 (00°059°€) (00°059'€) 84
000 00'0 00°0 snuog seunsuy)
00°0 %0070 (00°008) 000 (00"008) (00°008) !
00°0 0070 000 sobem
9/'812'¢ %9S°€T (€1°9/8'TH) £8'895°9 (00" 5bt'8b) (00'siH'st) 121
Aieagr  008tb
aduesquinougy Pasn % 9djqejieAy spungd saduelqunoug jobpng @301 sjuswWpudWY P3(q0 1ajua) Pa[qo
/1renpy /seimpuadx3 [396png |eulbLQ qns 150D
diin alA

%£9'9T :aAneledwo) Ajuiuoiy OTT : puny
9T 40 27 abed $z0z Isnbny
Wd 0Z:¢T S20z/61/6 :awil /ajeq seduelquindug pue saimipuadx3 Jo Juawialels M :Aq pajeasd
SWBI||IM JBIAL 19sM [ew.e) JuUnopy o umo|

anjipuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do :Bwep ejdway



0070 000 00°0
S6'892'8/¢C %b6'0¢ (2L 1458°LLEY) 8C'H9E'65T'T (00"9£6°9€5°S) (00'9£6'9€5°S) O0TT :pund.odieiol
0070 000 0070 salddns puy sleniep
000 %00°0 (00'052) 000 (00'054) (00'0S2) 00
00°0 000 00°0 Yed [eHOWSIN JeM URISISA
00°0 %00'0 (00°008's) 000 (00°008'S) (00°008's) 0o¢
00°0 00'0 000 Buises uswdinby
00°0 %000 (00°6v0) 000 (00'6%2) (00'6v7) 67
0070 00°0 00°0 SOVIAIDS [euostad
00°0 %000 (00°#%0'9) 000 (000'9) (00'#b0'9) 00T
sjudwAied jedpuld aseal 00006
00'0 000 00'0 juawdinb3
000 %00°0 (007000°2T) 00'0 (00"000°21) (0o0'000°21) 0b6
00°0 000 000 welbold Buipesy Jswwng
86'L1¢ %06°0T (c0'z8/'T) 86°LTC (00°000'2) (00'000'2) 12/
00'0 00°0 000 Jaidop ases bunessdo
8b°0t %Eb b1 (98'22) 2L (00°008) (00'00S) 79
000 000 000 12-02 ueln buiuies) Areign
000 %000 (00°005'7) 000 (00°008D) (00°005'2) 619
000 000 000 SMooq
08'8t¢ %6¢'p (0z'158'S) 08'8v¢C (00°008'S) (00°008's) 06t
00°0 000 00°0 SNOSUe(|30SIA
000 %00'0 (00 00%) 000 (00"00%) (00°00t) 6Lv
uelquindugy posn % ojqejieAy spung saduelquinougy 3ebpng |eiol sjuswWpua3wWy P9[q0 493Ud) [q0
/ieny /sainypuadxgz /3s6png jeuibLQ gns 3s0)
all aiA

%/9'9T :2Anesedwo) Ajiuoly 5 apht
9T 40 £1 abed §Z0Z Isnbny
Wd 02:2T 5202/61/6 o) /ajeq seduelqunouy pue saJnjpuadxa Jo Juswidlels oY :Aq pajeasd
Sswel||ip JBJAL 1asn [owie) JUNo 30 UMOL alnypuadx3 jo Juswslels Do :swep Sjejdwal



00°0 00'0 00'0
000 %00°0 (00°005°2€) 00'0 (00°005°2€) (00"005°££) LTT :punydog 301
00'0 000 000 suonesedQ pund 6n.q
000 %000 (00°005°£€) 00°0 (00°005°£€) (00°005°2€) YAl
uonebnsaAu] jeulwl)  TZIZY
dsueiquindugz poasn % a|gqejieay spung sosueiquIndug yebpng |ej0L sjuswIpuswy P(go 1aqua) Palqo
/1enpy /seanypuadxy /196png [euibLio qns 350D
aiw alA
%£9'9T ‘aAneledwo) Auoly [T pung
9T Jo T 9bed ST0T i1snbny
Wd 02:¢T S20T/61/6 iawiy /ajeq seJueIquindug pue sainjipuadxg Jo Juswalels 1 iAq pajeas)
SWIel|IM J9IAL HELT [owle) JUNoy JO UMO| ainjipuadxz Jo Juswalels DO PweN jejdwa]l



000

00°0 00°0 NOLLONYISNOD
000 %bS'S (0T'695'8€5°T) 06°082°06 (00°058’829°T) (00'058829'1) 100
000 000 00'0 2ouBUBUIEly pUY Jledsy Jueld 131eMBISEM
00°0 196png oN 0T's62'E 01'SS2'E 00°0 000 ¥9E
00°0 000 000 SdueUBUIRY pUY Jleday dwnd [eRUSPISRY
0070 196png oN 00°005'22 00°005'22 00°0 00'0 79¢
00°0 000 000 sa|lddns Bunesado
SO°8TT 326png oN S0'8TI S0'8TT 00°0 000 (1143
000 00°0 00°0 994 UOISSILWIOD
00°020°2 %6E"8T (00'5562T) 00'Sv0'y (00°000°22) (00°000°22) 86¢
00'0 00°0 00°0 SIVIAIRS |enRIUO)
8'¥8L'LST %b0'LT (€6'091'882) £0'6€8'T9T (00°000°056) (00°000°056) 06¢
00°0 00°0 00°0 S19243S puy Speoy dueusjuely puy Jiedsy
000 %00'0 (00°005°€) 000 (00'005°€) (00°005'€) 892
000 000 000 SSOIAISS SIURUBIUIR| PUY Jieday
000 %SC'TC (66'299°TT) [SAXR (00°000°ST) (00°000°ST) 092
000 00'0 00'0 saoinas BussuIBug
¥8'/92'9 336png oN ¥8'/92'9 ¥8'292'9 000 00°0 52
000 00°0 00'0 s$994 Bunipny puy Bupunoddy
00°0 %00°0 (00"000'0) 000 (00"000'0) (00'000'0) €5
000 00°0 00°'0 S0IAIBS [eBa
000 %00°0 (00°000°ST) 000 (00°000'sT) (00°000°ST) 8¢
000 00°0 00°0 S3DIAISS UOREIIUNWIWOD J3YI0 puy suoydefeL
98'cel %LL9C {¥1°99¢) 98°cel (00°008) (00°009) S¥T
00'0 00°0 00'0
S6°€P8'8T %Ly 0T (50"95T'19T) S6'€H8'8T (00"000°081) (00°000°081) (1] 24
00°0 00'0 000 SSDIMIBS JRUIBIU]
8¥°99 %IE'8 (zseel) 8v'99 (00°008) {(00"008) 184
1emas  00ZzZS
dueIqundugz pasn % ajqejieAy spung saoueIquINDUg 196png 301 sjuawpuawWwy Palqo Jajua) eIlqo
/ilemody [sainypuadx3 /3ebpng jeulbliQ qns 150D
aLn alA

%Z£9'9T iaAnesedwo) Ajyiuoly ZTh :pung
9T 40 6T =bed §T0T Isnbny
IWd 02:2T 5202/61/6 swiL/a3eq S@duBIqUINOUY puk sain3ipuadx3 Jo Juswalels D :Aq pajeasd
SWIBI|{IM J9]AL 195N [2wie) JUNoy JO UMOL ainjipuadx3 Jo Juswalels D97 :BdwepN ajejdwal



00°0 00°0 00°0
6£°098°00C %6101 (18'959'520°€) 61'61'EHE (00'05889€°¢) (00°058'89¢'€) ZIv :pund.od|ejol
00°'0 000 00°0 Slamo|g Jueld Jamas
000 %000 (00°000°S) 000 (00"000°5) (00'000°S) 956
00°0 000 000 2ouBUBUIR|Y 12)00Y 0303 /SS3.d g
1L41 %8T1°T (62'28v'T) 1241 (00°005'T) (00'005'T) 556
00°0 000 000 |esodsiq a6pn|S ug
§9'TZE 196png oN S9'1C¢ §9'TCE 000 000 756
000 00°0 000 sabJey) 201Al3s yueg
S0Z1 196png oN TEYIT EPIT 000 000 169
00°0 00°0 000 153483u] epjL
0070 %00°0 (00°007'€) 000 (00'002'€) (00°002'€) S€9
000 0070 00°0 spuog Bulpunyoy xel/AsY €102
000 %000 (00°000's¥) 00'0 (00'000°st) (00°000°sb) ¥19
000 000 000 sao4 Juliad siels
000 %T1°0S (€T'9bL'T) 18'€SL'T (00°005°€) (00°005°€) 965
00°0 00°0 00'0 uonepaidsq
000 %000 (00°000'062) 000 (00°000'062) (00"000°062) 0bS
00°0 00°0 00'0 Jeusy juswdinb3 puy Assuioep
00°000'ST %00°ST (00"000'0£1) 0070000 (00°000'002) (00'000°002) €€s
00°0 000 000 2duBINSUI
00°0 %00°0 (00'000'0) 000 (00"000'2) (007000'0) 018
000 000 000 snosue|(Roslin
86'86¢C %06'6C (co't04) 86°86C (007000'T) (00'000'T) 6/
duelquindouy pasn % sjgejieAy spuny sadueIqUnNdUl uwm_u:m jejol Ssjusupuswuy uuw_..n_o J93uU3a) uuw_”n_o
/lenpy /seimyipuadxy /396png jeuibLo qns 350D
di dLA

%£9'91 'aAeledwo) AlLauoly ZTb : pung
9T Jo 9T 2bed SZ0Z Isnbny
Wd 0Z:2T 5202/61/6 :awil /e1eq saouelqundul pue sainjipuadx3 jo Juswalels M :Aq pajesasd

SWeliM JIAL

esn

[owie) JUNo JO UMOo]L

2unyipuadx3 O JUaWLIS DO

:awep ajejdway



Mount Carmel Fire Department

Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

September 2nd, 2025
To: James Stables, City Manager
Ref: August 2025 Monthly Report

The Mount Carmel Fire Department answered a total of 36 calls for service during the month of
August. Day shift personnel answered 27 calls, and 9 calls were answered by volunteer staff. Our
average dispatch to arrival time was 4:43 with a 90t percentile of 9:09. Calls for this month
included multiple vehicle accidents and medical responses. This brings our year-to-date total to

288 calls for service.

Over the course of August, the department has conducted a large amount of logistical work
planning for upcoming projects. Those include placing Tower 18 in-service, receiving the new fire
chief’s vehicle, the parking lot paving, and installation of the access control system at our
building. All these projects are moving along as expected and have been long overdue upgrades
to our department. Our department has also worked non-stop with equipment mounting and

the layout design of the new ladder truck.

August training consisted of driver-operator training on Tower 18. To date, members have
logged over 300 hours of training onto the new apparatus. This training is essential to ensure
members are prepared before the truck hits the streets. We have also begun our fall recruit
class. New firefighters from Mount Carmel, Goshen Valley, and Bloomingdale are underdoing
over 100 hours of training to meet the state minimum requirements for interior firefighters.

Thank you and the BMA for your continued support.

Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

100 EAST MAIN STREET, MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE 37645
T (423) 444-1027 E MCFD@MOUNTCARMELTN.GOV



" eso TStai'Record Volume By Incident Type

Custom v Aug 1, 2025 - Aug 31,2025 v

33%

67%

EMS 3
Percartare ol Total
incidents

36 :

INCIDENTS

In Solectvd Time thon

31

DAYS

In Solected Tuns Shee

Aug 2 Aug 4 Aug 6 Aug 8 Aug 10 Aug 12 Aug 14 Aug 16 Aug 18 Aug 20 Aug 22 Aug 24 Aug 26 Aug 28 Aug 30

Jan'22 Jul'22 Jan'23 Jul'23 Jan 24 Jul24 Jan ‘25

% Rows % Columns % All

Week Ending 8/3/25 8/10/25 8/17/25  8/24/25  8/31/25 9/7/25 9/14/25 9/21/25 9/28/25  10/5/25 10/12/25 10/19/25 10/26/25 Total

(31) Medical
assist 1 2 5 6 2 e

(32) Emergency

medical 2 1 3 2 8
service (EMS)

incident

(35) Extrication, 1 1
rescue

(46) Accident,
potential 2 2
accident

(55) Public
service 2 1 2 5
assistance

(61)

Dispatched 1 1
and canceled

en route

(62) Wrong

location, no 1 1
emergency

foun

(65) Steam,

other gas 1 1
mistaken for

smoke

(74)

Unintentional

system/detect... 1 1
operation (no

fire)

36

wr

Total 2 8 9 12

Page 1 of 1



i
|
|
f
i
i
f
i
i
i




: ; L wuug SpuTPILL poLUBW YuEes 10ty ; SUwIEU SR I SSE jseits ||
L +Gg - slojueg

R T T N A S 0 509 - SINPY

O P D D D . N DY LR P b S0 - SHNpY

311 L B LA T

0 SOE - SHnpY

0z 0 SOZ - SHNPY

0 suea]

or 0 sejlusAnf

9deY 1S9y (syuow gz | ise[) AiO1siH uapIdu| sisally

‘auou 8 1BYI0

2&@00&@0%@0»%&0 ?&09&&0%&056&0 &4 &A@o.ax\@o&z Q&oz&&oo&&oco\&o&%o @&osQ&osa&oéaeo T 0 S|BUOISSOJ01d BJBOU)ESH

suonesJijoN 0 0 siapuodsay

- - _ - z SOSSAUYAA

(d) (uoissessod ¢ sansun

Z ajduuig sapnjoui) Buijeasuoy)/buissassod . = T
- Aanoy euiwngy i =y
L sjueureidwo

F £t 0 paujuesEen)
1 Ausoie 1eui0 || - Sesuayo Yy ._.\>:Amu_mmw.v_ 0 SnoRo3u|
(v5e) suotieloin . pebundx3

L apoateN/Bniqg - sesuayQ onosieN Bnig g se|luaAnp
b (D06) 1onpuoy Apspiosiq ] suopezjuebiQ
€ (aoe) ouenyuj 8y sepun Bunug 9z s|enpiapu]
L (AL6 DaN) Aluo uoiewio| sanjed
- suopeayissel [eniul : BupjeIs 1oL
0 20Ue|OIA Bje( |10l

1 Auaole JayiQ |iv - Sesusy yey t?mu‘_mwjv_ L SOUBICIA ORSeUI0g [B10L
(gs¢) suonejoIn 0 sbuiddeupist ejot

z  wawdmnb3 Bruq - sesusyo anooseN Brug 0 SHNesSY [BNXes JeujQ [e10L
£ (Qos) souanyy| sy Japun BuiAlq 0 sadey jejoL
(vsg) suonejoln 0 siapanjy |e1oL

b onodsen/Bniq - sesueyQ anoosep Bnig 14 sabieyd Bnig [ejoL
14 (AL 0an) Auo uoneunou z siseLy [ej0)
- SasuUalyO juapiou) ! Sjuadp|ou| jejol

B 9 ﬂ e E (5207 1snBny) sjuapiou . 2 5202 3enbny Sjuapiau|




Hawkins County ECD [/VLC?'IS

2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857 ===
r0G REST

CFS By Department - Select Department By Date [ Slom e <
For MOUNT CARMEL PD 08/01/2025 00:00 - 08/31/2025 23:59 S

MOUNT CARMEL PD Count Percent
911 UNKNOWN 6 2.61%
ALLERGIC REACTION 0.43%
ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2.61%
ATTEMPT TO CONTACT 0.43%
BREATHING PROBLEM 0.43%
CHECK POINT 0.43%
CHEST PAIN 0.43%
CHILD ABUSE 0.43%
CIVIL MATTER 0.43%
DISTURBANCE 2.17%
DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE 0.43%
FALL 0.87%
FOLLOW UP 3.48%
HEART PROBLEM 0.43%
JUVENILE INCIDENT 1.30%
LE ALARM-COMMERCIAL 0.87%
LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL 0.43%
LE INFORMATION 1.74%
LIFTING ASSISTANCE 1.30%
LOCK OUT/IN 0.43%
MENTALLY ILL PERSON 0.43%
MOTORIST ASSIST 261%
MVC-ENTRP/EJEC 0.43%
MVC-INJURIES 1.30%
MVC-NO INJURIES 3.48%
MVC-NO INJURIES (COMMERCIAL) 0.43%
PATROL/PREMISE CHECK 0.43%
PROPERTY DAMAGE 0.43%
PURSUIT 0.43%
RECKLESS DRIVER 6.09%
ROADWAY HAZARD 0.43%
SCHOOL ZONE 5.22%
SEX CRIME-DELAYED 0.43%
SICK PERSON 0.43%
STROKE 1.30%
STRUCTURE FIRE-RESIDENTIAL 0.43%
SUICIDAL PERSON 0.43%
SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY 2.61%
THEFT 1.30%
TRAFFIC STOP 108 46.96%
TRESPASSING 1 0.43%
UNCONSCIOUS 2 0.87%

CAD Report 5 Page 1 of 2 09/08/2025 09:17

G =« T 4% T S = > T O e O S T o B << T S B ¢ | B R L

- =
N = bh

W O = =W o= =



Percent

MOUNT CARMEL PD Count
WELFARE CHECK 3 1.30%
Total Records For MOUNT CARMEL PD 230 Group/Total 100.00%
Total Records 230

CAD Report 5§ Page 2 of 2 09/08/2025 09:17



6260 5¢0¢/80/60 6L 10 | obed 691 Hoday Qv

=N\
9€:/€¢¢ ¥¢i9¢ee JONIANILIANI/ ad

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/ 1/80 9g:/e2e v2:9¢ice v2:9¢:2¢ §20¢/14/80 06 Sley AJTIVA SHILYVO | $6920-5202
TANHVYO

1N ‘IAV ANOWWVH
€12 | INTWLHVd3a

£2:€0:91 SG:10'91 32110d

00:0 000 00:0 0Q0:0 00:0 G202/L1L/80 €2:€0:9) GS:10:g1 GG:10:91 G20e/4 1/80 06 Slevy JINEYO LNNOW  62+920-6202
TINHYD LNNOW
‘M L1 AYMHDIH
o¥'8t'Sl 617Gl 225 1 (M LI AVMHODIH)

00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ0Z/L1/80 Ob'8¥GlL 6L:bbiGL 8LipPiGH 5zZ02/11/80 Y06 sley L ¥S 8€ W  2/$920-6202
JINHYD

1N "IAY ANOWWVH
€l | ININLHYIa

0Z:G2'Sl vyiLLiGH 32110d
00:0 000 00:0 000 L0} 620Z/80/80 0Z:SZ:SL Sy'8L'GL SH'8LGh $202/80/80 506 O4NIEY JANUYD INNOW  €£1920-5202
S0:20'60 25:25°80 TANHYD LNNOW
0000 9G¥ 95+ 000 0 G20Z/L0/80 SD:/0:60 GE:8G:80 6E€5:80 BE€S:80 §202/L0/80 06 MNNLLE  ‘IAV HVANTTO 9LEL  886520-6202
TANHYO LNNOW
1G:6€:80 11:80:80 ‘1S NIVIN 3 0%
00:0 800 80:0 00:0 90:0 6202//0/80 1G:6€:80 6Z:80:80 /1:80:80 2}:80:80 §202/.0/80 06 NOAWEY | INIT 339 SIINNVA  $86520-5202
GE:80:61 ¥2:00:61 NTNVLINNY / Y
000  ¥0'¥ Yo'y 000 6E0 GZ0Z/90/80 GE:80:61 205061 €0:10:6} €0:10:61 $Z02/90/80 €06 dSNSey ATTIVA SHILHVYD  626520-5202
10'62:61 LE:€T6L THH HOYNHD ‘ay
00:0 900 90:0 000 00:0 S202/¥0/80 10:6Z:61 LEETHL LEETB6L LEET6) GZ0Z/¥0/80 506 S1EY LINVSVI1d LW 20} 089520-S202
1HOdSONIM ‘ad
sYvsTh 00:22:0} ATTIVA SH3LHYD
00'6E:L 12-€9- 00:0 2:20°} 00:0 G2Z0Z/P0/80  €¥¥G:ZL 00:90:ZL 00:€S'LL 00:/2:0) LZT:62:LL 00:/2:0L S20Z/+0/80 ¥06 Sicy M/ 3AV HYDIANIM  829520-5202
JANYYD LNNOW
‘M EL AYMHOIH
Zv60:61 1£:6G:84 225 [ {M LI AVAMHODIH)
00:0  00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/E0/80 2¥:60:6) 1€:65:81 1€:65:81 S202/€0/80 06 Slep | ¥S 8¢ W  295620-5202
9z:v):LL 8£:81:91 10 ¥3INNVE
00:0 8L-2- 00:0 8Ll 00:0 G202/€0/80 9zZvlLilL 9€:81:91 956191 8E£:8L:9L §202/€0/80 06 Sley  /¥A 139NV 34TOM  665520-5202
Tvisd Ivu3  dy/squl/sg sa/S40  PIsold S49 Jes|) v s Iy ug sQ PaAIRIdY S49 yun Ns3 adAy jies uoneoson #s40
paijoeds 10N
—
= v NG NS3 Ag dnoig j1e8yg peaids awi| esuodsey dd TFNHYD LNNOW

.w<<;\~l F@WN O 168/¢ N1 ‘ 3TIASY3IO0Y 1S NIVIN 3 1622
Q2 w aon3 fjuno)H supimey




62:60 §20¢/80/60

00:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cvisa

00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€-l-

00:0

00:0

00:0
Iyjug

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

£0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

vig

0L:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Jy/squ3a/sg sa/sdd

8¥:€0: L1
§¢0¢/2¢/380

6¢-co:le
G20c/1Le/80

0€:SL:ch
Gc0¢/12/80

95:00:1¢
§202/0¢/80

10'6€:0¢
G20¢/81/80

1£:20:0¢
§202/81/80
SeSLivl
§20¢/81/80
10:62:LL
§202/51L/80

8¢:9G:¢l
G¢0¢/51/80

le:ev0c
§202/Z1/80

Sy:ov:GlL
G¢0¢/21i80

AR YA 4"
TAVAA Y]

pPaso|) s4D

8¥:€0: L1

6¢:¢0:l¢

0e:slel

95:00'l¢

£0:6£:0C

}£:20:0¢

SeGLvL

Lo:6¢:LL

8¢:9G-¢l

1C:Ev:02

6E:6€:Gl

LLevl

1e9|)

$1

6l 4O 4

00:¥5:01

8€:L5:0¢

65:€0-€l

8S:¥5:02

0¢:82:0C

vSiceill

ySi6eel

0€:0¥:0¢

E€LILESL

8evlvl
N

8C 561

1S'6€:€)

u3j

abey

00:¥5:04

8€:1G:0C

65:€0:€}

85:¥5:02

0¢:8¢-:0¢

8E:vS61
criercl

[ HAAYA

yS:6€:€L

0g:0¥:0¢

ghiles)

8EvivlL

00:¥S:0L
§20¢/¢2/80

8€:25:0¢
G20z/4 /80

65:€0-tl
§c0¢/1¢/80

85502
§20¢/02/80

0¢:8¢:0¢
Gc0z/81/80

V21661
S¢0¢/81/80
ceierel
S202/81/80
¥S:ecilL
G0e/S1/80

pS6e:€l
§20¢/S1/80

0g:0%:0C
S20¢/clL/80

€1:.E:6)
Gc0c/z1L/80

8evlipl
§20z/c1/80

sQ PaAR9aY 49

¥06

€06

Y06

906

906

€06

adon

¥06

€06

¥06

¥06

S06

Sley

SlEv

Slevy

Siey

Sley

ANNLLE

1idey

SiEY

slaey

Siey

Slevy

Slevy

Gol Hoday avO

aAv

JONIANILIAANI / ad
ATTIVA SHILUYD  228/20-6202

L1HO4SONIM

‘M LY AYMHOIH

L6L 1 (M L1 AYMHOIH)
L ¥S O WA 092/20-6202

L1HOdSONIN

‘M LL AYMHODIH

Z61 { (L4OdSONIM)
INOZ OLNY €£0..20-5202

TTH HOYNHD

‘M EL AVMHOIH

$G2 1 {M LY AVMHDIH)
L ¥S L& WA 6£9/20-5202

TIH HOYNHD ‘ay

ATTIVA SHILMVD

€1€5 | HOYNHO

1SIQOHLAW A3LINN
TIVH IONVED  601.20-6202

TIAWEYD LNNOW

‘M LL AVMHOIH

225 | {M LL AYMHDIH)
L S 8¢ WA $0v.20-6202

N7 SIM3T
I M L AVMHODIH  6£€£/20-6202

¥d 39aIy Xo4 / ad
ATTIVA SYILHVYD  0£0220-5202

TINEYO LNNOW

‘LS NivIN 3 607
| ONIMOL ZQv3IHL £00/20-5202

IV

JONIANILIANI/ O
AITIVA SHILMVYD  969920-5202

TINEYD LNNOW

‘1S NIV 3 607
| ONIMOL zavayl 6¥9920-6202

THH

HOYNHO 'GY AITIVA
SHILMYD 269 2£9920-S202

jun Ns3 adA) jeo uoneso] #S40

paijioads JoN



62:60 GZ0Z/80/60 6l 10 ¢ obed g9| Hodey avO
[444
8¢l 00:€ 001 00:C 912 120 GGl 00:1
() (W) () (W) dsta/s42
1es|)/gaANY (W) Zaaruy/dsiq (W) ZaAusvase () yaeALLY (W) eAly/dsia @ALLy/eInoIU] sjnojugidsig  awj abeleAy
awi] sbelany awiy abelany awi] abelsay aw] abelsAy awi) abelsany aw] abelany awi] abelaay
(4431 4 00:0 12204 00:0 vy9l 00:0 00:6¢:1 LIS rA 8 /1" 12:€¢
(W} @AY ds1a N) BALLIY/dsiq (W) uzdsia  (W)Juzidsig (W) dsigrs4D (W) dsigjsdo (W) zoauy (N) @AY (W) @noiauz (w) dsig
awn]l xew awlil swl] xely swiy Uiy awi] xely awil wy /dsigawiy [eyol /dsiq awlyl jejoL /dsig awi] |eyol /S4D swill [ejol
€e Sp1023Y [B}OL
9c'Lvde L0:€2ee adA1d ALISH3IAINN
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 ev.0 Gc02/62/80 9Z:1¥:22 05:€2:22 §202/6¢/80  AdO STEY /M LLAYMHOIH  Z2v/820-5202
IAY
£0:€€:¢¢ 6¢:9¢:2C JONIAN3IL3ANI / gy
00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 §20¢/92/80 €0:€€:¢e 6¢-9¢:¢C 62:9¢:¢C 620¢2/92/80 L6 SLEb ATTIVA SY3LUVD  /8£820-G20¢
6€:€0:0L 0¢61:40 ay AVM TTYNIQYVYD
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 oLl G¢0¢/9¢/80 6¢:€0:0} 0€:0¢:£0 G¢0¢/9¢/80  AdON SIHYEY /M LL AYMHOIH  282820-5202
ay AITIVA
11:60:81 9L:9¢:L1 SHALYVI / vLL
00-0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 S202/ve/80 L1608l alL:9¢:L1 91:92:LL Gc0c/ve/e0 06 Sier AVMHOIH 31V1S 911820-5202
13IWNHYD INNOW
‘ML AYMHDIH
S1:60:91 €E:80:01 225 | (M L1 AVMHDIH)
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 8G:0 G20e/¥2/80 G¥:60:9L 1€:60:9L 1£:60:91 §202/vei80 €06 NOANEY I S 8¢ WIN 801.820-G20¢2
yGelvl 00:€e:€l T1IH HOYNHD
00:0 058 068 000 evil G20c/ve/80 vSiELipL eCerEl EhvEEL EVPEEL 620c/ve/80 06 1DANE.L ‘QY W13 918298 560820-5202
1G:GSLL 2e8v0l T3NEVO
00:0 £0:0 £0:0 000 91 G20e/ye/80 60:02:L1L 61:G0:L1 91L:G0:LL 9LSOLL G20¢/¥2/80 06 g90S/y LNNOW ‘NT1SIM3SIE £/0820-5202
JINHVYD LNNOW
‘M LL AVMHOIH
cLvsiLe 01:85:0¢ 22S | (M 1L AVMHOIH)
000 Z2cLlh Z2¢LL 000 12'€ G202/ce/80 2ZLpSile €5:Zlle LeL0lE LE'LO'LE S¢0¢/ec/80 €06 ZYHYEY L ¥S 8E INW  606/20-6202
TANGVYO
92:66:0¢ cligriel INNOW ‘S 1LINN AV
00:0 ¢Cc¢sv ¢gsy 000 9z:0 G20¢/2e/80 92:65:0¢2 L0:1€:0¢ 6ESv6L 6£:S76L §¢0¢/¢c/80 906 slacey AHINODLINON 8S€  $68.20-G202
6G-€¥-6l L7 Lyi8lL JINLYI LINNOW
00:0 920 9¢:0 00:0 61:C G20¢/¢e/80 0G:1L0:6L 9Z:#¥'8L 00:v#' 8L 00:-¥1-8l §202/22/80 906 142y 'IAV HYAINTTO 0SPL  888/20-202
cv/sa Jyju3  Jy/sqQ ul/s@ s$a/S49  P9so[) S4D 1e3|d [A4 $1 4 u3 Sd PIAIRIAY S4D yun NS3 adAL [1eD uoneso] #8490

payads 10N



6¢:60 G202/80/60 6L IO ¥ ebed G9| Hodey avD
JASTA
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 Ly:0 0 00:0 €0'€C
(W) (W (W) (W) dsiarsd0
1e3|Q/gNlly (W) zoauyjdsia (i) zeaurype () yo1/eALIY (W) sAnIy/dsia  aAuy/eInosul ajnoJugz/dsiq awil abesany
awi] sbelsany awi] aberaay auwll] sbeiaay auwl] obelaay awl] abelaAy auwil] aBelisAy awll) sbeiaay
L0 00:0 00:0 00:0 €0:€C 00:0 00:0 -0 00:0 £0:€2
(W) @AlIy/dsIg N) aALLy/dsIQ (W) Juz/dsia (W) suz/dsig (M) dsia/s4D (W) dsia/sdo (W) zoaLy () eALLY (W) @noauz (W) dsia
aull] xe awi] WN awl] xely awlj UiN auwl] xel awnl ulj /dsigawil jejo} /dsig awi} |ejol /dsiq awi] [ejol /SO swil [ejol
l sSpJo93y |ejol
ATTASHIDOH
‘M LE AVMHOIH SS65
¢e:01:00 9SG L p-0¢C I (M L1 AVMHOIH)
00:0 L0 170 00:0 €0:€T S202/0e/80 1Z:LLET 0F:S0:1Z 6G:70:lC 6G:v0:lZ S20¢/62/80 706 6¥¢ dMOEY L ¥S 8l INW 8£/820-520C
cv/sa JIy/u3z  Jy/squl/sgd sa/sSdd  PsolD Sd4D Jes|d o s Iy ug SA P@eARI8Y S40 Hun NS3 adAL 1ed uolyeso #S40
6¥¢C
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 10:0
() () (W) (W) dsiassd4o
lea|o/zaAlry (W) zaAuly/dsig () ZoALdy e (W) woenty () @AlLly/dsIQ  @ALLy/alnoIug dnosugidsiq  ewn] sbelaay
awl] abeiany awij abesany awl) abeiany aw] abeloay auwil] abelaay awi] sbelany awi] abeisay
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 10:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 80:0
(W) @Ay dsIq N) aALy/dsIqg (W) ugdsig (W) suaidsiga (W) dsiais4o (W) dsig/s4o () Zonnny (W) any (W) @noaug (W) dsig
swl] xey awl] UIN swi] xey swll UIN awi] xel awi] uly /dsigawi] [ejol /dsigawi] [ejo) /dsig swi| |ejol /SO swil fejoL
9 SPI023Y |80
£6:02¢el ve9lel N1 OOSIONVYL / G
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 L0:0 Gc02/61/80 ¢G:02:El Ge9lel Gealel Gc0c/61/80 S06 c¢v¢ Sitv AJTIVA SHALAYO  +9%/20-5202
€2:20:0¢ 02-95:61 TANEYO INNOW
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20e/8L/80 €2:20:0¢2 02:95:61 02:95:61 G20z/84/80 906 <Z¥v¢ SleEv ‘NISITIIM6LC  201220-5202
|3 AT TS SlLiv0iLe N1 3470M /ad
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20c/el/80  LiigeiLe SL:p0:12 SL:p0:12 Gcoe/el/80 Y06 cvc Slitv ATTIVA SHILHVD  228920-5202
91:00:L¢e £1:6%:0¢ N1 3470M /Ay
00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 S20¢2/ZL/80 91:00:L¢C €L:6¥:0¢ €1:6¥:0¢ S202/2L/80 ¥06 <cvc SlEv AITIVA SHIALHVYD  169920-G202
166 LL LE6ELL N1 3470M / QY
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 100 G202/2LI80 pL:G6S: L1 8C:68 /1 8C:6E:/1 Gc0¢/cL/80 $06 ¢CvZ VOWEY ATTIVA SH3LYVYD  199920-5202
¥5:20:91 vG.€6:S1 N7 3470M / QX
000 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/2L/I80  $6:20:9L bG€GS1L G €661 G202/2L/80 v06 ¢Zve SlEv ATTIVA SHILAVO  £69920-5202
Zvisa Jyjuz  Jdy/sq ul/sgd SA/S40  PISO|D S4D lea|d [A'4 s Iy u3 $Q POAAISISY S4D nun NS3 adAy (e uonedso”] #S40



62:60 5202/80/60 8l JO G efed 69| vodeY QvD

9 Spl023ay |ejoy
1€9¥'GL 81:CZGl 3NV IVHLIN3D
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 €0-1L §202/9¢/80 LE:9t:GL LZ:'€CGl G202/9¢/80  AdOW  8ST3TMYEY S/MLLAVMHOIH 81£820-G202
(WRYA A4 62:0G'61 AV AYINODINOW
8e:6e'L  6L-- 00:0 610 00:0 §¢0¢2/¢c/80 |1:Lp:ge L0'S2'LC 82:.S'0C 62:0G'6) 810561 62:05:61 §202¢/cc/80 €06 B8SZ Sley /Q¥ 1HO4NOD 103 968.20-5202
oLpiel (YATA £ ad IMVYT H3IATIS
00:0 90:0 90:0 00:0 8Z:0 G202/02/30 0lv¥icl 1STVelL LSIZHEL  LSiZhiEl §202/0¢/80 ¥06 8SC SiEP /ML AYMHOIH  £85/20-G20¢C
bLiblivl olveEl AV SNIIMVH
00:0 00:0 00:0 000 L0 GZ0Z/9LI80  LiLLwL €0:6EEL G2c0Z/91/80  AdOIN  8SZ3IMHEY I M LL AVMHOIH  €21/20-5202
61:21:90 G€:20:90 anig NiviAl
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 123" §c02/SL/80  61:41:90 61:60:90 G20Z/SL/80  QdOIN  8SZ 3 TMYEY M/ ML AVMHDIN  296920-5202
1S:¥S61 1€:6G:81 T1IH HOYNHD
00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 Gc02/cl/80 LS¥S:61 ££:6G'81 186581 §202/21/80 06 8STIONVEY ‘aATE NIVIN 3 SE6  1.89920-G202
gv/sa Jvjuz  Jy/sgqul/sd sSQ/S40  PSSoID §40 1e3]9 [A $7 y u3z S@ PaARI3Y §4D Hun NS3 odAL Neo uopedo #5840
86¢
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 100 10:0 00:0 (43>
(W (w (w (W) dsiarsdo
1e3|d/gaAlly (W) zonury/dsia (W) Zaanyase (W) wa/eALY (W) sanayjdsig  aAlUy/eInolug ajnosug/dsig  awn] sbesony
awy] sbesany awi] abeisAy awl) abeisaay awy] abesany awi| abelany awy| abelany awi} abeisany
§0:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 ¥0:91L 00:0 00:0 50:0 00:0 0:91
(W) aauIy/dsia ) aaly/dsig (W) Juzidsig (W) suzrdsia (W) dsig/s4o (W) dsi@/sdD (W) zannry () aAly (W) @noiuz (w) dsia
awii] xely awi] uIN awl xep auwll UliN awl] xely swil uiy /dsigawi] [eyol /dsigown] [e3o) /dsi1q awil| [ejyol /S4D Bwi) [el0L
S spi023y [ejo|
yi.0v'6lL 81:1z:8l TTIH HOYNHD
00:0 S0:0 G0:0 000 $0:91 Gc0c/0C/80  Ly:9¥i8l 12:1€:8) ¢2:/€:8l TTLE'8L §202/02/80 €06 /SC ¥1Si¥ “§Q TINWWOH L0l 619.20-6202
ov:L¥'le vece e aN3 dvaa/ay
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 §¢0¢/81/80 ov:L¥iLe pezeile yecele G202/81/80 906 1SC SlEb ATTIVA SHILHVD  8L1/20-5208
1472
£¥'2C0e 90:¢):0¢ AVMHOIH 31V1S/ ad
00:0 00°0 00:0 000 00:0 G202/2Li80  ¢¥:2e-0C 90:¢}:0¢ 902102 620z/21Li80 P06 LGC SlEV AITIVA SHILHUVYD  $69920-G202
ad
L1:GSEL Z2e8vEl AJTIVA SH314VD
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20¢/cl/80  LL:ss:gl 2e8rEl cesrel G202/elL/30 G06 162 Sleb /@Y SSOYUD AVM  229920-5202
1472
2158 4%y 44 61:80:¢c AYMHOIH 31VY1S /Ay
00:0 000 00:0 000 00:0 Gc0g/LLIBO geivLige 61:80:22 61:80:¢¢ G20Z/1L1/80 Y06 [LSZ SlEv AITIVA SHALHEVD 8€5920-5202

Zy/sq JMwjuz  dy/squl/sq@ sqQ/sdd P9sold §4D de3|d (A s Ny u3 SA PaARIdY S4D Hun NS3 adA) 1ed uopjjeao] # 840



6¢:60 G202/30/60

00:0

00:0

R

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

6l O 9 ebed G94 wodey Qvo
JANEYD
INNOW ‘LS SSFUJAD
vreviLL rA A 0] 8 LLE | HOYNHD
il ¢yl 000 20 G§202/20/80 vviGLiLL 80:6¥:0L 9C°'Iv:0l 9C:L¥:04 §202/20/80 €06 6SZISNSEY L1SlidVE IAQOYUD VO €£8€520-5202
00:s¢:0} Zc8vLoL T1ANEYD INNOW
€0:0 €00 00:0 V6 G2Z02/Z0/80 00:GZ:0L 8C:7Z:0l SEWVZ0L SEFZ0L §¢20¢/20/80 ¥06 69 VLY ‘1S aoOMQ3d 02/  12€520-5202
ay AITIVA
(0] 0] 23 v 80:60:¢C SHIALHYD / AV
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 GC0Z/10/80 0L:0L'€C €T:¥0:'€T L1:85:2C 80:60:CC 80:60:¢C §20¢/10/80 v06 692 Slev JONIANIJIANI L ¥ES20-5202
TIIH HOYNHD ‘ay
1G:00¢¢ 65:95:0¢ AITIVA SHILHVD
0c-v- 00:0 0cT€ 00:0 Gc02/10/80 /50022 6G:95°0C¢ 61-:00'1¢ 65:95:0C G20¢/10/80 ¥06 65 Sley  STI9| LYV AFTIVA €££520-6202
L2 Lv0¢ 1 €:¥0:02 T13NHVI LNNOW
00:0 00:0 00:0 e€Lo G202/10/80 LZ:L¥:0T ¥v0:0¢ v:¥0:0C Gc02/10/80 €06 6S2IdNSey  'IAY ONOWWVH 92, 22e520-5202
06l JASYA A JAY LNOIW139
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 §202/10/80 ot:v¥6l 18276l 1€2v61 6202/10/80 706 6SZ SlEv / LS NIVIN M 0Z€S20-5202
J13NEVYO LINNOW
‘IAY AOOMAYH
£L:ec6l 112061 90t | S1dvd
0€-'G- 00:0 Ogcv 00:0 Gc0¢/10/80 €1:EC64 L1206l #9061 LL:20:6L G202/10/80 Y06 652 OANEY O1NV ATIIHO 91£520-5202
T3INHVYD LNNOW
‘IS NIV 3 LIZ
678581 94:25:8l | (TaNEYD INNOW)
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G¢0c/L0/80 6¥:85:81 9l¢s8l 9les8l §¢0¢2/10/80 y06 692 Slev IVHANTIO JVYT10a  €1£520-6202
SL:geel 9z:LL:€L 1AWHYD LNNOW ‘N1
el 00:0 €0:0 00:0 G202/1L0/80 Gligzel 9¢:LL€L 62:LL:€L 9¢iLLEL G20¢/10/80 006 6S¢ 104ed NNY SH3LINNH 651  69¢520-5202
9z:0lel €0:16:¢L da IIM0HEIHD
60:€L 60:€l  00:0 80:2 G20e/10/80 9z.0L:€ElL 02:90:€L L1:ESZL LLES:ZL G20¢2/10/80 906 6SZ3IMHEY / NTNOILYNHVYD £92520-G202
€2:1¥:80 12:2€:80 JINAYO
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20¢/10/80 €2:.¥:80 12:1€:80 12:2£:80 G¢02/10/80 006 6GSZIONVEYr  LINNOW ‘LS AVE 2hy 0£2520-S202
w3 Jdy/sgu3l/sa s$a/s40  PIso|D S4I Je3|d [A4 7 Iy ug SA POAIRIBY S4D }un NS3 adAL 12D uojeoon #S40
6G¢C
o€l 9GSl 9e:y 60:L1 10:0 00-0 £0:0 or:0
(w) () (W) (W) dsia/s4o
Jes|yjzanily (W) zamagdsia (W) ZaAkIy/geT (W) worromny () aAlIy/dsIQ  @Aluy/aINoIUg ajnosuz/dsiqg ewi] abeloay
awl) abelaay awil} abelaAy awy) afbetaAy awy) abelaay awy] abesany awy] abeiaay awl] abeliaAy
90:0 00:0 6L:0 00:0 vl 00:0 8€:G€E:| 90:0 610 20y
() aALLY (dsIQ N) 2Ly dsIg (W) auzidsig (W) Ju3ydsig (W) dsig/sdD () ds1q/s49 (W) Zaaly () aALLY () snoaug (W) dsig
auwl] xe awill UWN awl] xey auwll Uln all] xely swi] uly /dsiqawi] [ejol /dsiqgawi] [ejol /dsig 2wl |ej0] /S49 awil] fejo)l



62:60 §202/80/60 6L 40 . ebed G9| Hoday Qvo
TIWUYD LNNOW
'IAY AOOMAYH
1T1GLL 216201 901 | S1¥vd

00:0 6¥62 6V6Z 000 280 GZ0Z/v0/80  Z:LG:LL £¥:S50L +S'62:01L $S:GZ0L S20Z/¥0/80 906 6SZ AXSEY OLNY ATNIHO  229520-5202
RE[ o)
ANNOW ‘1S NIVIA
£0:2€:60 00:92:60 M 25 | (TINEYD

00:0 000 00:0 000 00:0 GZ02/¥0/80 €£0:2€:60 00:92:60 00:92:60 S20Z/¥0/80 06 662 Slev ANNOW) ST3AUVH  229520-5202
£¥:6€:20 0€:92:20 an1g ALISH3IAINN

00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/¥0/80 £¥:GE:L0 0£:92:20 0£:92:20 S20Z/70/80 06 652 Sith /LS LNNTYM  609620-5202
1G92:02 81:20:02 18 30N¥dS / IAY

00:0 16-¢l- 00:0 /SLL 00:0 GT0T/E0/80  16:92:0¢ 81:20:0Z S1'61:0Z 81:/0:02 §202/€0/80 ¥06 66C SlEb JON3ANAdIANI  §/G520-5202
zl6t:8l 0P8l 1S NIV

00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ0Z/€0/80 Zl:6V8lL Z0:¥¥:8l Z0:v¥8L $202/€0/80 06 652 Slev M/ 3AY LNOWNT3S $95520-5202
ANV
syZvvl 9G5:0Z:¥t JONIANALIAANI/ N

00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 G2Z0Z/€0/80 8v:TyivL 9G:02:¥} 9G:02:v ) §20Z/£0/80 706 65¢ Sley  SONIYdS MOAV3IN ZySS20-5202
L0'LTEL 8191l T3NEVYO LNNOW

000 /LT L'z 000 1G:0 §202/€0/80 10:LZ'EL 9z:6L:€l 60:LL'EL 60:LLEL G202/£0/80 06 6STINNLLE ‘HQ ITODIN EEL  9E5520-620C
Qu:LLEL r Aty Al 1S NIVIN

00:0 619 6119 000 12:0 GZ0Z/E0/80 90:Z1:EL 60:€S:ZL 0S:9%:Zl 0S:9t:ZL Gc02/e0/80 706 6SC DAINEY 3/ 3IAV ANONWVYH 2£5520-G202
RE[\15)7e)
GE65: L1 £6:52:)1 1NNOW ‘LOALINN

00:0  €g/ €€/ 000 810 G20Z/€0/80 GE6G:LL PLPEILL LP9ZLL LYi9ZiLL S202/£0/80 06 6SZ NIWEY N1 34710M 6EVL  285520-G202
TINHYD LNNOW
GG¥0:L) $0:00:2) ‘IAV JONIANIJIANI

00:0 /€0 2£:0 000 8G:0 GZ0T/Z0/80  SS:vO:LL 6511021 20101 2O:LOLL $202/20/80 06 BSZINNLLE 9SSl  L¥1S20-5202
£6:80:/1 zZLLigl IAVY IONIANISIANI

00:0 €€ €8¢  00:0 650 G202/20/80 0}4:65:9L PGPL:9L L2iZLioL LZiZh9l §202/20/80 06 652 IDANW /M LLAYMHOIH  €£4620-6202
TINYYD
LINNOW ‘LS NIV
8l:vS:Gl ££:22°G) M ¥2S | (TaWVD

00:0 000 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ02/20/80 81156l ££:22:GI ££:22S1 5202/20/80 06 65¢ YOWEY LNNOW) ST3ANVH  8Z520-5202
ap:LZvlL 9t:SHEl TINHYD LNNOW

00:0 €00 €0:0 00:0 6G:0 G202/20/80 9viLZ:¥L 8P:Op:El SHOVEL SroviEl GZ0¢/20/80 ¥06 662 SIAcy ‘1S ¥vAa3D 09S £1¥520-5202
TANHVYD LINNOW
‘ISNIVW 3 £12
azvliel 6¥:96:21 [ (3aIWdYD LNNOW)

00:0 000 00:0 000 00:0 G202/20/80 9zZ:vlEl 67°95:21 67:96:21 SZ02/20/80 $06 6SC Sley IVHIANID ¥V 1104 1L0¥S20-G202

Zv/sq dya dy/sgu3/sa sa/s4d  pesold s49 les|p v s Iy u3 sd PoAIddY S4D nun Ns3 adA) [eo uopesoT #S40

69¢



6260 §20¢/80/60

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

8011

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cvisa

00:0

1G:0

Ly:0l

S0:0

610

c0:6

8l-}-

00:0

00:0

¢0:0

00:0

00:0

ceL

00:0

¥0:0
iyju3

00:0 1O ce0
16:0 00:0 9y
Lv:0L  00:0 oc:l
L0 90:0 90:92
61:0 00:0 116
¢0:6 000 LC:0
00:0 810 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
¢0:0 00:0 616
00:0 00:0 LG6Y
00:0 00:0 61°€
¢ciL 000 48y
00:0 000 AN
$0:0 000 00:0

dy/sq u3l/sa@ sa/sdd

GG:/£:60
§¢02/90/80
G265:80
§20¢/90/80

61:00:¢¢
§¢0¢/50/80
€E:€C:61
§¢0¢/S0/80
9g'vl:6lL
§¢0¢/S0/80
00:2€°4L
§202/50/80

9¢veCl
§¢0c/S0/80

££:0€:0L
$¢0¢/50/80

158560
G¢0¢/S0/80
£:20:80
$¢0¢/S0/80
£¢:¥5:L0
§¢0¢/50/80
¢0:6¢:0¢
§20¢/¥0/80
ve:soile
§¢0¢/v0/80

0€:Sc:Lt
G¢0¢/v0/80

1¢:10'9)
§20¢/¥0/80

peso|d sd4D

§G:/£:60

ce:81:80

61:00:¢¢

1€:€¢:61

oG vL6l

00:4€:L)

95:G¢:Cl

L€:0€:0)

£0:¥5:60

65-90:80

61:81:80

¢0:6¢:0¢

¥2:S0'L¢

0€:G¢c:LL

1¢:10:9)

Iea|d

£0:81:80 85:/0:80

v 1

6l {0 8

9€:8¥:L0

10-¥5:1¢

605161

1118681

6581141

vS:L2:CL

1520l

011560

9€:86:40

6G:90:80

6G:/€61

VZ:8G:S1L
N

¥£:9€:60

Sviiv:L0

vievile

05161

¢5:/G°81

1G60:LL

clgecl

pE:85:L0

2¢:0€6L

02:86:GL
u3

obey

£€:6¢:60

SvilviL0

vlev-ie
8G:vL-6l
[AAR ]

1660:L1

vS:L¢:¢h

L5:¢c:0L

011560

$€:85:20

65:90:80

LLvS6L

1¢0€:6)

Py:G0:LL

02'8G:G1

10-6¢-:60
§202/90/80
6L:€1:20
§20¢/20/80

l2d3a14
§20¢/S0/80
2S:81:81
§20¢/S0/80
Ge8y-8l
Sc0c/S0/80
0€:60:21
§¢0Z/S0/80

¥s:.gcl
G20c¢/S0/80

1S:¢e:0L
$20¢/50/80

01:16:60
$¢0¢/S0/80
Gi6¥:40
§¢0¢/S0/80
80:41:40
§20¢/S0/80
85:0G:61
S20Z/0/80
GlL:oge6l
S20¢/¥0/80

LeY0:L)

S20Z/v0/80

028591
§20¢/¥0/80

sg PaAL2ay 849

adonw

¥06

€06

€06

£06

S06

¥06

y06

v06

¥06

06

adon

506

Adon

€06
uun

6SC 3 AHEY

6SC ¥1SLv

65 ISNSEY

6SC MOMEY

65C ONVEY

65C DANEY

65¢ SlEv

65C SlEv

65 SleEy
6S¢ 10dey
6G¢ MOMEY
6S¢ 3TIMIEY

6S¢ sidcey

65¢ 3MHEY

69¢ 104EY

NS3 2dAL 11ed

59| Hodey avo

NT NN SYILNNH
/ IAY GNOWINVH
TANEYD LNNOW

‘1S MO0 WIH 9¢)
TANEYD

LNNOW ‘SLYLINN
N7 3470M OppL
TINHEVO LNNOW
‘1S aooMa3ay 0z
1S AvE / 3NV
JONIANILIAN]
1S NIV

3/ 3AV ANOWNVH
THH HOYNHD ‘ay
ATTIVA SHILYYD
GZ19 | LYVIN AFTIVA
THH HOYNHO ‘ad
ATTIVA SHILHYO
GzZ19 | LNV ATTIVA
TANEYO LNNOW
‘IS NIVW 3 212

[ ([AINAYD LNNOW)
TvHIANIO ¥V 1100
IAV ANOWWYH
INTSIT1TI M

IAY ONOWWYH
INTSITII M

IAY ANOWWVH

I M L AYMHOIH
TANYYD LNNOW
‘IJAY dOTIVD 60¥
JANYYD

LNNOW ‘LS NIVIN
M +2S | 1IWdYD
LINNOW) S33AYVH
FTAWHVYD LNNOW
‘IAV JONIAANA4IANI
2201

uoneso

¥¥8520-520¢

$£8520-5¢0¢

£18520-6¢0¢
1615¢0-520¢C
96.520-5¢0¢

¥84520-520¢

¢9.15¢0-5¢0¢

€¥.5¢0-6202

L7.LS520-520C
6¢/520-520¢
9¢.5¢0-6202
9896¢0-5202

¢895¢0-6¢0¢

$99620-6202

8696¢0-6¢0¢

#Sd40
6G¢



6¢:60 5¢0¢/80/60

8c:Gl:L

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-¥

Gl-€

00:0

90:9)

8¢€C

00:0

yeL

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

S0:0
dyjug

00:0 00:0 00:0

00:0 00:0 00:0

00:0 00:0 ¢s0
00:¥ 00:0 9¢:0
SL:€  00:0 vE:0

00:0 000 i
90:91L

00:0 6v'C

8¢¢ 00:0 €20

00:0 00:0 00:0
&L 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 8L:0

00:0 00:0 000

00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 ev:e
S0:0 00:0 00:0

Jy/squ3/sa €qQ/sdd

ccrvel
S¢0¢/80/80

8¢e6liLl
§¢0¢/80/80

rA 4 %4
§202/20/80
yy1661
G¢0¢/.0/80
otiev:8l
©202/.0/80
£y:ce:oL
§¢02/L0/80
Svicy:Sl
§202/L0/80
620l ¥l
G20¢/L0/80
yv:6€:60
G20¢2/L0/80
Leogiel
§¢02/90/80
cr8l6l
§20¢/90/80

ot 1061
§¢0¢/90/30

GE:91:Gl
S¢0¢/90/80
8l:elEl
§¢02/90/80

€0:e¥:60
G¢0¢/90/80

pasoj|d s40

6l 10 6

ceviiel Sogeel ¢0'6SCl L280Th

8€6L 1L

Sevlite

P 1S6L

obich:8l

E£y:€e:91

Sviey:Sl

62:0L:v7L

¥¥-6£:60

LE:9C61

cri8lLi6l

9t:10:61

GE9LG|

VAR AR

€0:C¥:60

1ea1)

s

YLELLL

00:6¢-61

6l'1€8l

90:4¢°G)

8G:1G€l

202260

€961

20:95:81

LTEE YL

1£:62:60
v

€9:95:0¢

00:5C:6)

¥0:82:81

¥5:9¢:91

00:L1SL

Ocev-el

158161

0S:L1:61

Lyovcl

9z°'6€:60
u3z

abed

12:80:ct

VLELLL

€1:96:0¢
00:G¢:61
¥0:82:81
¥5:92:91
00:L1:SL
0c61:cl
£0:¢e60
158161

0S:L1:61

¢0:95:81

FRAI% 8 48

Lpr0vgl

9¢:6€:60

1g80:Ct
§20¢/80/80

el
G20¢/80/80

16:65:0¢
§20¢/20/80
Yeve6l
§20¢/L0/80
0€:4¢-81
§¢02/.0/80
ov:sc9l
§¢0¢/.0/80
L1:80:G1
S202/20/80
LS81:CL
§¢0¢/20/80
202260
S20¢/L0/80
L5:8L:6L
§20¢/90/80
celli6l
§202/90/80

¢0:95:81
§20¢/90/80

PAASA SR 4%
G20z/90/30
8G:9¢:¢l
S20¢/90/80

9¢:6€:60
§¢0¢/90/80

sQ PaA@99Y S49

¥06

v06

€06

€06

906

S06

¥06

906

¥06

S06

§06

S06

€06

906

906
Hun

65 Sltv

B6GC SltEv

65¢ OdNIEY

65¢ NOdeEY

6Sc sldey

65¢ 104er

65¢ ONWeL

65¢C VONEY

652 ISNSEY

65¢ 104¢e¥

65C OANEY

69¢ SlEv

65¢ ZStEv

6G¢ OLVEY

65¢ SleEv

NS3 adAL j1ed

G91 Hodey Qvd

TINEVO
INNOW ‘¥ 13dVHO

SAAOTT LeCt

¥q
SMVO NIATS / AV
3ONIANALIANI
TNV

ANNOW ‘'SLYLINN
N7 3470M OvbL
TANEYD

INNOW ‘LS 3NId L0¥
RETE/A)

LNNOW ‘LS MVO 222
IAY AOOMAYM

I M LL AVMHOIH

M LL AVMHOIH

/ ANV AOOMAYH
IAY GOOMITONI

! M L AYMHOIH
3AV ANOWINYH

I M LL AVMHOIH
TANHYD LNNOW
40 ¥YIJOL 598
TIWYVYD LNNOW
‘LS LNNTVM P15

ayd

ATTIVA SHILHVD
/a4 N3 918
TANWYVD

INNOW ‘LS AMYIHD
221 | TOOHDS
AYVININT I3
TIWUVYD LNNOW
AAY AOOMAYH

I M LL AYMHOIH

dd
AJOMOIR 10 / ad

AITIVA SH3ILHVO

uoyeso]

¥¥1920-G20¢

6€1920-5202

£80920-5202
€10920-5¢0¢
$90920-5202
L¥09820-520¢
620920-5202
120920-520¢
£665¢0-5¢0¢
¥£6520-G¢02

££6520-5¢02

8¢65¢0-5¢0¢C

2885¢0-620¢

£18520-520¢

G¥86¢20-5¢0¢

#S40
65¢



62:60 5202/80/60 6L 10 0} ebed 69l yodey avo

E )} \e]
INNOW ‘LS NIVIN
62:0¢e:l¢ Svzce M 901 | TaNNVD

00:0 Zl2-l- 00:0 /20 00:0 G202/cL/80 6z:0g:1Le SpgzeiT CLegle Syiceiic G202/2Li80 ¥06 6SC SlEv INAOW Z3dIMS 669920-520¢
clelLl §G.0v:91 NT3sSOoM /ad

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20c/2Li80  ZLieliLlL G609l GG:0¥:9l §202/21/80 Y06 692 SlEv AITIVA SHILUVO  €£99920-5202
IH
8€:8l:cl LEZLEL HOMNHO ‘¥ ATTIVA

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/ZL/s0 geglicl leTlgl LETLEL §20c/el/80 G06 6SC Sleb SHIALHVYD 2959  219920-5202
SR ARTAR L0:6%:L) T1ANHYD INNOW ‘1S

00:0 90:0 90:0 00:0 LL€ §20¢/CLI80  glLw0:Z) 0€:¢5LL vTgs bl veieshl G202/ZLI80 G06 6SC ViV AOOMITENVYH 908 965920-520T
ad
pLiLLiLL 12:80:L 1 ATTIVA SYILYVO

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/CLiI80 gL:LLiLL 12:80°L} 12:80°11 Y AVTAT AN 0] G06 6S¢ Slevr / QY W13 ©l9 265920-5202
da
9-8€:0L ¢C6e0l AHOMOIH 10/ ay

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 G20Z/2L/80 9f:8g:0l 22801 22:68:01 S20¢/CL/80 G06 69¢ SleEv ATTIVA SHILHEVYO  985920-G20¢
TIH
LLvbiLe ev-cele HOYNHD ‘d AAVA

00:0 S0:0 GS0:0 000 81:0 GZOZ/LLI80 LL:pbiLe 90:€E:Le LOEE L LOEEILT Gc0¢c/1 1/80 ¥06 652 SlEv SHILHVD 2959 ££5920-5202
G0:15:02 . 25-10:02 N7 11Ao44vad

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 10:0 Gc0C/L1I80 S0:LS:02 €5-10:0¢ €5:10:0¢ G20Z/1LL/80 06 6S¢ SlEV /1S dAOOMA3IY 615920-5202
13INNYO
INNOW ‘LS SSIHJAD
vE'8Y:61 LSvv6L LiE | HOYUNHD

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/LLI80  vE8Y6L LS-v76) LSvY61 S20Z/L 180 906 662 Sley L1S1idva IA0HD MVO 815920-6202
80:20:61 y0:Zh:8L 1S NIVIN 3/ 3AVY

00:0 8l 8L 00:0 8z G20e/L1L/80 80:¢0:6l 0G:06:8l cciev:8lL ¢CEEV8lL S202/1LL/80 906 6SZ3TAHEY JONIANIJAAN! £05920-6202
SygevL eveTvl AV IONIANIJIANI

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 G20c/LL/80 SpigevL evieg vl eV ET vl G2oz/LL/80 G06 6SC Sliev INTSITI3 3 994920-5202
8L:9¢: L1 ¥S:LC L) JAINYVYD INNOW “HID

00:0 000 00:0 000 00:0 G2oc/LLI80  Z1:9€:LL ¥6:L2 VL ¥S:L2: 1L G202/11/80 G06 6S¢ SlEv AHOMOIH Q710 €Sv  6¥$920-5202
8voc:gl 926181 AV FJONIANILIANI

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20¢/80/30 81:0¢€:8L 92618l 9z:61:81 G20¢/80/80 G06 6S¢ SlEv [ H1D AHOMOIH 10  961920-5202
RE}S\ve!
INNOW ‘LS AMYIHD
22} 1 100HDS
L¥:62:Gl 6281l ALVAININTTT

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 G2¢0¢/80/80 01625l 62:8Y-vl 62:8v11 Gc0¢/80/80 €06 6SC ZSEv T1INHVYO INNOW  691920-5202

gv/sa Jv/u3 Jy/squl/sq €a/S40  Pesold sS40 1es[9 [A 4 s7 Iy u3j sd POAI3Y 84D Nun NS3 2dAL ed uoneso] #S40

6G¢



6¢:60 520¢/80/60 6l JO L ebed 69l Hodey avo

BE}E) 0]
INNOW ‘LS AHYIHD
/21 | 700HDS
Ge-0e:cl 8G:/1:¢CL AYVIN3IW313

00:0 £€:9 €€9 000 |74 §20¢/¥L/80 gg:0e:ClL GS62-:cl ¢Z:eccl c¢ceeel G202/v1/80 G06 6SCINNLLE J3WHVYDO INNOW  $88920-5202
12:0€:60 91:01:80 TAINEYD LNNOW

00:0 100 100 000 vy GS202/vLI80 Y2280 Lyrl80 OvvL:80 O¥F¥1:80 S20e/rL/80 G06 6SC1Iv4LY "yd I3ISSYMIH 8%9 858920-520C
TUH
0c¢:6c:ec 1£:80:¢¢ HOYNHD ‘Y AJTIVA

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 000 G202/€L/80 02:6¢:2C 1€:80:¢¢C 1€:80:¢¢C G20ze/eL/80 906 6SC Slev SHIALYVD 2959 ££8920-G202
TUH
HOYNHD ‘ay ATTIVA
SHIALHVYD 6069
8€:10:2¢ yy69:1¢ | HOYNHD 181idve

00:0 G- 00:0 SO0 00:0 Geoe/eL/80 8e:10:2e vy65:1¢ 6V6S1C Vvi6S-ie §20c/elL/80 V06 6S¢ SleEv FIVANIIHD 0€£89¢0-5202
INAYA A4 0¢-ce-le JAV IONIANIJIANI

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ0C/EL/80  gTiiyiLe oc-ee-le ocee-Le G20c/el/80 ¥06 6S¢ Sltv /1S AOOMA3IY +28920-5202
12:0%-:0C L1:g€.0C JAVY IONIANI4IAN]

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 gc0c/elL/80  Lg:0v02 111€€:02 LL:ge:02 G202/eL/80 906 6S¢ SlEy /1S A0NYdS  £18920-520¢2
12:21:02 8E'1G61 Hd 1S3 SANOr/ ay

00:0 9¢-\¢- 00:0 92:0¢ 00:0 Geoc/eL/80  LgizL:0T 8€:16:61 ¥0:21:0C 8E'1G61 G202/ELI80 706 6S¢ SlEv AITIVA SY3LYVD  018920-5202
0r:L0:61 Gc-le8l TANHYD LNNOW

00:0 8Ll 8L:L 000 ¢L0 Gc0c/eL/80  ovi20'61 qgcegl Leilegl Letlesl G20c/eL/80 06 6SC ¥4ScCL ‘1S 1SNO01 ¥EL  608920-5202
LeLeld 62-¥19l I13NYVYO

00:0 gee gse 000 64 Ge0e/cL/80 8z:6E:9L €0:0¢:91 80:91:91 80:9L:91 G202Z/E /80 06 6S9C UNNLY INNOW ‘1S AVd 9% 66.920-5202
90:€L:9t 20:L0'91 TAWHYD LNNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 Geoe/el/80  90:¢L:9) 20:,0:91 ¢0:L0:91 G20c/EL/80 706 6SC VOINEY ‘NT13410M S2¥L  86.920-5202
€0:8%:91 81:G0:91 13NEYO LNNOW

00:0 9lL:€lL  9LEL 000 8lL:¢ G20Z/el/80 €0:81:9L 22:22:91 90'60:9) 90:60:91 §202/€1/80 906 6S¢ JHLEY ‘IAV LNONTI9 901  /6.920-5202
FASR 1A 90:1G:vL TINEVYD LNNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 Ge0e/eL/80  /G:gLiGL 90:1LGvL 90: 1S v) S20c/E1/80 06 692 T104dEV ‘AAY VINVILY ¥22 68/920-6202
TINHVYD LNNOW
‘AAV QOOMAVH
1484 44 cevsLe 90l | SLHvd

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G¢02/2LI80 zv:ev:ee cevsile cevsle Gc02/c1/80 ¥06 6S¢ dNdEY OLNY AT1I3¥0  102920-520¢2
TANEYD
INNOW ‘1S NIVIN
€CES'LC a4 M 90} [ T3NNVYD

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/ZLI80 €Z:¢S:L¢e (YA 4 A (AN §20¢/21/80 #0686 692 SlEv INNOW Z3adIMS 00/920-S202

Zvisa Jyju3a Iy/squl/sq €Q/sdd paso|] S40 lel|n (A4 1 Iy u3z SO PIARIY S40 jun NS3 adAL e uopesoT] #S40

65¢



6¢:60 §20¢/80/60 6l 4O Zl 9bed 69l Woday av0

TANAVD LNNOW
‘LS NIV 3 /12
60:9¥:2¢ 81:9¢:1¢ [ (F3WHYD LNNOW)
00:0 €l 00:0 €00 00:0 Gc0c¢/al/80  60:91:22 8¥:9¢€'1Z 1S5'9¢:le 8¥9E:ld §20¢/51/80 ¥06 65¢1007EY IVHINIO ¥VT1104d  690£20-5202
1INHVO

INNOW ‘LS NIV
M 9ev | (TINAUVYD

gc9¢'le 9LiieLe INNOW) HSYM

00:0 o 00:0 €00 00:0 G6202/S1/80 Gz:eg:le 9L:te e elilele 9l:lele Gc02/S1/80 06 6S¢ Sleb dvO aNA v 9Ny 990/20-G202
TH
1G:200¢ or-€s:6l HO¥NHD ‘Y AFTIVA

00:0 Pl 00:0 ¥0:0 00:0 5202/S1/80 SZ:90:02 oV:€S:6L PFESEL OVES:BL §202/S1/80 Y06 692 SlEv SHIALHVYD 2989 §50.20-G20C
62-9v-L1 61621 N1 7tgod44va

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20e/SL/80  BeZ:9vLL 61641 61:6ELL G20e/S1/80 ¥06 6S¢ Sleb /1S A0OOMAIY ££0.20-5202
00:50:91 vr6cGl =\

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 G202/SLI80  00'S0:9L 76261 626l G202/S1/80 706 6S9C SlEv ONOWIWVH / LS MVO 810.20-5202
8L:8L:GlL 50161 T3INEVYO LNNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 G202/SLI80  L1:8L:GlL ¥S-:01:Sl ¥S0L:GlL Gcoe/si/80 06 69C SlEv ‘JAV ONOWIWVH SLZ  £10/20-6202
73INAVYO LNNOW
‘IS NIVN 3 2L2
8¥:10:Zl ZeesthL | (73D LNNOW)

00-0 4" ¢¢-l 000 0S:0 G20¢/SLI80 8y LogL pyaSiLL CCvsiLL ¢Sl G20z/sL/80 €06 69C UNNLY IVHINAD ¥VT110A  666920-5202
0S4 1:2e SELGLe 13IWHYO LNNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G202/P\L/I80 0SiL1:¢e GELGTLe GE1Gi1Le S202/¥1/80 #06 6SCISNSEY ‘1S NIV M 091 996920-5202
PA AN rd clvele JAVY LINOWT3g

000 00:0 00-0 00:0 00:0 S20cC/vLI80  1G:i€:12 cLvele ch-vele g20e/vL/80 906 6S¢ SlEv /LS HO338 ¢#6920-5202
cl9LLe GG:60:le da LIONYY / AV

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 Geoc/vLig0 glL9L:Le GGG0'LC 66601 Gc0c/v1/80 706 6SC SlEV JON3IANI43AN]  1#6920-G202
TANEYO
INNOW ‘LS NIVIA
L1'6ELL 9LvlL:LL M ¥2S | ITNEVYD

000 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 Sc0C/yLI80  Z1L6EiLL alLylLiLL aLpLL) G20¢/v1/80 06 6S¢ SlEv LNNOW) STIANVH  +16920-6202
A3NEVYO
INNOW ‘IAVY
JON3IAN3IJIANI 0SS
6£:85:G1 /€82Sl | LSIAOHLIW a3LINN

00:0 0c¢9 00:0 0cs 00:0 G20e/v1Li80 6£:8G:GL /€82Gl LGEEGlL LEBCSI G20c/v1/80 906 6S¢ Sltv T3INAVYO INNOW  $06920-5202
90:8L:¥L 20:0L:vL TIWEVO LNNOIW

000 00°0 00:0 000 00:0 S20¢/¥1/80 90:8L:tL 0 0Lyl c0:0L:vL G20c/v1/80 G06 6G¢ Slev ‘1S ¥V1dOd 225 $68920-620C

cv/sa Jy/ug Jy/squl/sg sq/sd0 Paso|) S40 Je3|) [A 4 $7 v u3 SA PIAIRIIY S4D jun N3 adAL (eD uoneso” #S40

64¢C



6260 5¢0¢/80/60

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

91:09

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cvisa

00:0

LEE

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

L0l

oc:vv:k

L¢- 8y~

00:0
Iyjug

00:0 00:0 6¢'6
€€ 00:0 €20
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 ov:0
00:0 00:0 €00
00:0 00:0 Zl:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
L0l 000 oLy
oc:vy:l  00:0 210
00:0 leily 00:0
00:0 00:0 00:0

Jy/s@ u3/sa@ sqQ/sd0

vli6c:6l
Gc0c/61/80
vel 8l
§202/61/80

¢S'8¢iSl
§20¢/61/80

€0:vL:0L
Gc0¢/61/80

0€:81:01
§¢02/61/80
ov:91:60
S¢0c/61/80

00:6¢:8L
§¢0c/81/80
9€:LE:LL
§¢0¢/81/80
Sgiee9L
G¢0c/81/80

0£:8¢'S|
§¢0¢/31/80

80:6L:¥L
§20¢/81/80
cl:8ciol
S¢0¢/81/380
¥0:50:01
Gc0c/81/380
¢c:L0€e
Sc0¢/G1/80

pesol) 40

£1:8¢:81

yreLel

¢5'8¢:Sl

€0:v1:0L

0€81:0L

Se¥l60

Sl:l¢8L

€0:viLY

geeegl

0€£:8¢'S1

9GS vvElL

10:0¥:0L

¥0:G0:01

¢e1oee

1ean

6L {0 €l

01:¢c8l

€1:08:L)

yeieevl

LG¥0:0L €1:1¥'60 Sevl60

vv6l:81

LLOLiLL

8¢-1€:91

1284445

Lgceel

9g:le:0l

11:00:80

10:8%'¢¢
E 4

9g:9v:L1L

S€:/¢:60

112160

og:eel

91:/¥:80

80:8¥:80

u3g

abey

0i4:ce8l

oL el

yeceyl

Ge:2€:60

GEv1:60

L1:21°60

yi:6L:81
bLiOL:LY

8c:le9l

1284441

og-leel
91:/¥:80
1¥:00:80

10:8¥:2C

Lyicegl
Gc0c/61/80
ELiovLL
S20c/61/80

veieevl
§¢02/61/80

65:9€:60
$20zZ/61/80

cerl:60
S¢0c/61/80
S0:Z1:60
G20¢/61/80

yyi6l:8lL
§20¢/81/80
bLi0L:LL
§¢0¢/81/80
8CLE9L
G¢0¢/81/80

Yivyivi
§20z/81/80

0c:LL:EL
Sc0¢/81/80
65:9¥:80
§20¢/81/80
L¥:00:80
§¢0¢/81/80
10:8¥:¢ce
§202/S1/30

SQ PaA99y S49

906

€06

€06

S06

¥06

¥06

906

906

906

£06

06

506

¥06

¥06
nun

69¢ VLY

6S¢ ANrey

65¢

zSey

6SC 1ONVEY

69¢

Siev

65¢ OANEY

65¢

6S¢

65¢

65¢

S1Ev

S1Ev

Sley

ZSeY

65¢ dXOLv

65CIONVEY

65¢ VOWEY

65¢ VOWEY

NS3 2dAL 11ed

69| wodey Qv0

TINEYD LNNOW

“Hd T1H I1dVYIN 6051
TIWHYD LINNOW ¥Aa
134NV 34TOM €92
TINYYD

INNOW ‘1S A¥YIHD
221 1 1O0OHDS
AYVININITS
TIWHYD LNNOW
JINHVYD LNNOW

‘1O SMOAavaw
3SINNNS 801

N1 SONINCS
MOQVIW / IAY
JONIANIAIANI
IAV AOOMAYH

/M LL AVMHSIH

TIH
HOYNHO ‘QY ATTIVA
SHILUVD 2959
JANHYD LNNOW
‘N7SIT3 3 2vE

IAV IONIANIL3ANI
I M b AVMHOIH
TAINEYD

LNNOW ‘LS AMNIHO
22\ | T00oHDS

PR NEERE!
JANHVO LNNOW
TIH

HOYNHD ‘ay AITIVA
SHILYVYD 6185
JIANHYD LINNOW

‘1S aoOMaTd b1 2
M LL AVMHDIH

/ IAY AOOMITONI
IAV ANOWWVH

/1S NIV 3

uojjeso-]

§61.20-5202

¢6v.20-620¢

¢lv12¢0-620¢

¢S¥120-5202

L¥v.20-520C

I L20-520¢

06€.2¢0-5¢0¢2
91€.20-520¢2

¢.€.20-5¢02

25€.4¢0-G5¢0¢

£€€120-620¢
¥6¢.20-5¢0¢
98¢1¢0-620¢2

§10/20-5¢0¢

#8490
6G¢



6¢:60 5202/80/60

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

S0:0

€0:0

00:0

00:0

65:0

€0:0

¥0:0

(4410

120

8L

00:0

00:0

0c:b

(444
Iyju3

G0:0 00:0 00:0
€0:0 00:0 ¥L:0
00:0 00:0 00:0
00:0 000 00:0
65:0  00:0 €€0
€0:0 00:0 00:0
¥0:0  00:0 00:0
¢¢:0 000 00:0
l¢:0 000 00:0
00:0 8¢:0l Lyl
00:0 00:0 90
00:0 00:0 000
0zl 000 FAR 4
¢y 00:0 61:0

dy/sq u3/sa sa/sdd

Y0:0:€1
§20¢/1.¢/80
¥S:8L:0L
§20¢/12/80
e€v:ovce
§202/0¢/80

1S¥LiLe
§202/02/80

GG:6¢-L1
§¢0¢/0¢/80

6¢:¢L:Sl
G¢02/0¢/80
[ARa e’
§20c/0¢/80
2oyt
§¢02/02/80
6LiLe L1
§¢0¢/0¢/80
6¢:65:¢C
G20¢/61/80

11:60:0C
G¢0¢/61/80
S:6E:61
G¢0¢/61/80

8417561
G20¢/61/80
GE'0E6)
§20¢/61/80

posol) §40

¥0:0t:€1

¥5:8L:0L

£v:0¥:ec

So:€lile

§g:6¢:LL

6¢:clSl

Sy

ccovbL

6l-1e L

458 A% 44

11:60:0¢

Sy:6E6L

867561

Gei0e6l

Jes|n

s7

6l IO 143

0l:se:€ch

ov:SL:0l

v1:92:2¢

L1:80:1¢C

90:9¢:/1

oL:LEWL

ovLyLL

Levetl

¢s:8¢:LL

81:€S:1e

81:GE:61

olL:6e:6!

g£ec-lg6l
I

§0:5e:€l

LEG1:0L

L10:GE:LL

L0°1€¥)

9giLyLL

65:€e L1

1€:8¢:11

9i:¥0:ce

05:2£61

LPi9L6L
ug

obey
go'geel
S06eEl §¢0c/Le/80
€2:S1:0}
L€:Gl:0L G202/12/80
v1:92:ce
v1:9¢:ce §202/02/80
21:80%1¢
L1:80°1¢C G20¢2/02/80
veveLlL
L0:6¢ L) G20¢/02/80
L0°bEVL
FAVRAN 4% §202/02/80
9e v
9Lyl §20¢/02/80
6G€E L
6G-€ELL G¢02/0¢/30
LegeiL
LE8Ci L1 §¢0¢/0¢/80
20:9%:12
81-€G:L¢ G20c/61/80
GG:2S61
10:6G'6) §20¢/61/80
81:GE:61
8L:GE:61 G202/61/80
£eee6l
0G:.€61 G20¢/61/80
CGGlL6l
L9164 G20c/61/80

sg Pam93Y S49

S06

¥06

906

906

£06

£06

¥06

¥06

G06

906

€06

906

£06

906

}un N3 2dAy e

6SC SlEv

66C Slev

69¢ SlEv

65C S1Ev

65C OvEY

65C ZStv

65¢ Sl1Ev

6S¢ SlEv

6S¢ SlEv

65CMOISLy

6G¢ O4NIEY

65¢ Slev

65¢ dH1EY

6S5¢ dH1EY

G9| vodey avd

JIWHYD
LINNOW ‘LS NIVIA

M 0gZ | 30YN0S
1S¥14 sy3aang

1S gooma3zd

/N7 NIMOVHOOW
N1 71a044va

/ 1S aooma3ay
TINHYD LNNOW
‘ISNIVW 3 212

| (T3INUYD LNNOW)
B\ 2 EINELR anlelel
TIWHYD LNNOW ‘LS
NIVIN M 0EL | NOINN
11a340 NOZIHOH
TIWHYD

ANNOW ‘LS AYY3IHD
221 | TOOHDS
AYYINIWIT
TIWHYD LINNOW

1S NIVIA

M/ 3AY LNOW39
IAV GOOMITONT

/ M LL AYMHDIH
IAY AOOMIATONIT

/ LS NIVIN M
TIWHYD LINNOW “¥a
1S3HD AITIVA 001
TANYEYO LNNOW
‘IAV ANOWINVH
2121 9 NOILYLS SW3
ALNNOD SNIMMVYH
1S HOYIg

/ IAY AOOMITON3I
TANNYO

AINNOW '1S NIV

M zst | (anavo
INNOW) NOHLYHVYI
JAWEYD LNNOW
‘IAV NOSHI443r 90€

uopeso]

60.4420-G20C
189220-520C

£59.¢0-520¢2

6£9.20-520C

119/420-6520C

685.¢0-520¢C
11.G/20-G20¢C
696/¢0-5¢0¢
896/20-G20C

616/¢0-G20¢

206.120-5¢0¢

§06.2¢20-G¢0¢2

¥0S.¢0-520¢

66v.20-520¢

#8440
6G¢



62:60 520¢2/80/60

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

8E:1LS

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9€-'G-

0c-e-

¥0:0

00:0

00:0

LviL

L¥:0

00:0

100
dy/ju3

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0

FAZA

L¥:0

00:0

20:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

oEy

0ce

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

10:0

150

00:0

vei

00:0

00:0

2061

00:0

veLt

€€:0

clil

00:0

¢0:0

dvy/s@ u3/sg@ sa/s3o0

ScerSt
S¢0¢/¥2/80

veiee vl
§20¢/v¢/80

€E91:Gl
§20¢/¢e/80

LeSTEl
§¢0c¢/ce/80
8¢:€C:0l
6¢0¢/22/80
G0'cy60
§20¢/2¢/80
80:¥¥:80
§20¢/ce/80

£0:2¥'80
Gc0c/ce/80
0€'¥0:2¢
G¢0¢/12/80
00¥¥ile
S¢0c/1¢/30
vL:0c:ie
S¢02/12/80
G¥'5l:0¢
§¢0¢/\2/80

Pr8LiG1L
§¢0¢/12/80

paso[D §40

GcerSt

vecevl

€e:91:G1

Leiseiet

8¢:€¢-0l

§0-2¥:60

80780

¥1-1¥'80

0€v0:ce

00:v¥iLe

vL:0¢:ie

S:Gl:0¢

bi:8L:G1L

Jeaj)

6L 4O Sl

FAZVA 1

proevl

91:65:60

2€'G€60

yliev80

¥2:90:80 ¥¢:G¥:L0 9vl:L0

v 7

LGi€2: 12

95:85:0¢

0s:¢i:0¢

el
Iy

Ge:0evl

viclel

¢SE0:01

£0:8€°60

0l:ey:80

¥0:91:1¢

§1:85:0¢

Seivevl
u3

afey

VA ZVA% 13

§c:0evl

vr0evL

ylclel
91:65'60
1€'6€60

0l:c:80

ovr1iL0
covbile
0:91:L¢
51:85:0C

0S:¢l:0¢

Sevevl

ov:LeGL
S202/ve/80

8¢6e vl
§20¢/¥2/80

vy:oevl
§¢02/2e/80

0s:0l:€l
§20¢/ce/80
91:65:60
$¢0¢/2e/80
2£:5¢:60
§¢0¢/cc/80
£0:€¢'80
§20z/2Z/80

orvl:L0
§20¢/cz/80
8¢:9¢:1¢
G20z/12/30
LeGLie
§¢0¢/12/80
€0:16:0¢
G20¢/1¢/80
05:¢l:0e
G20¢/1¢/30

ECVEYL
S202/1¢/80

sQ PoAIR9aY 49

¥06

€06

€06

06

S06

S06

S06

¥06

906

€06

906

906

€06
nun

65 SlEv

6SCINNLL6

65C ZStv

6GC ONVEY

65¢ SlEv

6G¢ Slevy

65¢ VILy

65¢ Sl1Ev

6SCIVHOEY

65¢C ODANEY

65¢ ANfEY

69C SlEv

69¢ ZSty

NS3 adA] jled

691 vodsy avo

JIWNYD
ANNOW ‘LS NIV

3 001 | TIVH ALID
TINEYD LNNOW
TINHEYD

LNNOW ‘1S NIV

M 9g¥ | (TINWHVYD
INNOW) HSYM

¥vo ana v gny
TANNVO

LNNOW 'LS AYYIHO
121 1 TOOHOS
AHVLININTT3
TINHVYD LNNOW
TANEYO

INNOW ‘LS NIVIN
3001 | TIVH ALID
JIWEYD INNOW
IAV IONIANIJIAN!
1 H1D AMOMDIH @10
3AY IONIANIALIANI
1 ¥ID AHOMOIH a10
TIWHYD INNOW ‘1S
QOOMIATFNVY 905
TANHYO

INNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M 0gz 1 3049N0S
18414 s¥3aing
TINEYD LNNOW ‘Had
139NV 34T0M €92
1S QvINNI / QY
ATTIVA SHILHVYD
TAWYYD LINNOW ‘Ha
7IYNYI I4TOM €92
JAVY IDONIANIHIANI
/ ¥d L1ONYY
REME )

INNOW ‘LS AYMMIHD
/21 | TO0OHDS
AHVINIWIIT
TFINEYD LNNOW

uoneso]

901820-5202

6608¢0-G20¢

¥68120-620¢

L¥8.20-520¢
018.¢0-520¢
$08.20-520¢

1642¢0-620¢

88..20-520¢C
99.4¢0-5¢0¢2
£9//¢20-5¢0¢
66./20-G20¢2

§6/1¢0-5¢0¢

£¢.12¢0-5¢0¢

# 840
6G¢



6¢:60 5¢0¢/80/60

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

20:61

00:0

00:0

00:0

L)

00:0

00-0

¥S:0L

S0:0

90:0

00:0

1€-:0¢-

00:0

[orAR A
Ayju3

20’61 000 120
00:0 000 000
00:0 000 000
00:0 000 10:0
00:0 100 000
000 0000  ¥SiL
00:0 000 000
¥5:0L 000 220
500 000 000
90:0 00:0 000
00:0 000  ¥€0
00:0 ZE:6L 00:0
00:0 000 000
00:0 €272l 000

dy/sQ u3/sa sa/sdd

9¢1G:LL
G20¢/52/80
01:45:94
§¢0¢/5¢/80

€¢:81°Gl
§20¢/52/80
8¢:00:v1
§20¢/5¢/80

ccovel
§20¢/5¢/80
FASHGION 4F
§¢0¢/5¢e/80

LS L2l
§20¢/S2/80

8¢:6e:cl
§¢0¢/S¢/80
Lcee:LL
§¢0¢/5¢/80

8¢:¢0:) 1
§¢0¢/S2/80
cy-0e:20
§¢0¢/S2/30
crivlile
§¢0c/¥e/80
8L:LEWGL
§¢0¢/¥e/80

0eseiLL
S¢0c/ve/80

pPaso|) §40

CrAl A

014591

£¢8L:Sl

8¢:00:%1

ccoviel

8¢:0¢:¢)

1G:L¥:C)

8€:6¢:cl

lc6eLE

8¢:¢0:L 1

cyi0e:L0

crivlile

8l:LE6L

0c:Ge L)

1es[)

s

6l {0 9l

AR IA

117169}

cSEepl

glierel

€eceel

veLeel

86:GECl

Ag%4s

oL:8e:tl

L¥:2G:0})

9Z:1:0¢

81:8¢:61

811021
i

60:L1:L1

ovice:el

€6:00:¢}

S0:8¢:1 1

§€:2G0l

€0:10:L¢

LpiELiL)
u3z

abed

60:L1:LE

L1691

s eey)

€lLgrel

€eeeel

veleel

86:GE:Cl

£5:00:¢1

S0:8¢:LL

G€:¢S01
y1:82:20
9¢:Lv:0C

81:8¢:61

81:10:LL

8v:ol:LlL
§202/52/80
L1191
G20c/5¢/80

[AR% N 43
§¢0¢2/S2/80
clierel
§202/5¢/80

€eceel
§20¢/5¢/80
ov:glel
S202/S¢/80

86:Ge¢Cl
§202/52/80

1€:00-¢l
G¢0¢/5¢/80
S0:8¢:}1
$¢02/5¢/80

Gg:¢G:01
§¢0¢/5¢/80
0%:42:20
§20¢/Se/80
9¢:lv:0c
S20¢/ye/80
81:8¢:61
S20¢/¥e/80

8L10LL
§20¢/¥e/80

sQ PaM223Y 4D

S06

S06

€06

¥06

¥06

906

Y06

06

¥06

906

adon

¥06

Y06

¥06
nin

652 5TIHAEY

6SC¢ SlEv

65C 7Sty

69¢ SlEv

65c Slev

6SCIVIHLY

65¢ Sltv
E|

OVIAvd

AL

65¢ 3d0Ad

6SC SILEV

69¢ S1Ev

6SC3THHEY

65¢ SlEv

6SC SlEv

65¢ Sl1Ev

NS3 adAL les

691 Hodey avo

1S 39N¥dS
/ LS 30N¥dS

1S

HO338/ 3AVY ¥3IA0QA
TNV

LINNOW ‘LS A¥YIHO
22\ | TOOHOS

P NENERE]
TIANHYD LNNOW
TANEYD LNNOW

‘1S NIVIN M OEE
TANNYO

LNNOW ‘1S NIV

M 25 | anyvo
LNNOW) S33axVH
TNV

LNNOW ‘N1 AAI €25
TINHYD LINNOW

‘IS NIVWN 3 12

| (93D INNOW)
IVH3NID ¥v110ad

TANNYO
ANNOW ‘LS 3NId 6V€
TAWYYD LNNOW

1S I0NUS L¥S
TANEYD LNNOW
‘ISNIVN 3 212

[ (AIIWEVYD INNOW)
IYHINTD ¥y 1104d
¥Q 1S3 saNor / ay
AITIVA SHILHVD
3AV INOWI3g

/ 1S NIV M
TANEYD LNNOW ‘8a
AHOMOIH 310 916
ya

ISYHOYIAIN / O

AJTIVA SH3I1HVYD

uoneso]

L¥2820-520C

¥€£¢820-G20Z

€12820-520¢

£0¢82¢0-5202

¥02820-520¢C

£02¢8¢0-520¢

0028¢0-520¢

5618¢0-5202

061820-G520C

981820-G20¢
1918¢0-620¢
8€18¢0-G202

22182¢0-G20¢

111820-6202

#8440
66¢



62:60 G202/80/60 6L 4O Ll 9bed g9l voday avo

L0:4S€L £2:8¢:€l J13NEVYO INNOW

00:0 €0:0 €0:0 000 00:0 G202/82/380 L1:9S'EL 9c2:8cel €C8C:el €c8eel G¢02/8¢/80 006 6Sg¢ 104€y  ‘3IAV ANOWWVH 2ZF 185820-6202
6G:2¥-L0 01-:0%:20 JINEVYD INNOW

00:0 S0:0 G0:0 000 00:0 Gc02/82/80 e6#:2¥: L0 GL:0v:Z0 OL:OV:Z0 OL:0¥:L0 G20¢/82/80 906 6S¢C Slev ‘IAY ANOWWVYH €LZ  21$820-5202
L2061 95:¥Z61 T1INEVYD INNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 101 G¢02/L2/80 |2:0v6L 1G.SC'61 1S:6¢6l §20¢2/.2/80 €06 6S204NISy  'IAV ANOWWVH ¢2F £08820-5202
T13NEVYD
INNOW ‘LS AYHAHO
/2l | TOOHOS
8¢ L0061 peilerL ALVININTF

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 10:0 GZoZ/L2/80 g€£:/0:G) [eleH RN 4} [l RN G202/.2/80 €06 6SC ZSEv I1FNIVYD LINNOW  €/+8¢20-5202
TINEVYDO LNNOW
82:ce Ll 26501 ‘AAY JONIANIJIANI

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 00:0 Ge0¢e/L2/80 gzeeLL ¢e:8S:01L ¢E:6G:0L Gc0¢e/.2/80 906 6S2 SlEv Sty 9v820-G20C
20:6¢:01 L€:22:60 JAY FONIANILIAANI

00:0 0S-.L- 00:0 059 00:0 6¢0¢/L2/80 Z0:62:0L 1€:¢¢-60 L2660 1€:22:60 §¢0¢/.2/80 906 6S9C SlEV /€A SUVO NIAIS 621820-S202
21:90:60 91:25:80 IAY AOOMAWH

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20¢/42/80 21:90:60 9:.S:80 9b:25:80 G202/.2/80 906 6SC¢ SlEv I M L AVMHOIH  €21820-G202
81:6G:81 ye6v8l TANHEYD INNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 000 810 G¢0c/9¢/80 81:GS:8lL 220581 7cT-05:8l §202/9¢/80 G06 6S2ISNscy ‘LS NIVIN M ZLE €£2£820-G202
62:25:Gl 65yl Q) JAVY AOOMAYA

00:0 vev vZy 000 8Pl §¢0¢/9¢/80 62:2S'St LLELSPL LP:9Pivl Ly:Qvivl G202/9¢2/80 906 652 OAWEY I M LLAVMHOIH S1£820-G202
JANEYD
INNOW ‘1S AYY3HD
12} | TOOHOS
26yl yeZevl PV ANNEERE]

00:0 €10 €L:0 000 00:0 G20¢/9¢/80 zZzZ'6¥vlL L0€EvL ¥SCeEVL PSCEVL G202/92/80 €06 69¢C ZSEv T3INAVYO LNNOW  Z+£820-5202
£45:11:80 6%:2€:20 IAY AOOMIATONS

00:0 10°1 20:L  00:0 90:0 G2¢02/92/80 /G:11:80 20:7€:L0 GS:¢E-L0 SG:¢e-L0 G¢0¢2/9¢/80 006 652 ODAWcL /M LL AVMHOIH 882820-G202
TINEYD
LINNON ‘1S NIVIA
00:65:12 le9vi1e M 0zZ¥ | (1aWdVYD

00:0 6g-L- 00:0 6¢g£0 00:0 §202/5¢/80  00:8S:LZ LEOQYILE 9Livile LE9vi1Le §¢0¢/sc/s0 €06 6SZC Slev LNNOW) AYMENS  £92820-5202
9¢..¥'02 ¥5:65:81 JINEVD LNNOW

00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 1G22 G202/5¢/80 €E:GL6l SpL06F SPL06L §202/6¢2/80 G06 6SZ ¥MIS/y 'HQ SHVO NIAIS 229 /62820-5202
8E¥E Ll 200221 NTNNY SHILNNH

000 ZLl-9- 00:0 ZLL:G 910 G¢0¢/GC/80 JeipeilL 81:0¢-LL S€G2:LlL 8L0C:LL G20¢/92/80 G06 69¢ SlEv / AAY ONOWWVH 2¥2820-520¢7

Zv/s@ Jyju3a Jy/squl/sa $q/S40 P9sol|d 84D 1es|d [A s7 Iy ug SA P3AI923Y S40 nun Ns3 adAQ qied uoyesoT #5490

6G¢



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cv/sa

6¢-60 §20¢/80/60 6L IO gL ebed
§¢:0 4" 82:0 €5:0 90:¢ [AN]"
(W (w)
4B3]J/Z3AILY (W) zoauy/dsia (W) Zeartv/seT (n) wo/enly (W) eAlIy/dsIQ  9AlIY/aINOIUT
awl) abetsay awiy abelany awi] abeiony aw] abesany o) abelany awi] abelany
0z:vv-1 00:0 1Ly 00:0 15:6¥ 00:0 SS:€0:¥ M:oL:9
(W) aawIy/dsia N) sALLg/dsid (W) Juzidsia (W) Juz/dsig (W) dsig/sdD (W) dsiass49 () Zaausy () aALy
awl] xely awil Ul Suli] xely swll UliN awl] xeN swil ully /dsigaunl jejol /dsigawil [ejoL
cl:8y6l 00716}
1G:01 4501 000 960 G¢0¢/62/80 ¢l 816l €6:62:61 98vl:6) 9516l §¢0¢/6¢/80 G06 6SCMOMEY
GG:€0:61 A 4841
00:0L  00:0L 000 210 Gc0c/6¢/80 GS€0:61 65:16'81L 6G°1¥'8l 6G:1¥8l G202/6¢/30 G06 6SZ WD
olLee8l 20:8¢e:L1
pS'8 98 00:0 00 §2¢0¢/6¢/80 01:€€:81 9G:.¥:L) ¢06eLl C06ELL G20¢/6¢/80 S06 6SC ANrey
L2'6€:SL 62-eCvl
80:0 80:0 00:0 00:0 Gc0¢/6e/80  [Z:6E:S) PAR X238 4 B TS 5198 4 S CTA S 1 4% §20¢/6¢/80 €06 6SC ZSEv
218521 6v-¥ECL
€2 €¢:. 000 L0°L §c02/62/80 L1:SS:¢Cl gLericl 0S:Ge¢l 0S9:5e¢h §¢0c¢/62/80 Y06 6S¢ dYlEy
9G:Lv:CL €2-15:01
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 §¢0¢/6¢/80 ov:ig:¢t €C:15:0) £C:1S:01 §20¢/62/80 ¥06 6S¢ 104EY
60:0%:60 968160
0cc 0¢:¢ 00:0 8¢:0 §¢0¢/6¢/80  60-0%-60 G160 1£:61:60 ¥€:6L:60 §20¢/6¢/80 Y06 6S¢ dvEY
96:2€:80 2e:9e'80
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G¢02/6¢/80 95:.£:80 CE:9€:80 CE:98:80 §20¢/6¢/80 ¥06 6S¢ SlEV
9¢'6¥:8) 9:0v:81
Lyl Lyl 000 0 G20¢/8¢/80 9E'61:8l LLEY:8L 0El¥:8L OE: L8l S202/8¢/80 G506 6S¢ OvEY
0G:0L:ZL 0v:20:21
€0:0 €0:0 00:0 00:0 §¢02/82/80  Ly:0L:LL €V:20:L1 O0v:20:LL O:20:Ll §20¢/8¢/80 S06 6S¢ Slep
0€:0¢:S1 0158258 41
€0:0 €0:0 00:0 00:0 G¢0¢/8¢2/80 81:0¢:Gl CEVEYL 0EWEPL OEVEDL G¢0¢/8¢/80 €06 6SC ZStv
Iyjuz  Iy/sq u3/sad Ssa/S40  P9sold €40 1e31d [A 4 s i u3 Sd PaAlaIaYy S40 nun Ns3 adAL jied

9Ll

59} vodey avo

§S:0

921

(w) (W) dsia/s4o
ajnoJugjdsigq awl] abelsAy

awi] abelany
(33N 4 274
() anoauz

9G:Ely
(w) dsia

/dsig awil |eyol /S4D swil fejol

TINYYD LNNOW
‘IAVY ¥3IAOA €29
TANEYD LNNOW

‘LS HO3A3d 2¥s
JINEYD

LINNOW ‘LS W13 LIS
T3WHYD

ANNOW ‘LS AMYIAHOD
221 | T00OHOS
AUVINIWII3
TAWIYD LNNOW
TINEYD LNNOW
‘IAV ANOWWVYH 0£01
JIWHYD LNNOW ‘Had
AHOMOIH a0 t€5
TINHYO LNNOW “Hd
AHOMOIH Q10 €S
JIWHYD LNNOW

‘1D Y3ADNY S0E
RE[tS\e)

AINNOW ‘1S NIV

M ogz | 30dnos
1sH14 s¥3aing

1S NIVIA

3/ 3AY ANOWWVH
TANNYD

LNNOW ‘LS AMYIHD
/2L | TO0HDS
AHVINIWIT3

TINAVYI INAOW

uonesor]

sp1093Yy |eJ0 )
€.820-G202C
62.820-520¢

1¢.820-920¢

00£820-5202
£898¢0-5¢0¢2
1298¢0-520¢
1998¢0-5202

8598¢0-6¢02

£19820-520¢

809820-5¢02

8868¢0-G20¢

#S40
6S¢



6¢:60 5202/80/60 6L 10
€5:0 €51 1€:0
(W
Jes|Q/ZaALlY (W) zoalaydsig () ZoALIYAYET
awii} abesany auwly] sbeiany awl] abelany
0Z:vy:1 00:0 12:20°1 00:0 1S:6¥
(W) eAy/dsia (W) sAly/dsig (W) Ju3dsia () Juzidsia (W) dsig/is49
swijf xepw awij Uiy awi] xep awi] Wy aw] xew
00:0 00:0 00:0
(w)
1e3|J/ZaALY (W) zaanly/dsia (W) zaaudyage
awi] abelany aw) obeloAy aw) abelsony
00-0 00:0 00:0 00:0 80:1
(W) sAlIy/dsig n) aaMayjdsia (W) Juzjdsia  (wW)Juzdsia (W) dsiais40
awi] xep awi] ww awi] xew awi] uly awi] xe
12:20:L1
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 100 S¢02/80/80 12:L0:LL 10:S0:11
o-eeiLl
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 vo:lL Gc0d/L0/80 9tieeiLL
chcoblL
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 80:1 §202/20/80 cvieo:v)
¢v/sa I3 JIy/squ3l/sq sq/s4d0  P9sO|d S4D Jes|d (A s b4

6l eobeq 69| Hodey QvD
Skl 95:1 8G:0 6S:0 9z
() (w) (W) dsigss4o
(W) yo/eALy (W) salLy/dsiQ  9ALIy/3IN0OIUT alnoiuy/dsiqg aw ] abesany
awi] aberany auwi) obelony awi) abeloay awi) ebeiaay
00:0 €€l 05:92:L (481 & Lyces
(W) ds1ass40 (W) Zanury (W) ALy (W) snoaug (W) dsig
swi] wiy /dsig swiy ejo) /dsiq swil |ejol  /dsigawil[ejol  /S4D Swil [ejoL
0€e spiooay |ejof
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 0
(W) (w) (W) dsia/s490
{N) yo1/eALLY (W) ANy /dsIg  @AlNy/eInOIUT ajnosuzg/dsig owi] abesoay
aw| abeisay awi] sbelany aw] abelsoAy awlj abelaAy
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 ] 114
() ds1g/s40 (W) zanury (W) @AY (W) anoauz (w) dsiq
awil uly /dsigawi] [eyol (/dsigawi] |ejoL /dsiq awi] [ejol /S4D Swil jejoL
€ Sp1023Y {ejo L
90:S0: L1 ay 13dvHO
20:S0:LE §20¢/80/30 v06 €¢s Sslev S31va /1S NIVN  8€1920-S202
ATNASHID0H
829591 ‘M L1 AVMHOIH €91¥
2€:.591 G202//0/80  QdOW €25 3TMHEY | HOYNHO 3dOH  050920-5202
d00
€E0rEL AITIVA SHI1HVO
134348593 G202/C0/80 QdOW €28 3MEY /M LY AVMHOIH  011520-S202
ug sd PaAI9daY S49 yun Ns3 edAy led uopesoT #s40

€¢s



Hawkins County ECD

2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

CFS By ESN Type Department Summary Report

259

HAWKINS COUNTY SO
Call Type

911 UNKNOWN

ANIMAL COMPLAINT
BREATHING PROBLEM
DEATH INVESTIGATION
DISTURBANCE
DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE
FOLLOW UP
HARASSMENT

LE ALARM-PANIC

LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL
LE INFORMATION
MENTALLY ILL PERSON
OVERDOSE/POISONING
PATROL/PREMISE CHECK
PROPERTY DAMAGE
PROWLER

RECKLESS DRIVER
ROADWAY HAZARD

SEVERE WEATHER INCIDENT

SICK PERSON
SUICIDAL PERSON
SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
TRAFFIC STOP
WARRANT SERVICE
WELFARE CHECK
Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total

08/01/2025 - 08/31/2025

Count

DO DW= A a N A AN ad NN WU = ™

28

=8

.——_’__—_——_" e
AJG . RESV. W e

QAD e 'S

[ —=




259

CFS#
2025-025216

2025-025218
2025-025493

2025-025502

2025-025505

2025-025510

2025-025591

2025-025664

2025-025686

2025-025717
2025-025726
2025-025729

2025-025775

2025-025844

2025-025884

2025-025967

Location
613 CEDAR ST,

MOUNT CARMEL
613 CEDAR ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
428 BANNER CT,
MOUNT CARMEL
HORIZON CREDIT
UNION | 130 W MAIN
ST, MOUNT CARMEL
BIG ELM RD /
SENSABAUGH
HOLLOW RD

6753 CARTERS
VALLEY RD LOT 39,
CHURCH HILL

613 CEDAR ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
HARDEES (MOUNT
CARMEL) | 524 W
MAIN ST, MOUNT
CARMEL
HIGHWAY 11 W /
HAMMOND AVE
WOLFE LN /E ST

W ELLIS LN/
HAMMOND AVE

W ELLIS LN/
HAMMOND AVE

5901 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

HAMMOND AVE /

HUNTERS RUN LN

5603 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH

HILL

CHOO CHOO
TRAILER PARK | 6339
CARTERS VALLEY
RD LOT 5, MOUNT
CARMEL

Hawkins County ECD
2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

Call Type ESN Unit

43PRO'259 343
43PTL 259 345
43ANC1259 340
43TS 259 338
43TS 259 340
43DIS 259 340
43DIS 259 340
43RKLE259 HCSO
43RKLE259 HCSO
43MEN 259 354
43WCK 259 336
43FOL 259 349
43FOL 259 311
43RKLE259 HCSO
43WS8V 259 373
43INFC259 333

CFS Received Ds
08/01/2025 ~ 03:29:36
03:29:14

08/01/2025 05:53:41
05:52:52

08/02/2025 23:24:45
23:24:20

08/03/2025 00:57:59
00:57:58

08/03/2025 01:22:16
01:22:16

08/03/2025 03:54:46
03:54:26

08/04/2025 01:17:07
01:16:54

08/04/2025 17:05:56
17:04:27

08/04/2025 19:54:14
19:50:58

08/05/2025 00:20:19
00:20:00

08/05/2025 07:17:27
07:17:08

08/05/2025 07:49:15
07:49:15

08/05/2025 15:15:46
156:15:45

08/06/2025 09:29:46
09:29:01

08/06/2025 14:40:48
14:40:48

08/07/2025 00:04:32
00:04:16

En

Ar Ls A2
03:40:26

06:19:00

00:57:59

01:22:16

04:04:41

01:25:31 02:08:45 02:35:46

00:34:50 00:37:18 00:52:44

08:06:57

07:49:15

15:15:46

14:40:48

Clear
03:49:50

06:23:49

23:45:50

00:59:52

03:16:33

04:23:25

05:45:43

17:25:30

20:29:02

01:00:32

08:10:09

08:06:58

16:15:22

09:37.55

14:44.28

00:10:44

CFS Closed
08/01/2025

03:49:50
08/01/2025
06:23:49
08/02/2025
23:45:50
08/03/2025
00:59:52

08/03/2025
03:16:33

08/03/2025
04:23:25

08/04/2025
05:45:43
08/04/2025
17:25:30

08/04/2025
20:29:02
08/05/2025
01:00:32
08/05/2025
07:54:23
08/05/2025
08:07:43
08/05/2025
16:15:22

08/06/2025
09:37:55

08/06/2025
14:44:28

08/07/2025
00:10:44

CFS/Ds Ds/En Ds/Ar

0:22 0:00 10:50
0:49 0:00 25:19
0:25 0:00 0:00
0:01 0:00 0:00
0:00 0:00 0:00
0:20 0:00 9:55
0:13 0:00 8:24
1:29 0:00 0:00
3:16 0:00 0:00
0:19 0:00 14:31
0:19 0:00 49:30
0:00 0:00 0:00
0:01 0:00 0:00
0:45 0:00 0:00
0:00 0:00 0:00
0:16 0:00 0:00

En/Ar
0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

Ds/A2
0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

1:19:39

0:00

0:00

32:25

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00



2025-025968

2025-025974
2025-026128

2025-026202

2025-026330

2025-026345

2025-026354

2025-026385

2025-026410

2025-026414

2025-026438

2025-026533

2025-026633

2025-026727

2025-026730

2025-026865

2025-026884

2025-027044

2025-027101

2025-027117

2025-027147

CHOO CHOO
TRAILER PARK | 6339
CARTERS VALLEY
RD LOT 5, MOUNT
CARMEL

710 HERMITAGE LN,
MOUNT CARMEL

150 BIG ELM RD,
CHURCH HILL
HIGHWAY 11 W/
KAYWOOD AVE

168 ASHLEY DR,
MOUNT CARMEL

401 CREEKSIDE DR,
MOUNT CARMEL

735 REDWOOD ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
HIGHWAY 11 W /
INDEPENDENCE AVE
721 S SHERBROOKE
CIR, MOUNT CARMEL
219 WOLFE LAUREL
DR, MOUNT CARMEL
6747 CARTERS
VALLEY RD UNIT 1,
CHURCH HILL

6562 CARTERS

VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

411 OLD HICKORY
CIR, MOUNT CARMEL
HAMMOND AVE /
CHERRY ST

436 BAY ST, MOUNT

CARMEL
6753 CARTERS
VALLEY RD LOT 39,

CHURCH HILL
MOUNT CARMEL
ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL | 127
CHERRY ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

5757 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

804 BRENTWOOD
DR, MOUNT CARMEL
HIGHWAY 11 W /
HAMMOND AVE

149 ASHLEY DR,
MOUNT CARMEL

43FOL 259

43DOM 259
43ALR 259

43TS 259
43ALP 259
43SUSI259
911UN} 259
43RKLE 259

47S0B 259

911UNF 259

43WCK 259

43TS 259

43WS8V 259
728VW 259

43WCK 259

43DOM 259

911UNI 259

PROPE 259
TY

DAMAG
E
43ALR 259

43TS 259

43DIS 259

333

333
339

359

348

348

328

HCSO

338

348

361

335

378

333

333

329

368

336

344

338

344

08/07/2025
00:10:17

08/07/2025
02:40:05
08/08/2025
09:12:57
08/08/2025
19:13:42
08/09/2025
22:21:32
08/10/2025
02:31:41
08/10/2025
11:48:39
08/10/2025
18:37:50
08/10/2025
23:00:43
08/11/2025
00:17:57
08/11/2025
09:17:38

08/11/2025
21:32:43

08/12/2025
14:33:09
08/13/2025
07:43:39
08/13/2025
08:23:32
08/14/2025

09:16:32

08/14/2025
12:17:58

08/15/2025
18:23:31

08/16/2025
10:13:53
08/16/2025
12:16:16
08/16/2025
17:19:55

00:10:52

02:40:46
09:13:14

19:13:42

22:22:07

02:49:42

11:49:14

18:38:08

23:02:19

00:28:49

09:17:38

21:32:44

14:33:09

07:43:59

08:24:01

09:16:51

12:18:33

18:24:02

10:14:55

12:16:16

17:37:23

02:48:54 03:24:54 03:48.08

19:13:42

22:39:56

12:14:10

23:23:47

00:34:03

09:17:42

21:32:44

14:33:14

09:09:44

09:43:56

19:02:04

10:29:53

12:16:16

00:11:13

04:11:54
09:15.57

19:19:19

22:41:47

03:09:26

12:24:47

19:56:30

00:47:45

00:36:00

09:37:02

21:42:40

14:39:22

07:57:36

09:18:09

10:09:10

12:30:35

19:23:35

10:54:20

12:18:14

17.49:47

08/07/2025
00:11:13

08/07/2025
04:11:54
08/08/2025
09:15:57
08/08/2025
19:19:19
08/09/2025
22:41:47
08/10/2025
03:09:27
08/10/2025
12:24:47
08/10/2025
19:56:30
08/11/2025
00:47:45
08/11/2025
00:36:00
08/11/2025
09:37:02

08/11/2025
21:44:11

08/12/2025
14:39:22
08/13/2025
07:57:36
08/13/2025

09:18:26
08/14/2025
10:09:10

08/14/2025
12:30:35

08/15/2025
19:23:35

08/16/2025
10:54:20
08/16/2025
12:18:14
08/16/2025
17:49:47

0:35

0:41

0:17

0:00

0:35

18:01

0:35

0:18

1:36

10:52

0:00

0:01

0:00

0:20

0:29

0:19

0:35

0:31

1:02

0:00

17:28

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

8:08

0:00

0:00

17:49

0:00

24:56

0:00

21:28

5:14

0:04

0:00

0:05

0:00

45:43

27:05

0:00

38:02

14:58

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

1:07:22

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00



2025-027151

2025-027154

2025-027196

2025-027346

2025-027426

2025-027707

2025-027728

2025-027778

2025-027810

2025-027828

2025-027938

2025-028010

2025-028044

2025-028167

2025-028328
2025-028441

2025-028471

2025-028618

2025-028623

2025-028679

2025-028756

DOLLAR GENERAL
(MOUNT CARMEL) |
217 E MAIN ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
100 INDEPENDENGE
AVE, MOUNT
CARMEL

131 ARNOTT DR,
MOUNT CARMEL
5603 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

546 BEECH ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
546 ELM ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

6753 CARTERS
VALLEY RD LOT 44,
CHURCH HILL

542 BEECH ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
OLD HICKORY CIR /
INDEPENDENCE AVE
525 ELM ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

HIGHWAY 11 W /
HAMMOND AVE

6753 CARTERS
VALLEY RD 44,

CHURCH HILL

6735 CARTERS
VALLEY RD LOT 18,
CHURCH HILL
CARTERS VALLEY
RD / JONES EST DR

522 ELM ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

5901 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

522 ELM ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

239 BELMONT AVE,
MOUNT CARMEL

239 BELMONT AVE,
MOUNT CARMEL
MOUNT CARMEL
ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL | 127
CHERRY ST, MOUNT
CARMEL

801 SEVEN OAKS DR,

43SUSI 259

43PTL 259

43D1 259

43WSV 259

43DIS 259

43WSV 259

43WSV 259

43DOM 259

43TS 259

43WSV 259

43RKLE 259

43WSV 259

47SI1CK 259

43RKLE259

43WSV 259

43INFO 259

43WSV 259

43FOL 259

43FOL 259

43HAR 259

43WCK 259

342

342

343

373

342

373

373

335

342

377

HCSO

373

341

HCSO

338
348

338

356

340

358

340

08/16/2025
18:15:18

08/16/2025
18:45:40

08/17/2025
03:20:09
08/18/2025
14:24:04

08/19/2025
00:37:09
08/21/2025
13:25:53
08/21/2025
15:13:07

08/22/2025
00:29:59
08/22/2025
09:59:16
08/22/2025
11:22:33
08/23/2025
03:25:08
08/23/2025

18:49:25

08/23/2025
23:06:55

08/25/2025
07:27:40
08/26/2025
12:57:06
08/27/2025
10:25:23

08/27/2025
13:50:37
08/28/2025
19:18:57
08/28/2025
20:35:22
08/29/2025
12;17:23

08/30/2025

18:15:39

18:45:59

03:20:19
14:24:04

00:37:33

13:25:53

15:13:07

00:31:29

10:11:47

11:22:33

03:26:05

18:49:26

23:06:14

07:28:10

12:57:07

10:25:40

13:50:37

19:18:57

20:35:23

12:17:49

04:51:59

11:08:53

03:31:18

14:24:04

00:43:25

13:25:57

15:13:19

00:38:09

10:18:51

11:22:33

18:49:26

13:04:27

11:27:03

13:50:37

19:18:57

20:35:23

05:04:24

00:53:01

14:03:21 14:26:11

18:35:33

19:00:49

04:31:42

14:32:14

00:49:20

13:30:54

15:18:02

01:11:57

10:22:09

11:26:10

04:15:40

18:55:34

23:07:25

07:30:42

13:04:40

11:46:05

14:57:06

19:21:26

20:44:36

12:18:54

05:10:57

08/16/2025
18:35:33

08/16/2025
19:00:49

08/17/2025
04:31:42
08/18/2025
14:32:14

08/19/2025
00:49:21
08/21/2025
13:30:54
08/21/2025
15:18:02

08/22/2025
01:11:57
08/22/2025
10:23:28
08/22/2025

11:26:10
08/23/2025
04:15:40
08/23/2025

18:55:34

08/24/2025
00:42:33

08/25/2025
07:30:42
08/26/2025
13:04:40
08/27/2025
11:21:22

08/27/2025
14:57.06
08/28/2025
19:21:26
08/28/2025
20:44:36
08/29/2025
12:18:54

08/30/2025

0:21

0:19

0:10

0:00

0:24

0:00

0:00

1:30

12:31

0:00

0:57

0:01

0:19

0:30

0:01

0:17

0:00

0:00

0:01

0:26

1:47

0:00

0:00

0:00
0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

43:13

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

10:59

0:00

5:52

0:04

0:12

6:40

7:04

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

7:20

1:01:23

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

12:25

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

18:10

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

35:34

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00



2025-028759

2025-028774

2025-028790

2025-028803

2025-028815

2025-028816

2025-028830

2025-028844

2025-028871

2025-028904

2025-028937

Total Records

MOUNT CARMEL
302 ROUNDTREE
AVE, MOUNT
CARMEL

302 ROUNDTREE
AVE, MOUNT
CARMEL

202 BIG OAK RD,
CHURCH HILL

800 SEVEN OAKS DR,
MOUNT CARMEL
BIG BISCUITS &
BURGERS | 5602
CARTERS VALLEY

RD, MOUNT CARMEL
542 BEECH ST,
MOUNT CARMEL
1440 WOLFE LN LOT
A15, MOUNT CARMEL

6742 CARTERS

VALLEY RD LOT 6,
CHURCH HILL

6560 CARTERS
VALLEY RD, CHURCH
HILL

231 VALLEY CREST
DR, MOUNT CARMEL
CHOO CHOO
TRAILER PARK | 6339
CARTERS VALLEY
RD LOT 20, MOUNT
CARMEL

Total Time CFS/ Total Time Disp/

Disp (M)
1:39:17

Enroute (M)
49:56

Average Time

Average Time  Disp/Enroute
CFS/Disp (M) (M)

1:26

0:43

43WCK 259

43FOL 259

438SUSi 259

43FOL 259

43RHA. 259

43DIS 259

43WCK 259

470D 259

911UN} 259

43RHA. 259

43SUPI 259

69

Total Time Disp/ Total Time Disp/

Arrive (M)
10:34:30

341

341

341

341

328

354

354

328

330

333

354

Average Time
Enroute/Arrive

(M)
0:15

04:50:12
08/30/2025
06:31:00

08/30/2025
09:51:11

08/30/2025
14:09:57
08/30/2025
17:21:12
08/30/2025
19:27:12

08/30/2025
19:32:11
08/30/2025
22:05:20
08/31/2025
01:14:04

08/31/2025
10:57:32

08/31/2025
16:33:13
08/31/2025
23:08:02

Arrive2 (M)
4:16:49

Average Time
Disp/Arrive (M)

9:10

06:32:47

09:52:36

14:10:50

17:21:12

08:14:17

14:30:22

17:21:12

19:31:08 19:37:51

19:32:27

22:06:38

01:15:41

10:58:25

16:37:33

23:08:30

Min Time
CFS/Disp (M)
0:00

Average Time
Arrive/Left (M)

1:43

19:44:54

22:20:30

01:26:33

11:31:56

23:16:16 23:25:34 23:50:19

Max Time
CFS/Disp (M)
18:01

Average Time
Left/Arrive2 (M)

1:38

Min Time
Disp/Enr (M)
0:00

05:10:57

08:23:37 08/30/2025 1:47
08:23:37

09:58:02 08/30/2025 1:25
09:58:02

14:37:49 (08/30/2025 0:53
14:37:49

17:29:10 08/30/2025 0:00
17:29:10

20:04:49 08/30/2025 3:56
20:04:49

20:02:11  08/30/2025 0:16
20:02:11

22:37:28 08/30/2025 1:18
22:37:28

02:10:38 08/31/2025 1:37
02:45:32

11:34:46 08/31/2025 0:53
11:40:17

16:38:01 08/31/2025 4:20
16:38:01

23:50:32 08/31/2025 0:28
23:50:32

Max Time Min Time

Disp/Enr (M)

43:13 0:00

Average Time
Disp/Arrive2 (M)

3:42

Average Time
Arrive2/Clear
(M)

3:39

0:00 1:42:30
0:00 0:00
0:00 19:32
0:00 0:00
6:43 0:00
0:00 12:27
0:00 13:52
0:00 10:52
0:00 33:31
0:00 0:00
0:00 7:46
Max Time

1:42:30

Disp/Arrive (N Disp/Arrive (M)

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

0:00

41:49



RTS Management Report (Mount Carmel) All Detection Types
Operator Id: %

01-Aug-2025 to 31-Aug-2025

2 =2 =
0 0 9
< < >
= ry =
I I
> >
o (=]
= [
Total Detections 459 180 639
Total Nonprosecutable 43 29 72
Duplicate Incident 1 0 1
No Offence - After Stop Bar 6 1
No Offence - False Trigger 4 5
No Offence - Other 9 5 14
No Offence - Screeching Stop 22 17 39
No Offence - Turn Trigger 1 1 2
Total Importer Rejects g g B
Total Violations 416 151 567
Less Uncontrollable Factors
Obstruction  Plate Obstruction 33 10 43
Vehicle Obstruction 0 1 1
Police Emergency Vehicle Responding 9 9
REISSE Incorrect/Incomplete DMV 16 18
Police Discretion 231 89 320
Policy/Weath Extended Vehicle 55 24 79
er Sun Glare 0 5
Weather/Nature 1
Registration Paper Plates 25 12 37
Issues
Total 374 139 513
Sub Total Violations 42 12 54
Less in Progress 0 0 0

© Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc.

1 of 2



Available For Prosecution 42 12 54
Less Rejects
Camera Plate Not in Frame 1-02% 0-00% 1-02%
Malfunction g ar Plate No Flash 5-12% 0-00% 5-00%
Scene Image Flash Inappropriate 1-02% 0-00% 1-02%
Total 7-17% 0-00% 7-13%
Approved Violations 35-83%  12-100% 47-87%
Total Notices Printed 35-83% 12-100% 47-87%

© Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc.

|55

of

(S ]



Mount Carmel Municipal Report

Report for: __August, 2025

Charge

Number of

Driver’s license to be carried 55-50-351

1

Driver’s license violation residency law 55-50-333

Driving left of center 55-8-120

Driving right lane except to pass 55-8-115

Driving too slow-impeding flow of traffic 55-8-154

Driving without a license 55-50-301

-

Due Care 55-8-136

Failure to Appear- Municipal 39-16-609

Financial responsibility 55-12-139

Light law violation 55-9-402

Move over law 55-8-132

Muffler law 55-9-202

Driving Unregistered Vehicle 55-3-102

Registration- expired plate 55-4-110

Registration — improper display 55-4-110

Registration — misuse 55-5-115

Registration — No certificate in vehicle 55-4-104

Seat belt required 55-9-603

Speeding 55-8-152

Stop sign violation 55-8-149

Traffic control signal violation 55-8-110

Texting/ Hands free law 55-8-199

Driving on suspended/ revoked license 55-50-504

Possession of a revoked, suspended, altered license 55-50-601

Improper left turn 55-8-140

Animal Running at large MC-10-101 Dogs (10-203)

Failure to dim lights 55-9-407

No U-turn 55-8-109

Failure to yield right of way causing accident 55-8-197

Registration- Address incorrect 55-4-131

No parking violation 55-8-160

Child restraint law 55-9-602

Crossing Highway Divider 55-8-125

Following Close 55-8-124

Litter Control 39-14-502

Written Warnings

Total

36




MOUNT CARMEL

%/)/ﬁ(’ﬂ e /un?,‘(/ﬁz./ w go0e?i

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

DATE: September 25, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION & CONSIDERATION: JMT Engineering Led Phase 1B

Wastewater Plant Construction Project Bids and Budget

SUMMARY:

The purposc of this discussion and consideration request is to address the two bid processes
completed for this project for the Wastewater Plant Improvement Project identified in
JMT Project number 22-V0355016-002 (Phase 1B) and funded through Town funding
(S400,000) and the American Rescue Plan Act funding ($1,200,000) that was provided to the
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation and granted to the Town of
Mount Carmel for these projects. JMT has requested an extension for this approval process
due to the failure to meet the milestones established by TDEC of August 31, 2025. It is
important to note that the engineering firm and its affiliates are solely responsible for the
failure to meet these TDEC milestones. No approval or denial of this extension request has
been received as of this date. JMT has continued as if the extension will be approved.

Phasc 1B addresses and includes acration blower replacement, clarificr 1 refurbishment,
and rebuild of lift station 3 with force main replacement and reroute on the wastewater
treatment plant site. All these components and the scope of work defined have been pre-
approved by TDEC, and JMT previously received approval for a “change of work scope”
for this specific project. No further change approvals can be expected

The bidding processes for this project were conducted as follows:

At the first bid opening on August 25, 2025, only one bid was reccived for
$3,500,000, an amount exceeding the estimated/projected budget of $1,600,000 to
conduct the work identified in the request for proposal created by JMT. Through
conversation with JMT they requested to rebid hoping that additional bidders and
more competitive budgets would be presented. We advised them to reach out to
specific vendors who had taken bid packets but did not submit bids to determine
why.

The sccond bid opening was conducted on Friday, September 19, 2025, no bids were
reccived during this bid opening. After discussion it was made clear to the project
engincer that it is incumbent on them to develop a solution going forward, as the
milestones and deadlines are still approaching. We recommended that the project
engineer reach out to the companies that had taken bid packages and inquire why



they did not bid. We speculate that the bidding process was not managed well with
time restrictions and a lack of communication. The JMT project engineer’s
immediate thought and recommendation was to go out to bid for this project with a
5-to-6-week timeframe for submission. The time frame suggested puts us into late
October carly November (Fall/Winter), without construction starting from the
original due date of August 31 and further presses up against the milestones and
deadlines of the ARPA funding from TDEC for completion.

The Town has been struggling with timeliness and project management for this project
from the start, these delays predate my tenure with the Town, and the ARPA funding could
be in jeopardy duc to these issues. We received clarity from TDEC that if the project bids
reccived are over budget we may adjust project components to available dollars, if the
entire project component is complete, no partial completions of project components would
be accepted. Therefore, we would like to offer some project strategices for your
consideration and deliberation going forward.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
City Manager/Sewer

FISCAL IMPACT:

OPTION 1

Rebid the project a third time with our current engincering firm, for no less than 3 wecks,
cnsuring that the engincering firm has thoroughly rescarched and addressed why the low
turnout of bidders for this project, and then that the bid process is present on our Town
website, and all other sites as required to ensure better success. Additionally, an aggressive
construction timeline considering the TDEC milestones must be developed with the
winning construction bidder in this scenario.

OPTION 2

Terminate the current engincering firm and immediately go out to bid for a new
engineering firm, sccure the new firm and procced bidding the project immediately upon
completion of construction drawings by the new firm. Secure the construction firm with
condensed completion deadlines and an aggressive construction timeline.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
No recommendation from staff, at this time,

ATTACHMENTS:
None



MOUNT CARMEL

%/J/A‘(:C Zor /Jﬂ?,‘(/nm s toal)

LEGISLIATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

DATE: September 25, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-658 Amending Personnel Policies and Procedures for

the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessec

SUMMARY:

Counsideration of Resolution 25-658, which amends the recently adopted Personnel Policies
and Procedures revised at the August 28, 2025, Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting,
climinating the Junetcenth holiday from recognition and replacing it with National Election
Day (which is the Tuesday next after the first Monday in November of even numbered
years) as a recognized paid holiday for the Town, with an effective date of October 1, 2025.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
City Manager

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:
Revision 08/28/2025 Personnel Policies & Procedures



MOUNT CARMEL

%/z/fmc Zo /Jz«z(/a.m v Aoall

RESOLUTION 25-658
Amending Personnel Policies and Procedures for the Town
of Mount Carmel

BEFORE THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL,
TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, current,
and comprehensive personnel policies and procedures to guide the employment practices of the
Town and ensure compliance with applicable federal and state laws; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen adopted a revision involving holidays by a
majority vote during the August 2025 Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting, which will be
fully recognized by adoption of this resolution

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, on this 25" day of September 2025.

This Resolution was duly considered and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, in and
for the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, this 25" day of September 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:

Tyler Williams, Town Recorder



PERSONNEL

POLICIES & PROCEDURES

MOUNT CARMEL

{/'{/;/ﬁcc. 7o /;-az‘:{a e Seal)

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

Revision 08/28/2025
Adopted 09/25/2025

Effective 10/01/2025



Town of Mount Carmel Organizational Chart

@
£
=
1]

(&}
=
[ =4
=
[=]

=

=
[=]
%]
=4
[+)
=
=
(s}

Ser

g
>
22
a 3
B =
(7}
g;
® 2
L)
i2

Budget

Internal Services
biic
mmun
(] ¥
— Libraty Director — Librarans
brary Board)

Postal Workers

AssistantTown 8
Administratar !

Police Officers
Police Chie?

Animal Gontrol

Board of Mayor and Aldermen

Firetlgiters
Fire Cwef -

|
B  External Services &

Fire Prevention &

Buliding Codes

I Finance
|
Town Attorney

Town Judge

II

Public Services FaBlCSeruses -
ectot




TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL PERSONNEL POLICIES & PROCEDURES........cccoommmimmimammiimiminminns COVER

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL ORGANIZATIONAL CHART .....ovviimiiemimmiieammsiesissims i ssmssassessssssssssssssssass asssssasiss 1
SECTION 1: PERSONNEL POLICIES .....coumumsmimssianessmssimmmamiissimssssiissssssimsssassssssmsenarmmarssssssessss 5-7
1.1 INTRODUCTION TO PERSONNEL REGULATIONS.......cvirmiimimmemiie st snsscon s - 5
1.2 PURPOSE AND OBUJECTIVES........civvummesrimmmmininnssemsinssnaniens R S e TR 5
1.3 COVERAGE ......cooortiieresiaeesiensessiebsessaesseses s a4 48 L8880 800101 5-6
1.4 ADMINISTRATION w.ocvovtctrevirurssesessisessessssssss s ssessss b ss st s s as e s b sy 6-7
1.5 AMENDMENTS TO PERSONNEL POLICIES...........cocovmrmrmeremeceiemnciisinien, O A ey 7
1.6 SEVERABILITY 1.ooovtetecouiommsissssississsssssssesssesssassase s sasasss mis ss81asassasassssases s sessoss 480110840100 154 8 mmsssnsassb st addbasisntsens 7
SECTION 2; HIRING PROCEDURES ......oocvminirimmimminisissmsrssisssenisnines S R T v 7-8
2.1 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT.......oooerirniieniiieisiisis i s asiaiabi st st s 7
2.2 JOB ANNOUNCEMENTS ......ooteeererierseenreseeise s s s bs bbb 44 b 44 £h b bbb s 7-8
2.3 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND FRIENDS........... T P S SN T S RS R A 8
2.4 CITIZENSHIP AND IMMIGRATION STATUS VERIFICATION ...ttt 8
SECTION 3: CLASSIFICATION, PAY, AND FRINGE BENEFITS.....ccoooiiviiniiiiisiomiisiimsiiemissssisniissinnes 8-10
3.1 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ....iuuiiiiiiuiiuiaiuiubimmsnissisiomiasiasssasie ibnssiesiass i ssdsssssissssssossonsssssons st ssiasissanssssass 8
3.2 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL / EVALUATION .....ooiecivsimisisssisis s sssssi s ansesssansnesas 89
3.3 BENEFITS ... cenemeeressons ies s sssennssnesesne s s s oo s 05458 808 64K 0 TR ARSI RO A A RSSO OTES SN 113 9
3.4 HOURS OF WORK ivtivcivinvivsisevicssisissaeiess svsssesios iasssssssnessiosion oo oniiasis eonassiisssast Brasssiassas isuamsmm gssnsanssansss 9
3.5 ATTENDANCE ssisivisssies s sotsss e 554555 o 00055455 s Mo T 9
3.6 OVERTIME COMPENSATION. ..o vvuerirereenriemeeasiisessssssiiabiassssssessassssssass e s ems s s bbb ssnes 9-10
3.7 CALL QUT PAY e.oeiveriiesesasins e sseesessossesosss s bisssssissssssso s 100 14n4 5944118003808 e8 s 64 08t o Vs gus i conssasstanrag s 10
3.8 MANDATORY UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .......coiirimnimiiinissisimiissismmssssss st asssnssnssansansoscess 10
SECTION 4: LEAVE POLICIES ......cvoiiiiiisinieniiisssissasisnssierisiestsnissnsssssesssssessesssasssssessessasisssassnas s snsasions 10- 14

4.1 VACATION LEAVE .....coooovveiimmmannsensossssssesmissssssississssssss s g sssessesssasssssssssssssssssssansssssassansss o1ss S 10




4.2 SICKLEAVE.......cooeveeaeiociaiessiriesiesos ot sssessoss s sess e ssas s sas s s a8 00800051 10-11

4.3 HOLIDAY LEAVE.........oieitievireses st seeeeesebse s s ses st b8 43 88180 1112
4.4 CIVILLEAVE.....evuereerusssesssnsssossesssssssssseressesssssses s sisesstssss s 11easas i1ang sag 100114408481 144 45084445008 ya8ssnssa s bbb absatn s 12
4.5 FUNERAL LEAVE......001ereessssssssssenssnessassesssesssesnsssssssseerssssss issst 161064804403 06 5044873 FaHEs Ao A ¥smetsabesnsnss paabs 4 ain e 12
4.6 MILITARY LEAVE/VETERANS' RE-EMPLOYMENT.....c.oovi it s 12-13
4.7 WORKERS COMPENSATION........oovrvimsinsmirisrinnine. R e PR R 13-14
4.8 ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE ........cucemuivosesssiusosisiuassissssisarsiiniasssitsssessomsiassssnisnssnsisiossesnssiississstionssasiaisstonse 14
4.9 FAMILY LEAVE ..coviiisisiorivierissinssmaets thaissssssossmnsiians s s i ok s anssvoss casme bl o s viaivions e o 14
SECTION 5: WORKPLACE VIOLENCE AND HARASSMENT L...uiiiiiiiimirimimiiisiisrs s 14-17
5.1 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE ....oouvuvrceeenieircsensemises e e cis st b s s sas st s s s 14-15
5.2 HARASSIMENT 1.t vvveecreiseeessesssee e sessesnssssssse e b ssassiasssbsestsntsndtosses e shvassnsssenssbass s et s snns o1 1517
SECTION 6: MISCELLANEQUS POLICIES .....covviirieirismsissiiinsisinstissississ s s esssssonssssiasssessasssenssssssns 17-20
6.1 DRUG AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY .....covcnrmiiiimmmniiiisnmeiis e sesssssesssssssaissssssssss s s s 17
6.2 TRAVEL POLICY ....oounvverssoesees et ot osfsmias b s s s o6 TS YRR AT G a5k 17
6.3 USE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT ......cvumimimmmmimmnsimmnmmsesmsssissnimssnssnssisns 17
6.4 PERSONAL/ BUSINESS CELL PHONES ..o sssansssssss s sasss s e 17-18
6.5 CUSTOMER COURTESY .....ovmuiiriiimionissimssasissosmasisienstisis s s sassass vessssssssessssiesassess st ssssssssssossssesssion s, 18
6.6 PERSONAL CONDUGCT L...cvoerurreerietitiriinsiessssesssssssssissssen s sisss siesssnsnsss sassse s ssssnes assssssssssmasas s i sosses e 18
6.7 DRESS CODE ..ottt eivesetrsssseeseeeeesseesseses s sss i s stas a4 01848348 8 m 8008000011 18
6.8 NON-SMOKER PROTECTION ACT ..ot issssesesnies G e een 18
6.9 COMPUTER USE AND MONITORING .....ccoovmer vt bbb 18-19
6.10 SOCIAL MEDIA USE AND INTERNET POSTING ....ocitimiicmmimammismciiinisisississsenssisisssissss s 19-20
6.11 RECORDING AND CAMERADEVICES........cccccoovuiiimmivicnininins e e e S 20
6.12 DISCIPLINARY ACTION ....oovetrirermssseimemsessmasescesesssesb s s b esibisbsas s ess i1 a8 85 s bbb 20
SECTION 7: POLITICALACTIVITY, ETHICS, AND CONDUCT ......oovvimimrinimmiisssisisississssiisss i 20-22

7.1 CODE OF ETHICS. .o..ovvon oo i a3y s i s v s S 750 R SR 20



7.2 TERMINATION, ACCOUNTABILITY AND DISCLOSURE ACT.......commiimmmnrimsnmssssnsisssisss e snissssases 2

7.3 GENETIC INFORMATION ANDNONDISCRIMINATION ACT ......cocvovrivvircinns R AT B 21
7.4 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT ...oviecrcrreeressiisissssssssss s st bbbt 21-22
APPENDICES: APPENDIX A - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT ....oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiniicniirinsiniicninns 23
APPENDICES: APPENDIX B - EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM ....cvvvviiiiiisiiimiiiisimmmesisisiisiinnas 24

APPENDICES: APPENDIX C - ADOPTED PAY PLAN - FY 2025/26...........ccocuimmmimmmmmisiosimnsinisismimcsi 25



11 INTRODUCTION TO PERSONNEL REGULATIONS

The Town of Mount Carmel Personnel Policy and Procedures hereinafter referred to as “Personnel Regulations,”
adopted by resolution, is applicable to all employees of the Town of Mount Carmel whose activities and functions
are subject to the control and direction of the Town Administrator. These policies and procedures and all other
Town manuals do not bestow any additional rights to employees regarding employment or employment benefits.
These policies and procedures are not part of a contract, and no employee has any contractual right to the matters
set forth herein. This will serve as notice to all employees that the employment relationship may be terminated by
either the Town or the employee at any time for any reason. All employees are “at will” and the Town is an “at will"
employer under Tennessee law. The Town reserves the right fo change ail such policies practices, and
procedures in whole or in part at any time, with or without nofice fo employees.

These Personnel Regulations shall be made available to all employees. Regular employees will receive a copy of
the regulations upon employment. Any employee who desires to review the regulations during work hours may
review the departmental copy.

1.2 PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The primary purpose of these policies is to establish an understanding, cooperation and efficiency in local
government operations by establishing a system of personnel administration which provides consistent, impartial
and effective policies and procedures for the employees of the Town of Mount Carmel Tennessee without regard
to race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin, disability, military status, genetic information,
communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing to participate in or remain silent about illegal
activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under clear public policy, political affiliation, or any
other basis protected by law. The objectives of these policies are to promote and increase efficiency, provide fair
and equal opportunities, develop a process of recruitment and selection of employees, and promote high morale
among employees.

It is the Town of Mount Carmel's policy not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment or
during the course of employment due to race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin,
disability, military status, genetic information, communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing
to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under
clear public policy, political affiliation, or any other basis protected by law. Race, color, religion, age, sex, national
origin or ancestry, marital status, veteran’s status, or ability in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local
law. If an employee believes that he or she has been involved in any incident that was discriminatory, he or she
should report the incident immediately to Management. The Town further complies with all federal and state laws
protecting employees from discrimination.

It is the policy of the Town of Mount Carmel to apply and foster a sound program of personnel administration to
ensure the legal employment and placement of applicants, the establishment of a classification and compensation
program, the establishment of an employee relations system and the provision of employee development and
training and record retention.

13 COVERAGE
The Personnel Regulations will apply to all employees unless otherwise stated under exempt positions.
Temporary, seasonal, and part-time employees are subject to all regulations but do not have access to additional
benefits, such as, insurance benefits, leave accrual, holiday pay, or retirement benefits.



All offices and positions of the local government placed in the exempt service are:

all elected officials.

members of appointed boards and commissions.

consultants, advisers, and legal counsel rendering temporary professional service.

the local government attorney.

independent contractors.

part-time employees paid by the hour or the day who are not considered regular unless otherwise
indicated.

7. the locat government judge.

DU AW

Some policies apply to all employees and officers of the municipality, including those placed in the exempt service,
such as policies related to discrimination and/or harassment, and polices required by state or federal law.

1.4 ADMINISTRATION
These rules will be administered by the Town Administrator and Assistant Town Administrator under the direction
of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen in conformity with the ordinance establishing a personnel system.

The governing body is responsible for the appointment of the Administrator, establishment of overall policy
quidelines for the operation of municipal government including adoption of the Personnel Regulations and
amendments thereto, development and adoption of an annual fiscal budget.

The Town Administrator is the Chief Executive/Administrative Officer for the Town of Mount Carmel. The
administrator is hired and serves at the pleasure of the governing body. The administrator is responsible to the
governing body for the proper operations of all town functions. The responsibilities of the administrator include
appointment and termination of all Town employees, enforcement and application of all laws, provisions of the
Town Charter and Municipal Code, and acts of the governing body including but not limited to the Personnel
Regulations and pay classification plan. The administrator is also responsible for the implementation of additional
rules, policies, and procedures, which may be necessary for the proper operation of the Town or its various
departments, provided that such rules and procedures are consistent with the Personnel Regulations adopted by
the governing body.

The Assistant Town Administrator may fulfill the role of Town Recorder and Chief Municipal Finance Officer for
the Town of Mount Carmel overseeing those administrative functions of the Town. The Assistant Town
Administrator is hired and serves at the pleasure of the Town Administrator. In addition to the Town Recorder and
Chief Municipal Finance Officer responsibilities, the Assistant Town Administrator may also be responsible for
appointment and termination of Town employees, enforcement and application of all laws, provisions of the Town
Charter and Municipal Code, and acts of the governing body including but not limited to the Personnel Regulations
and pay classification plan. The Assistant Town Administrator is also responsible for the implementation of
additional rules, policies, and procedures, which may be necessary for the proper operation of the Town or its
various departments, provided that such rules and procedures are consistent with the Personnel Regulations
adopted by the governing body. Additionally, the Assistant Town Administrator shall serve as the Acting Town
Administrator when needed or required.

The Town Administrator, Assistant Town Administrator and Department Heads and supervisors are responsible
for the administration and enforcement of the Personnel Regulations for employees in their respective program
areas.

The Town Administrative Department's responsibility and functions regarding the administration of the personnel
regulations shall include, but not be limited to, the development and presentation of personnel regulations and
recommended amendments consistent with proper employment practices to the Town Administrator for
consideration and presentation to the governing body. The Administrative Department shall also provide technical



assistance to Department Heads and supervisors on the interpretation and application of the Personnel
Regulations.

Amendments to the rules and regulations shall be made in accordance with the procedure herein. Nothing
in the personnel rules and regulations document shall be deemed to give employees any more property
rights in their jobs than may already be given by the local government charter. The local government
reserves the right to alter or change any or all these rules without prior notice to employees.

1.5 AMENDMENTS TO PERSONNEL POLICIES
Amendments or revisions to these regulations, policies and procedures may be recommended for adoption by the
Town Administrator or by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of its own initiative. Such amendments or revisions of
these regulations, policies and procedures shall become effective upon approval by the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen.

All departmental regulations, policies and procedures as presently constituted or hereinafter adopted, which are not
in conflict with these regulations, shall remain in full force and effect.

1.6 SEVERABILITY
If any Charter, Article or Section of these Regulations is found to conflict with Federal, State or Town laws and
regulations, or Court decision, that section will continue in effect only to the extent permitted by such law or
regulation or Court decision. If any Charter, Article or Section of these regulations is or becomes invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceable nature will not affect or impair any other Charter, Article or Section
of these regulations.

21 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

It is the obligation and policy of the Town of Mount Carmel to provide equal opportunity employment to all
employees and applicants for employment. No person will be discriminated against in employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, military status, communication with elected public officials,
free speech, refusing to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities exercising a statutory constitutional
right or any right under clear public policy, political affiliation, genetic information, or any other basis protected by
law.

The Town of Mount Carme! will provide reasonable accommodation to qualified disabled individuals unless the
accommodation would pose an “undue hardship” on the Town.

This policy applies to all terms, conditions, and privileges of employment and all policies of the Town, including
hiring, placement, training, employee development, promotion, transfer, compensation, benefits, grievances,
educational assistance, layoffs, termination, and retirement.

2.2 JOB ANNOUNCEMENTS
Department Heads who need o fill a budgeted job opening should contact town administrative personnel to begin
the recruitment process. The Town Recorder (or their designee) will prepare and publicize job announcements to
bring notice of vacancies to as many qualified candidates as possible.

In-House Posting - Notice of vacant regular positions will be made available to internal employees on the Town's
official website. Notice of regular vacancies will be posted internally and externally until the position is filled.

Public Advertisement - Applicants shall be recruited from a geographic area as wide as necessary and for a
period sufficient to ensure that qualified applicants are obtained for Town Service. The Town's Administrative



Office and the Department Head will determine what forms of media to extend the advertisement. Vacancies where
appropriate will be posted on the Town's website until the position is filled. All internal and external candidates shall
make application through the Town’s website and submit their signed/scanned application via emai to the Town
Administrator.

2.3 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES/FRIENDS

As a public employer, the Town of Mount Carmel must maintain a process of faimess in all things. Career
opportunities must be equal in matters of relationships, just as in other employment matters: sex, age, national
origin, race, religion, creed, color, ancestry, disability, and marital status. A person's name should be neither a
help nor a hindrance to advancing as far as ability and performance will allow. Decisions to hire are based on the
individual applicant's merits. We will not employ, transfer, or promote someone unless it is in the best interest of
all concerned. Further, the Town maintains a strict prohibition against hiring relatives into departments where
other relatives are employed and against letting relatives make employment decisions about other relatives. We
take special precautions to avoid conflicts of interest, or the appearance of conflicts of interest, in dealing with
related employees. Standard hiring criteria must be applied; direct reporting of one relative to another is generally
avoided. Be careful about providing information that would give a friend or related employee unfair advantage
over others. Personal relationships that might create conflicts of interest should be discussed with your
Department Head or with the Town Administrator. If a relationship between two employees conflicts with this
policy, a change to an appropriate job or shift change that does not create a conflict may be sought for one of the
individuals.

2.4 CITIZENSHIP AND IMMIGRATION STATUS VERIFICATION
The Town will not discriminate based on a person’s national origin or citizenship status with regard to recruitment,
hiring, or discharge. However, the Town will not knowingly employ any person who is or becomes an unauthorized
immigrant. In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act, all employees hired after November 6,
1986, regardless of national origin, ancestry, or citizenship, must provide suitable documentation to verify identity
and employability. The documentation must be provided within three days of employment, or the individual will be
subject to separation.

31 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Employee compensation shall be in an amount set by the Town Pay Plan established by the Town Administrator
and adopted through the budget process by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen as identified in Appendix C.

A non-exempt municipal employee who does not work their regularly scheduled work week shall be paid only for
hours worked, unless such absence is authorized as paid leave by the employee's supervisor, or the Town
Administrator.

Regular paydays for all municipal employees shall be bi-weekly, no later than every other Friday. Direct Deposit
into a financial institution is required. All non-exempt employees will sign their timecards at the end of each pay
period and supervisors will also be required to sign timecards. Signature on timecard is a verification the employee
has worked the exact hours shown on the timecard and no more or no less for the applicable period shown on said
card. Exempt salaried employees are required to submit a signed exception record at the end of each pay period,
indicating that they worked a minimum of 80 hours in the pay period, or had any work hour exceptions, such as,
holiday, vacation, sick or any other types of paid or unpaid leave.

The appropriate deductions, as required by State and Federal law, shall be made from each employee's pay. It is the
policy of the Town that no advance on future wages shall be made.

3.2 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL / EVALUATION
The performance of all employees will be appraised and reviewed at least annually by theirimmediate supervisor.



Evaluations for new hires shall occur before the end of the first sixth (6) months. Written appraisals will be
discussed with the employees, so they will know how they are progressing and what they may do to improve their
performance.

Department Heads will review employee performance evaluations for consistency and application of proper
evaluation standards for each employee being evaluated. The failure to submit an evaluation after notice may
subject the Department Head to counseling or disciplinary action. Completed employee performance evaluations
shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file. The Town Administrator will perform an annual performance
gvaluation for all Department Heads.

As important as these written performance/appraisals are, they are not meant as substitutes for ongoing
discussions between employees and their supervisors about their performance. Annual step pay increases, not
classified as COLA, will be tied to an employee’s minimum acceptable performance. Employees must not be
under any formal discipline or a performance improvement plan and receive an overali “meets expectations” rating
to receive their step pay raise for the year, which will be effective on the next pay period beginning after their
actual hire/promotion date anniversary.

3.3 BENEFITS
A list of current benefits is available from the Town recorder.

34 HOURS OF WORK
The standard work week for each department will be determined by the department head with approval of the
Town Administrator. Up to one hour will be allowed for an unpaid lunch, including travel time, and will not be
considered part of the regular workday.

3.5 ATTENDANCE
Employees shall attend their assigned places of work in accordance with the policies regarding hours of work,
holidays, and leave. If an employee, for some unavoidable reason, cannot report for work, they shall notify their
supervisor or department head at least 30 minutes prior to the start of their assigned work shift. The Department
Head will set the department specific notification process. Failure on the part of an employee to comply with these
policies may be cause for non-payment for the workday absence, and/or disciplinary action.

3.6 OVERTIME COMPENSATION
All non-exempt general employees shall receive overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half times their regular
rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours, and non-exempt swomn police employees for each hour
worked in excess of 43 hours. All non-exempt general employees may also accrue compensatory time off in lieu of
overtime for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours (regular employees)/43 hours (swomn non-exempt police
employees) in any one work week so long as approved in advance by the employees' Department Head and the
Town Administrator and may accrue such compensatory time off up to a maximum of 80 hours.

Compensatory time, or overtime must be documented by a detailed explanation of the work or project(s) that
required working overtime hours in the workweek on each employee's timecard. All compensatory time off accrued
for all Town employees qualifying for compensatory time off, the time must be used by the end of the following
month.

Exempt employees who are paid by salary shall not be entitled to overtime compensation, additional holiday pay,
or compensatory time. However, exempt employees will be granted 60 hours of executive leave annually that
must be used during the fiscal year awarded, no accruals will be allowed or maintained, and at the end of the
fiscal year will be reset to 60 hours. Executive leave should be used and will not be paid out and should be utilized
in no less than 4-hour blocks and for no more than 16 consecutive hours (2-days). Executive leave should not be



routinely abutted with other types of leave to extend the overall time off. If an exempt employee wishes to use
executive leave, they must submit their request to the town administrator on the appropriate form. Executive leave
requests should be submitted at least 1 day in advance for requests of 4 to 8 hours, and 3 days in advance for
requests of more than 8 hours.

3.7 CALLOUTPAY
Employees in Public Works and Wastewater may be required to return to the Town to. When a non-exempt
employee, after departing from their regularly scheduled workplace, reports back to work for unscheduled service
after hours, the Town will pay him or her a minimum of two (2) hour's wages from the time he or she begins work
at the worksite until the time they leave the worksite. Each non-exempt employee who is called out will be paid at
one and one-half (1%) times their regular hourly rate while on call-out duty.

3.8 MANDATORY UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
1. Uniforms, when required, will be provided by the Town. The cost to maintain those uniforms will also be paid
by the Town
2. Personal Protective Equipment. Full-time employees may be reimbursed for the purchase of safety-toe
protective footwear (including steel-toe shoes or steel-toe boots) and non-specialty prescription safety eye
wear as Personal Protective Equipment, or other equipment as defined in departmental SOP or as adopted
otherwise. Cost will be reimbursed up to $200 for steel toe boots and a winter coat one time per fiscal year.

41 VACATION LEAVE
Each full-time regular employee shall earn vacation time in accordance with the following schedule (unless
additional benefits are negotiated at the time of job acceptance):

Years of Hours per weeks/hours PD hours earned per PD weeks/hours

Service pay period earned per year pay period / yearly earned per year
1-5 3.08 hours 2 weeks (80 hours) 3.23 hours 2 weeks (84 hours)
6-10 4.62 hours 3 weeks (120hr) 4.96 hours 3 weeks (129 hours)
11-15 6.16 hours 4 weeks (160hr) 6.62 hours 4 weeks (172 hours)
16-20 7.70 hours 5 weeks (200hr) 8.27 hours 5 weeks (215 hours)
20+ 9.23 hours 6 weeks (240hr) 9.92 hours 6 weeks (258 hours)

Vacation time can be carried over by no more than 80 hours info the next anniversary year, unless requested by
the employee and authorized by the Town Administrator/Manager in writing. If carry over exceeds 80 hours,
unused vacation leave will be converted into sick leave. Employees may be paid for up to two weeks of unused
vacation per year (anniversary). Vacation leave shall be taken on a normal workweek basis. Paid holidays falling
within a period of vacation leave shall not be counted as vacation. Each employee, upon retirement or voluntary
separation, including a 2-week notice to the town (actually worked), shall be paid for any unused vacation leave.

Unless there is an emergency, all employees shall provide their supervisor with at least two weeks' notice when
requesting vacation time. Department heads must apply for vacation leave to the Town Administrator for approval.

Vacation leave shall not accrue to any employee when an employee is on leave for more than (15) days in the
month, unless otherwise directed by the Town Administrator.

42 SICKLEAVE
Each regular full-time employee will accrue sick leave at the rate 4 hours per pay period or 6 hours per pay period




for full time police officers working 12-hour shifts. Employees may accumulate up to 720 hours of sick leave,
which may be carried over from one calendar year to another. Any unused sick leave in excess shall only be
credited as additional time worked when calculating the employee's retirement benefits towards TCRS retirement.
No employee shall be paid for accumulated sick leave. All accumulated sick leave shall expire upon an employee’s
separation from employment.

Employees become eligible to use sick leave in the following situations:
o When an employee is incapacitated by sickness or a non-job-related injury, or they are seeking medical,
dental, or other diagnosis or treatment.
e When necessary, care and attendance of a member of the employee's immediate family is approved by
a department head.
e When employees have received notice from their doctor that they may jeopardize the health of others
because they have been exposed to a contagious disease.

Sick leave benefits shall begin on the first day of such absence and shall continue for 10 work days or 80 hours.
Any additional time-off necessary shall be taken by utilizing Short-term Disability Insurance provided by the town
and can be supplemented by employee vacation time.

Sick leave shall be requested in advance for any non-emergency medical, dental, or other diagnosis or freatment.
Employees shall, when possible, notify their department head of their illness or incapacity before they are due to
report to work on the first day of any sick leave.

To prevent abuse of the sick leave privilege, department heads are required to satisfy themselves that an
employee is genuinely ill before sick leave is authorized. An absence due to sickness of 3 or more days
consecutively, or greater than 6 days cumulatively, may require a doctor's certificate. Sick leave may be denied,
and appropriate disciplinary action taken when an employee is shown to be abusing sick leave privileges.

Sick leave shall not accrue to any employee until the required eligibility period has elapsed, when an employee is
on leave for more than fifteen (15) days in the month, unless otherwise directed by the Town Administrator.

An employee, upon exhausting all earned sick leave, may use vacation. After an employee has exhausted their
accrued sick leave and vacation leave, leave without pay may be granted at the discretion of the Town
Administrator as a reasonable accommodation to persons with disabilities. Also, employees may be placed on
special leave without pay, or they may be terminated if unable to perform their job or another job with or withouta
reasonable accommodation. Should employees later be able to return to work, upon presentation of certification
by a doctor, they may be given preference for employment in a position for that they are qualified, with the approval
of the Town Administrator.

Employees may not borrow against future sick leave.

4.3 HOLIDAY LEAVE
The Town shall recognize and observe all holidays officially designated by the federal government, including any
future amendments, deletions, or additions to the federal holiday schedule, which shall be automatically
incorporated herein, except the Juneteenth holiday which shall be replaced with National Election Day, which is
the Tuesday next after the first Monday in November of even numbered years. In addition, the Town reserves
the right to designate discretionary holidays (notated**). Therefore, the following shall be paid holidays for all full-
time employees and shall be observed on the dates and days as prescribed by law:

New Year’s Day Independence Day Thanksgiving Day

Martin Luther King Jr. Day Labor Day Thanksgiving Day After**
Washington’s Birthday Columbus Day Christmas Eve™

Good Friday** National Election Day** Christmas Day

Memorial Day Veterans Day



The Town offices, except essential services, shall be closed on official holidays. When a holiday falls on Saturday,
it shall be observed on the preceding Friday. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following

Monday.

All regular ful-time non-exempt employees required to work on a Town-observed holiday will receive straight time
holiday pay, and in addition will be paid for hours worked on the Town-observed holiday at the rate of one and
one-half times their regular rate of pay. Emergency services personnel and sewer personnel will utilize the actual
holiday for observance.

If a holiday occurs while an employee is on Workers' Compensation leave or other disability compensation leave,
and is not using sick leave or vacation leave, no credit for the holiday shall be allowed. To receive pay for an
observed holiday, an employee must not have been absent on the workday immediately preceding or immediately
following the holiday unless on vacation time authorized by the supervisor or documented/excused sick leave on
such days.

44 CIVIL LEAVE

Employees are eligible for paid civil leave in the following situations:
1. When an employee is called to serve as a juror or is appointed to serve as a clerk or judge on an
election board, the employee is entitled to his regular pay.
2. Forvoting if the employees' working hours prevent voting during the time the polls are open.
3. When an employee is called to perform emergency civilian duty.
4. When an employee is subpoenaed to appear in court on behalf of the Town.

An employee who is required by subpoena to appear in court as a plaintiff, defendant or witness on a personal
matter shall not be granted civil leave but may be granted vacation leave or leave without pay.

45 FUNERAL LEAVE

Up to three (3) days with pay may be granted for attendance of funerals of the immediate family of an employee.
Any additional days may be charged to vacation, sick leave, or taken as leave without pay with the approval of the
Department Head.

The employee’s immediate supervisor must first approve all funeral leave. In situations where several employees
wish to have time off to attend a funeral or funerals, discretion must be used by supervisory personnel so that
Town service can be maintained.

46 MILITARY LEAVE/VETERANS' RE-EMPLOYMENT

Any employee who is or becomes a member of the amed forces of the United States (including the Army, Amy Reserves,
Army National Guard, Navy, Naval Reserve, Marine Corps, Marine Corps Reserve, Air Force, Air Force Reserve, Air
National Guard, Coast Guard, Coast Guard Reserve, Commissioned Corps of the Public Health) and leaves work for inifial
training for the Guard or Reserves, leaves work to join active-duty military, or is called to active duty, will be placed on military
leave. Such employee must present his/her supervisor or department head with advance notice of the active-duty orders.
The employee’s seniority, status and pay will remain unchanged during his/her time of military leave. Continued health
insurance coverage will be offered up to 24 months. The Town will continue to pay the portions of the premiums they were
responsible for while the service member was employed if the leave is for fewer than 31 days. For military leaves longer
than 31 days the employee must pay up to 102% of the cost of premiums due for such policy. An employee wishing to
continue health insurance coverage during his/her military leave shall provide a mailing address where notices of premium
payments due may be sent.

The process for reinstatement of employees retuming from military leave begins when the employee submits an “application
for re-employment.” Said application must be submitted within ninety (90) days of the end of service, or from the end of
hospitalization continuing after discharge for a period of not more than one (1) year for an injuryfilness related to deployment.
The retuning employee will be re-employed in the position they would have attained had they not been absent for military



service, with the same seniority, status and pay.

Any employee who is a member or may become a member of any reserve component of the armed forces of the United
States or of the Tennessee Army and Air National Guard will be entitled to a leave of absence from their respective duties
for periods of military service during which they are engaged in the performance of duty or training in the service of this state,
or of the United States, under competent orders. While on such leave, the employee will be granted paid leave up to twenty
(20) days in anyone (1) calendar year.

Qualified employees who seek paid leave under this policy must provide the official order calling for their service or training
to their supervisor. Employees serving in the National Guard or Military Reserve will receive full compensation for a period
of twenty (20) days of military leave each calendar year, excluding holidays and scheduled off days. Such leave will not be
charged to any form of accrued paid leave. An employee requesting military leave shall provide the Town the dates for
training and travel time in advance. After the twenty (20) working days of full compensation, the Town may provide partial
compensation to its employees while under competent orders. After the twenty (20) working days of full compensation,
members of any reserve component of the armed forces of the United States, including members of the Tennessee army
and air national guard, may use up tofive (5) days of sick leave in lieu of vacation leave for the purposes of not having to
take leave without pay.

MILITARY RESERVISTS LEAVE

Active State Duty: Army/Air National Guard and TN State Guard, Civil Air Patrol
In addition to the leave of absence provided above, employees who are members of the Tennessee army and air national
guard on active state duty or the Tennessee state guard and civil air patrol shall be entitled o an unpaid leave of absence
from their respective duties, without loss of time, pay not specifically related to leave of absence time, regular leave or
vacation, or impairment of efficiency rating for all periods of service during which under competent orders he/she is engaged
in the performance of duty or training in the service of this state, including the performance of duties in an emergency.
Pursuant to T.C.A. § 42-7-102, members of the United States air force auxiliary civil air patrol who participate in a training
program for the civil air patrol, or in emergency and disaster services, as defined in T.C.A. § 58-2-101, are entitled to aleave
of absence with pay for a period of not more than fifteen (15) days during a calendar year for such purposes if the leave of
absence is at the request of the employee's wing commander or the wing commander's designated representative.
Employees granted leave are entitled to their regular salary during the time that they are away from their regular duties. All
the rights and benefits of the employee continue as if a leave of absence had not been granted.
It is the responsibility of the employee to make arrangements with their department head for leave to attend monthly
meetings on regular off time, with the expectation that the paid leave granted herein will be applied to the annual training
periods required for reservists.
8-33-110. Unpaid leave for members of Tennessee army and air national guard, Tennessee state guard and civil air
patrol.
In addition to the leave of absence provided in § 8-33-109, all officers and employees of this state, or any department or
agency thereof, or of any county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision, all other public employees of this
state and all private sector employees who are members of the Tennessee army and air national guard on active state duty
or the Tennessee state guard and civil air patrol shall be entitied to an unpaid leave of absence from their respective duties,
without loss of time, pay not specifically related to leave of absence time, regular leave or vecation or impaiment of efficiency
rating for all periods of service during which under competent orders they are engaged in the performance of duty or training
in the service of this state, including the performance of duties in an emergency.

4.7 Workers Compensation
Town employees are subject to the provisions of the Tennessee Workers' Compensation Act and are entitled to the
benefits of that law, whether by injury or occupational disease arising out of and in the course of employment.

Injury or occupational disease occurring out of and in the course of employment shall be reported to the Recorder
and/or supervisor as soon as possible and the Recorder shall file the necessary reports.

The Town Recorder will furnish information and reports concerning injuries, or alleged injuries, or occupational
diseases which are or may be within the scope of the Workers’ Compensation Act, in order that proper medical



attention is provided, compensation and expenses are paid, investigation and determination of applicable benefit
eligibility may be made, and that compensation is terminated when the disability ceases or benefits are exhausted.

An employee entitled to be paid Workers' Compensation for temporary disability may be granted sick leave with full
pay for the first five (5) working days of such disability, excluding the day of injury (assuming such employee has
sufficient accumulated sick leave).

Worker's compensation pays an employee 66.67% of their weekly salary once the employee has been disabled
for more than seven (7) days. Compensation will be made as of the eighth day of disability due to an occupational
injury. If the employee is disabled for fourteen (14) days or more, worker's compensation will pay the employee
retroactively from the first full day of absence from work up to the return date to work. Employees receiving
worker's compensation payments may not supplement their pay with accrued paid leave. An employee who is
receiving Workers' Compensation for an injury or occupational disease arising from the course and scope of
employment, shall have the option of electing to use accumulated sick leave and/or vacation leave for the first
seven calendar days of Workers’ Compensation leave. After such sick and/or vacation leave has been used, the
employee shall not be entitled to any compensation except that authorized by the Workman's Compensation Act.
Such injured employees shall be carried in a leave without pay status for a period not to exceed one (1) year after
which employment may cease.

Employees injured on the job that receive a restricted release or restricted permission to return to work may be
returned to their prior position if reasonable accommodation can be made without violating the medical
restriction(s) or does not pose a safety risk to themselves or others. Likewise, such an employee may be placed
in another position for which they are qualified within the Town if such an open position exists, and the injured
employee’s restrictions may be accommodated. Nothing herein should be construed as a commitment on the
part of the Town to make work or create a position for an injured employee.

48 ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE
Absence by an employee from place of duty not specifically authorized or covered in this manual shall be charged
as absence without leave. Absence without leave shall be in a non-pay status and may be cause for disciplinary
action, up to and including discharge.

49 FAMILY LEAVE
The Family and Medical leave policy is applicable to employees who have worked at least 12 months for the Town
and who have worked at least 1,250 hours during the preceding 12-month period, and work for an employer with
50 or more employees within 75 miles of the work site. Until such time the Town employs 50 or more employees,
no employees shall be deemed eligible under the Act.

51 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

Employees are expected to maintain a productive work environment free from harassing or disruptive activity
including threats of physical violence. No form of bullying or harassment will be tolerated, including sexual
harassment and harassment based on race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin,
disability, military status, genetic information, communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing
to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under
clear public policy, political affiliation, or any other basis protected by law. This policy applies to all Town employees,

elected officials, appointed officials, part-time/temporary employees, and contractors.
1. No employee or non-employee shall be allowed to harass any other employee or non-employee by exhibiting

behavior including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Verbal harassment - Verbal threats toward persons or property; the use of vulgar or profane
language directed towards others; disparaging or derogatory comments or slur; offensive flirtations




or propositions; verbal intimidation; exaggerated criticism or name-calling; spreading untrue or
malicious gossip about others.

b. Physical Harassment - Any physical assault, such as hitting, pushing, kicking, holding, impeding,
or blocking the movement of another person.

c. Visual Harassment — Displaying derogatory or offensive posters, cartoons, publications, or
drawings.

d. Bullyir?g— Workplace bullying refers to unwanted aggressive behavior that involves a real or
perceived power imbalance. The behavior is repeated, or has the potential to be repeated, over
time. The imbalance of power involves the use of physical strength, access to embarrassing
information, or popularity to control or harm others. This behavior may be performed by individuals
(or a group) directed towards an individual (or a group of individuals)

2. Allemployees, except those authorized to carry weapons for official job-related purposes, are prohibited from
carrying weapons while performing work for the Town.

3. Under no circumstances are the following items permitted on Town property, including Town-owned parking
areas, except when issued or sanctioned by the Town for use in the performance of the employee’s job:

e dangerous chemicals; or
e explosives or blasting caps; or
» other objects carried for the purposes of injury or infimidation.

4. Charges of violence and harassment may be reported to any supervisory employee of the local government,
including the Town Administrator and the Mayor. The Town will promptly investigate reports of workplace
violence including suspicious individuals or activities. Depending on the severity of the charges or whether a
crime is committed, the Town Administrator may request that the Police Chief provide assistance or assume
responsibility for the investigation. All employees are required to assist during the investigation by providing
testimony, statements, and evidence, as required. Failure to cooperate or creating an interference may result
in disciplinary action.

52 HARASSMENT
Employees are obligated to report instances of harassment. Employees are also obligated to cooperate in every
investigation of harassment. The obligation includes, but is not fimited to, coming forward with evidence, both
favorable and unfavorable, for a person accused of such conduct; fully and truthfully make written reports or
verbally answer questions when required to do so by the investigator. All employees are required to assist during
the investigation by providing testimony, statements, and evidence, as required. Failure to cooperate may resuit
in disciplinary action.

Copies of the investigative report with recommendations for appropriate action will be turned over to the Town
Administrator for further action. Anyone determined to be responsible for threats of, or actual violence, or other
conduct that is in violation of this policy will be subject to prompt disciplinary action up to and including termination.

The following actions constitute an unlawful practice and are absolutely prohibited by the Town when they affect
employment decisions, create a hostile job environment, cause distractions, or unreasonably interfere with work
performance. They are:

1. sexual harassment or unwelcome sexual advances,

2. requests for sexual favors.

3. verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature in the form of pinching, grabbing, patting, or
propositioning.
explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for submission to sexual favors.
inappropriate sexually oriented comments on appearance.
sexually oriented stories.
displaying sexually explicit or pornographic material, no matter how the material is

Novo A



displayed; and/or

sexual assault on the job by supervisors, fellow employees, or non-employees

9. Demeaning insulting, intimidating or sexually suggestive written, recorded or electronically
transmitted materials (such as email, instant message, and internet materials)

.

Employees must avoid any action or conduct which could be viewed as sexual or other discriminatory harassment.
Persons who engage in unlawful sexual or other discriminatory harassment will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment.

Employees and others will not be retaliated against for raising complaints of sexual or other discriminatory
harassment, unless the claim is one that is made in dishonest bad faith.

Making Harassment Complaints
Prevention is the best tool for the elimination of harassment. Therefore, the following rules shall be strictly enforced.

An employee who feels he/she is being subjected to harassment should immediately contact their supervisor or
the Town Administrator or any other individual with whom the employee feels the most comfortable.

The employee should be prepared to provide the following information:
(2) The employee’s name, department, and position title.
(b)The name of the person or persons committing the sexual harassment including their fitles, if
known.
(c) The specific nature of harassment, how long it has gone on, and any adverse action (demotion, failure
to promote, dismissal, refusal to hire, transfer, etc.), taken against the employee because of the
harassment, or any other threats made against the employee because of the harassment. (d)Witnesses to
the harassment.
(e)Whether the employee has previously reported the harassment and, if so, when and to whom.

Reporting and Investigation of Harassment Complaints

The Town Administrator is the person designated by the Town to be the investigator of complaints of harassment
against employees. In the event the harassment complaint is against the Town Administrator, the investigator
shall be the Town attorney, or independent attorney provided by the Town's Employment Practices Liability
Insurance provider.

When an allegation of harassment is made by any employee, the person to whom the compliant is made shall
immediately prepare a report of the compliant according to the preceding section and submit it to the Town
Administrator.

The investigator shall make and keep a written record of the investigation, including notes of verbal responses
made to the investigator by the person complaining of harassment, witnesses interviewed during the investigation,
the person against whom the compliant of harassment was made, and any other person contacted by the
investigator in connection with the investigation.

Upon conclusion of the investigation, the investigator shall prepare a confidential report of the findings and present
them to the Town Administrator. The report shall include the written statement for the person complaining of
harassment, the written statement of witnesses, the written statement of the person against whom the compliant
of harassment was made, and all the investigator's notes connected to the investigation.

Action on Complaints of Harassment

Upon review of the investigator's report, the Town Administrator shall, within a reasonable time, determine whether
the conduct of the person against whom a harassment complaint has been made constitutes harassment in
violation of this policy. In making that determination, the Town Administrator shall look at the record as a whole
and at the totality of circumstances, including the nature of the conduct in question, the context in which the




conduct, if any, occurred, and the conduct of the person complaining.

If the Town Administrator determines that the complaint of harassment is well founded, in whole or in part, he/she
shall take prompt and effective remedial action against the employee found to have engaged in harassment, which
may include disciplinary action up to and including termination. To the extent possible, the disciplinary action
should be consistent with the nature and severity of the offense and may take into consideration such factors as
the effect of the offense on the complainant, or on employee morale and public perception of the offense.
Disciplinary action will be determined on a case-by-case.

A written record of the disciplinary action shall be kept, including verbal reprimands. In all events, an employee
found guilty of harassment shall be warned not to retaliate in any way against the person making the compliant of
harassment, witnesses or any other person connected with the investigation of the compliant of harassment.

In cases where the harassment is committed by a non-employee against a municipal government employee in the
workplace, the Town Administrator shall take whatever lawful action against the non-employee is necessary to
bring the harassment to an immediate end.

6.1 DRUG AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY
To provide a safe, healthy, productive, and drug-free working environment for its employees to properly conduct
the public business, the Town has adopted a drug and alcohol testing policy. The types of tests required are pre-
employment (for safety-sensitive positions), transfer (for certain safety sensitive positions), reasonable suspicion,
post-accident, random (for safety-sensitive positions), return-to-duty, and follow-up post rehabilitation testing. A
copy of the full policy can be obtained from the Town recorder.

6.2 TRAVEL POLICY
Employees shall be reimbursed for official travel in the performance of their duties, as well as for official
expenses personally incurred related to their position. A copy of Town of Mount Carmel approved Travel Policy is
available in the recorder's office.

6.3 USE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
All local government vehicles and equipment are for official use only. No other person other than a local
government employee may operate a local government vehicle or piece of machinery. Passengers may be carried
only as part of official business. Drivers and/or operators must have a valid driver's license and other certifications
as required for a particular vehicle or piece of equipment and be approved by the department head or the Town
Administrator.

Any employee who is required as an employment condition to possess and maintain a valid driver's or commercial
driver's license or any employee who drives a Town vehicle must immediately, before reporting for duty the next
workday, inform his/her supervisor if hisfher license becomes denied, expired, restricted, suspended, or revoked
any time during employment with the local government. A periodic review (no less than once every three (3) years)
of employees' driving records will be conducted by the Town Administrator or their designee. If a town vehicle
becomes damaged or is found to be damaged, the employee must immediately notify their supervisor.

6.4 PERSONAL/BUSINESS CELL PHONES
Employees should ensure personal cell phones do not interfere with their work or the Town'’s operations. Cell
phones shall be turned off or set to silent or vibrate mode during meetings, conferences and in other locations
where incoming calls may disrupt normal workflow.



Business cell phones are typically provided to positions that require immediate and on-going communication due
to management responsibilities, field operations and emergency response purposes. Since they are provided to
conduct Town business, the employee should limit personal usage to calls that are essential. If an individual is
abusing the privilege of using a Town cell phone, disciplinary action may be taken, along with discontinuation of
the use of the Town cell phone. Employees must be aware that any electronic communication devices owned by
the Town are open to audit for monetary and/or content review or for any purpose and are always subject to
public record requests.

6.5 CUSTOMER COURTESY
All contact with customers, citizens, and coworkers should be managed in a professional manner.
Professionalism, politeness, and courtesy are essential. Lack of courtesy and professionalism may result in
disciplinary action.

6.6 ATTENDANCE AND PERSONAL CONDUCT
Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time and prepared to start working. Employees also
are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule. Late arrival, early departure or other absences from
scheduled hours are disruptive and must be avoided.
Employees are representatives of the Town and as such, are expected and encouraged to conduct themselves
always in a manner so as not to bring discredit upon the Town of Mount Carmel. Employees engaging in activities
that are harmful to public perception of the Town may face disciplinary action.

6.7 DRESS CODE
Non-Uniform
Personal appearance and manner of dress is an important part of your job responsibilities. Employees are
expected to dress and groom in a manner which reflects good taste, and which is appropriate for the type of work
performed. Since all employees deal with co-workers and the public daily, personal hygiene is a requirement.
Employees should ensure their personal hygiene will not be offensive to others around them. This includes but is
not limited to — scented body products, perfume/cologne, oral hygiene, and body odor. An employee who does
not meet the standards of this policy will be required to take corrective actions, which may include leaving the
premises. Any work time missed because of failure to comply with this policy will not be compensated, and
repeated violations of this policy may be cause for disciplinary action.
Uniform
In departments where uniforms are provided, all employees are expected to wear the uniform according to
departmental policy. All uniforms are expected to be kept neat and in good repair. There may be an allowance
allotted and/or uniforms will be provided for those employees required to wear uniforms and is specific to their
respective department.

6.8  NON-SMOKER PROTECTION ACT
The Town complies with the Non-Smoker Protection Act of 2007 which prohibits smoking in all public places such
as buildings, equipment, and Town-owned vehicles. All employees who operate Town-owned vehicles are
prohibited from smoking in the vehicle or piece of equipment. Violators of this policy will be subject to disciplinary
action.

6.9 COMPUTER USE AND MONITORING
Computers, the Internet, and e-mail, as with other technologies, should be used to maximize the Town’s efforts in
serving its citizens. It is every employee’s duty to use the Town's computer resources and communication devices
responsibly, professionally, ethically, and lawfully. These policies are not intended to, and do not, grant users any
contractual rights. The term “Computer Resources” refers to the Town’s computers, electronic equipment, and its
entire computer network



Computer Use Policy Overview
The computer resources are the property of the Town and should be used for legitimate business purposes. While

personal use of Town computer resources, including the Internet and electronic mail is not forbidden, it is
discouraged. Personal use shall be minimal and shall not interfere with the performance of job duties and
responsibilities. Users are permitted access to the computer to assist them in performing their jobs. Confidential
information or other information that would cause citizens to lose confidence in the Town or its personnel should
not be provided using e-mail or shared with individuals outside the Town's employment ranks.

No one may use loopholes or acts of subterfuge within the computer security systems or knowledge of a special
password to damage computer systems, to compromise sensitive information, to obtain extra resources, to take
resources from another user, to gain access to systems or to use systems from which proper authorization has
not been given. Users may not impersonate other individuals or misrepresent themselves.

Use of the computer is a privilege that may be restricted or revoked at any time. All information contained in the
computer and all documents generated there from are for the exclusive use of the Town in connection with the
conduct of its business and are the sole property of the Town.

Waiver of Privacy Rights
Users expressly waive any right of privacy in anything they create, store, send or receive using a town computer.

Compliance with Laws and Licenses
In their use of computers, users must comply with all software licenses and copyrights and all state, federal and
international laws governing intellectual property and online activities.

Communication of Trade Secrets
Unless expressly authorized by the Town, sending, transmitting, or otherwise disseminating proprietary data, trade
secrets or other confidential information of the Town is prohibited.

Use of Encryption Software
Users may not install or use encryption software on any computers without first obtaining written permission from

the Town.

Monitoring Usage
The Town has the right to monitor sites visited by employees on the Internet, monitoring chat groups and

newsgroups, reviewing material downloaded or uploaded by users to the Intemnet, and reviewing e-mail sent and
received by others. Employee violations of any of the provisions outlined in this policy may subject employee to
disciplinary action.

Public Records

All employee correspondence in the form of electronic mail, including computers, computer files, software, Internet
access, voice mail and the e-mail system, are public records under the Tennessee Public Records Act and may
be subject to public inspection under the law.

6.10 SOCIAL MEDIA USE AND INTERNET POSTING
This policy applies to every employee, whether part-time, full-time, currently employed by the Town of Mount
Carmel in any capacity who posts any material whether written, audio, video or otherwise on any website, blog or
any other medium accessible via the internet.

The policy applies to municipal employees posting content to non-Town created social media platforms in their
personal capacity. Employees are prohibited from posting anything on the internet that could be construed as an
act of unlawful harassment, a threat, or other evidence of discrimination. Employees should limit their personal
internet activities to non-working hours, meal periods and/or rest breaks.

An employee may not characterize him or herself as representing the Town, directly or indirectly, in any online



posting unless pursuant to a written policy of the Town or at the direction of a supervisor.

The simultaneous use of a Town email address, job title, official Town name, or logo in conjunction of a posting
shall be evidence of an attempt to represent the Town in an official capacity. Other communications leading a
reasonable viewer to conclude that a posting was made in an official capacity shall also be deemed evidence to
represent the Town in an official capacity.

Any postings on non-Town social media made in an official capacity may be subject to the Tennessee Open
Records Act.

When posting in a personal social media account an employee should take reasonable care to distinguish that his
content is a personal expression and not that of the agency.

Employees who violate the terms of this policy are subject to discipline up to and including termination.

6.11 RECORDING AND CAMERA DEVICES
Electronic recorders are prohibited, except when the use of an audio recorder is part of the employee's job
responsibilities as strictly defined within his/her job description. Electronic recordings are allowed during official
Board of Mayor and Aldermen and other various commission meetings. Audio recordings may also be utilized
during disciplinary or grievance hearings for documentation purposes at the discretion of the Department Head
and/or Town Administrator. Failure to comply will result in prompt disciplinary actions.

6.12 DISCIPLINARY ACTION
The Town'’s progressive discipline process is designed to provide a structured corrective action process to improve
and prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior and performance issues.

The Town reserves the right to discharge employees at will, for cause or for no reason, except that no employee
will be discharged for reasons that are prohibited by state and federal law. Acceptable disciplinary actions include,
but are not limited to:
e Retraining
Personal Improvement Plan
Counseling and verbal warning
Written warning
Suspension/probation and final written warning
Suspension or Termination

Behavior that is illegal, and/or involves theft, substance abuse, intoxication, fighting and any other acts of violence
or threats at work may not be subject to routine or normal progressive discipline, and may result in immediate
termination. Such behavior may also be reported to the appropriate local law enforcement authorities.

All employees are required to promptly self-report any criminal charges, arrests, or convictions to Town
Administration or their immediate supervisor, as such disclosures are essential to maintaining the integrity, safety,
and compliance standards of the Town.

Employees who have been terminated for cause are not eligible for rehire.

71 CODE OF ETHICS
The code of ethics for personnel of the municipality was adopted in 2007. By Ordinance 320. It applies to all full-
time and part-time elected or appointed officials and employees, whether compensated or not, including those of
any separate board, commission, committee, authority, corporation, or other instrumentality appointed or created



by the municipality.

7.2 TERMINATION, ACCOUNTABILITY AND DISCLOSURE ACT
All employees are responsible for disclosing conflicts of interest. This could include, but is not limited to, the hiring
of immediate family members, using confidential information to obtain financial gain, the use of Town personnel,
resources, property, supplies or funds for personal use or gain or entering certain contracts without having an
open bidding process and voting on issues where personal gain is involved.

7.3 GENETIC INFORMATION AND NONDISCRIMINATION ACT

The Town of Mount Carmel is committed to providing a work environment free of discrimination and harassment
based on genetic information. It is the Town’s policy to notify employees and health care providers not to provide
genetic information when the Town requests health related information. The notice should be included on request
forms and/or provided on a separate form when employees or healthcare providers are asked to submit health-
related information.

It is the Town's policy to comply with GINA's confidentiality requirements by treating genetic information in the
same way as medical information. It is also the policy of the Town not to refaliate against any employee for
complaining about discrimination or harassment based on genetic information. If you feel you have been
discriminated against or retaliated against, or harassed based on genetic information, follow the complaint
procedure detailed in the workplace harassment policy.

74 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA/ADAAA)
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act (ADAAA) are
federal laws that require employers with 15 or more employees to not discriminate against applicants and
individuals with disabilities and, when needed, to provide reasonable accommodations to applicants and
employees who are qualified for a job, with or without reasonable accommodations, so that they may perform the
essential job duties of the position.

The Town is committed to the fair and equal employment of individuals with disabilities under the ADA. It is the
Town's policy to provide reasonable accommodation to individuals with disabilities who are qualified for the job in
question unless the accommodation imposes an undue hardship on the Town. The Town prohibits any harassment
of, or discriminatory treatment of, employees based on a disability or because an employee has requested
reasonable accommodation.

In accordance with the ADA, reasonable accommodations will be provided to qualified individuals with disabilities
to enable them to perform the essential functions of their jobs or to enjoy the equal benefits and privileges of
employment. This policy applies to all applicants for employment and all employees.

Eligibility

The ADA policy applies to any qualified individual with a disability who can perform the essential functions of the
job with, or without, reasonable accommodation.

Disability

“Disability” refers to a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities. A
“qualified person with a disability’ means an individual with a disability who has the requisite skills, experience,
and education for the job in question, and who can perform the essential functions of the job with or without
reasonable accommodation.

Reasonable Accommodation

The Town will seek to provide a reasonable accommodation for a known disability or at the request of an individual
with a disability. A “reasonable accommodation” is any change or adjustment to the job application process, work
environment, or work processes that would make it possible for the individual with a disability to perform the
essential functions of the job and does not place undue hardship on the Town.

Essential Job Functions

For each position, the job description typically will identify essential job functions. The Town Administrator will




review job descriptions on a periodic basis to evaluate job functions designated as essential. An applicant's or
employee’s questions about a job's requirements should be directed to their supervisor.

Requesting Reasonable Accommodation(s)

An applicant or employee with a disability is responsible for requesting accommodation(s) from the Town
Administrator or designee and engaging in an informal process to clarify what the applicant or employee needs
and to identify possible accommodations. The Town will inform the applicant or employee of his/her rights under
the ADA and document the interactive process discussions. An applicant or employee may be required to provide
documentation from an appropriate professional, such as a doctor or a rehabilitation counsellor, conceming the
applicant's disability and functional limitations. If an applicant or employee disagrees with the result of the medical
examination, the applicant or employee may request a second examination performed and paid for by the
applicant or employee. In the event of a disagreement in the two previous medical opinions, a third opinion may
be obtained with both parties sharing the cost of the examination.

The applicant or employee should describe the problem created by a workplace barrier so that appropriate
accommodation(s) may be considered. Typically, the Town Administrator will collaborate with the applicant or
employee to identify possible reasonable accommodations and to assess the effectiveness of each in allowing
the applicant or employee to complete the hiring process or perform the essential functions of the job.

Based on this interactive process, reasonable accommodations will be selected that are appropriate for both the
Town and the individual. While an individual’s preference will be considered, the Town is free to choose between
equally effective accommodations with consideration toward expense and impact on the rest of the organization.
A request for reasonable accommodation may be denied if it would create an undue hardship for the Town. The
Town Administrator will provide notification in writing of denial based on undue hardship. Factors to be considered
when determining whether an undue hardship exists include the cost of the accommodation, the organization's
overall financial resources, the financial resources of the facility at which the accommodation is to be made, the
number of employees at the facility, the total number of employees of the organization, and the type of operation.
Safety

All employees are expected to comply with all safety procedures. The Town Administrator will not place qualified
individuals with disabilities in positions in which they will pose a direct threat to the health or safety of others or
themselves. A “direct threat” means a significant risk to the health or safety of oneself or others that cannot be
eliminated by reasonable accommodation. The determination that an individual with a disability poses a direct
threat typically will be made by the Town Administrator and will be based on factual, objective evidence. A written
copy of the determination will be given to the applicant or employee so that he or she may submit additional
information and/or challenge the determination that he or she poses a direct threat.

Confidentiality

All information obtained concerning the medical condition or history of an applicant or employee will be treated as

confidential information, maintained in separate medical files, and disclosed only as permitted by law.

Complaint Procedure

It is the policy of the Town to prohibit any harassment of, or discriminatory treatment of, applicants or employees
based on a disability for requesting a reasonable accommodation. If an individual feels he or she has been subject
to such treatment or has witnessed such treatment, the situation may be reported to any supervisory employee of
the Town including the Town Administrator. The Town's policy prohibits retaliation against an applicant or
employee for exercising his or her rights under the ADA or applicable state fair employment laws. Any employee
found to have engaged in retaliation against an applicant or employee for exercising his or her rights or for making
a request for reasonable accommodation under this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
discharge. if an applicant or employee feels he or she has been retaliated against, the situation may be reported
to any supervisory employee of the Town, or any of the following, the Town Administrator, department head or
Town recorder.




APPENDIX A - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT - MOUNT CARMEL PERSONNEL POLICY

This is to acknowledge that | have received a copy of the Town of Mount Carmel (‘the Town") Personnel Policy
and understand that it outlines certain Town policies, procedures and benefits as may exist at the time of
publication. | understand that it is my responsibility to familiarize myself with all information within the Personnel
Regulations.

| understand that the Personnel Regulations do NOT constitute a contract or agreement of any kind; it is merely a
statement of policies and procedures. | understand that the contents of the Personnel Regulations do not confer
any rights on, promises to me, or guarantee my employment for any period. | understand that the Town can alter,
gliminate, or otherwise change any policy, information, or benefit described in the Personnel Regulation (except the
“at-will' employment policy), without notice, at any time and it is my responsibility to review the manual periodically
on the website to observe any recent changes.

| understand that my employment with the Town is employment at will and can be terminated by me of
the Town at any time for any reason or no reason. | understand that, although other terms and conditions
of my employment may change, this at-will employment relationship will remain in effect throughout my
employment with the Town. | understand that this at-will relationship may not be modified by any oral or
implied promises or agreements. | understand that no employee has a right to continued employment by
virtue of anything stated or inferred in the Personnel Regulations.

| understand that nothing in the Personnel Regulations or any summary brochure or employee handbook should
be deemed to be a promise by the Town to provide any benefit. Rather, the Town reserves the right to alter or
eliminate any benefit, without notice, at any time.

| understand that the Personnel Regulations replaces (supersedes) all prior Town policies and all prior Town
Personnel regulations, employee handbooks or manuals, and any information contained in any such prior policy,
handbook, or manual is no longer in effect.

| understand and agree that all Town property must be retumed upon separation from employment. By signing
below, | understand and agree that the Town may deduct from my final paycheck any pre-funded benefit and any
other amount due (on a depreciated/prorated basis) for failure to return Town property if the deduction(s) do not
reduce final pay to below minimum wage.

Employee Signature

Date



APPENDIX B - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM — EMPLOYEE DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

As an applicant or an employee, | have carefully read the Town of Mount Carmel's drug and alcohol testing policy.
| have received a copy of the Town of Mount Carmel’s drug and alcohol testing policies, understood its
requirements, and agreed without reservation to follow this policy. As an applicant, | am aware that my offer of
employment is conditional upon the results of a drug andfor alcohol test. As an employee, | am aware that | may
be required to undergo drug and/or alcohol tests, that | will be informed prior to the drug and/or alcohol test, and
that | may be subject to immediate dismissal if | refuse to take the test.

As an applicant or an employee with the Town of Mount Carmel, | hereby consent to and acknowledge that | am
scheduled to undergo drug and/or alcohol testing. The test for alcohol will be a breath analysis test. The drug test
will involve an analysis of a urine sample, which | will provide at a designated site. The purpose of the test will be
to evaluate for the presence of the following substances: amphetamines, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, PCP,
alcohol, and/or any additional drugs listed in the Tennessee Drug Control Act. | authorize qualified personnel to
take and have analyzed appropriate specimens to determine if drugs and/or alcohol are present in my system. I
acknowledge that the drug/alcohol test results will be made available to the testing laboratory, medical review
officer (MRO), the (personnel director), or histher designee. As an applicant, | am aware that a confirmed and
verified positive drug/alcohol test result will rescind my conditional offer of employment. As an employee, | am
aware that a confirmed and verified positive test result may lead to disciplinary action up to and including immediate
dismissal. | will present a copy of this form to the collection site when | report for my scheduled drug/alcohol test.
| also understand that failure to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid medical explanation, failure to
provide adequate urine for controfled substances testing without a valid medical explanation and engaging in
conduct that clearly obstructs the testing process are the same as refusing to test.

Name of Applicant or Employee Social Security Number
Department Supervisor Department
(Signature of Applicant or Employee) Date

(Signature of Witness)



Part-Time
Grade A

Hourly  Annual

Public Works
Grade J

Hourly  Annual

Administrative Support
Grade N

Hourly  Annual

Police
Grade P

Hourly  Annual

Department Directors
Grade U
Hourly ~ Annual

Assistant
Town Administrator
Grade X

Hourly  Annual

Town Administrator
Grade Z

Hourly  Annual

Entry

$11.25|$11,702.91

$17.46| $36,320.13

$21.22|$44,129.28

$23.00|$51,438.73

$28.71|559,716.80

$33.23|$ 69,1840

$36.64 |$ 76,211.20

Step1

$11.53|$11,995.48

$17.90|$37,228.13

$21.75645,232.51

$23.58 | $52,724.70

$29.43|561,209.72

$34.06 | $ 70,346.36

$37.56 5 78,116.48

Step 2,

$11.82|$12,295.37

$18.35| $38,158.83

$22.29546,363.32

$24.17|$54,042.82

$30.16 | $62,739.96

$34.91|$ 72,617.52

$38.49 | $ 80,069.39

Step3

$12.12| $12,602.76

$18.80|$39,112.81

$22.85|647,522.41

$24.77 655,393.89

$30.92 | 564,308.46

$35.79|$ 74,432.96

$39.46 |5 82,071.13

Step 4

$12.42|$12,917.83

$19.27| $40,090.63

$23.42|$48,710.47

$25.39 | $56,778.74

$31.69 | $65,916.17

$36.68|$ 76,293.78

$40.44 |§ 84,122.90

Step5

$12.73| $13,240.77

$19.76 | $41,092.89

$24.00|$49,928.23

$26.03 | $58,198.20

$32.48 | 567,564.08

$37.60|$ 78,201.13

$41.45 |$ 86,225.98

Step 6

$13.05| $13,571.79

$20.25|$42,120.21

$24.60|$51,176.44

$26.68 | $59,653.16

$33.29|969,253.18

$38.54|5 80,156.15

$42.49 |5 88,381.63

Step7

$13.38| $13,911.08

$20.76 | $43,173.22

$25.22|$52,455.85

$27.35| 961,144.49

$34.13|570,984.51

$39.50|$ 82,160.06

$43.55|$ 90,591.17

Step B

$13.71| $14,258.86

$21.28| $44,252.55

$25.85|$53,767.24

$28.03|562,673.10

$34.98|572,759.12

$40.49|$ 84,214.06

$44.64|$ 92,855.95

Step9

$14.05| $14,615.33

$21.81 $45,358.86

$26.50 | $55,111.42

$28.73 | $64,239.93

$35.85|$74,578.10

$41.50|$ 86,319.41

$45.76 | $ 95,177.35

Step 10

$14.40| $14,980.72

$22.35| $46,492.83

$27.16|$56,489.21

$29.45| $65,845.93

$36.75| $76,442.55

$42.54 | $ 88,477.40

$46.90 | 97,556.78

Step 11

$14.76| $15,355.23

$22.91 | $47,655.16

$27.84 | 557,901.44

$30.18| $67,492.08

$37.67|578,353.62

$43.60 | $ 90,689.33

$48.07 |$ 99,995.70

Step 12|

$15.13| $15,739.12

$23.48 | $48,846.53

$28.53|$59,348.98

$30.94 | $69,179.38

$38.61|580,312.46

$44.69|$ 92,956.56

$49.28 | $102,495.59

Step13

$15.51| $16,132.59

$24.07 | $50,067.70

$29.25460,832.70

$31.71|$70,908.86

$39.58|$82,320.27

$45.81|$ 95,28048

$50.51 $105,057.98

Step14

$15.90| $16,535.91

$24.67|51,319.39

$29.98$62,353.52

$32.51|572,681.58

$40.57|584,378.28

$46.95|5 9766249

$51.77|$107,684.43

Step 15

$16.30| $16,949.31

$25.29| $52,602.37

$30.73|$63,912.36

$33.32|$74,498.62

$41.58 | 586,487.73

$48.13 | $100,104.05

$53.07 | $110,376.54

Step 16}

$16.70| $17,373.04

$25.92 | $53,917.43

$31.50|$65,510.16

$34.15|576,361.09

$42.62 | $88,649.93

$49.33$102,606.65

$54.39|$113,135.95

Step 17|

$17.12| $17,807.36

$26.57 | $55,265.37

$32.28|567,147.92

$35.00| $78,270.12

$43.69 | $90,866.17

$50.56 | $105,171.82

$55.75 | $115,964.35

Step 18

$17.55 | $18,252.55

$27.23 | $56,647.00

$33.09 | $ 68,826.62

$35.88 | $80,226.87

$44.78593,137.83

$51.83|5107,801.12

$57.15 | $118,863.46

Step 19|

$17.99| $18,708.86

$27.91|$58,063.18

$33.92|$70,547.28

$36.78 | $82,232.54

$45.90 | 595,466.27

$53.12$110,496.14

$58.57 | $121,835.05

Step 20,

$18.44 | $19,176.58

$28.61| $59,514.76

$34.76|$72,310.96

$37.70| $84,288.35

$47.04|597,852.93

$§54.45$113,258.55

$60.04 | $124,880.93

NY1d AVd 33A0TdINT TIWIVD LNNOW 40 NMOL = 3 XIONIddY

NL “TaWN¥YD LNNOW 40 NMOL 92/520Z Ad - NV1d Avd a3Ldoay



MOUNT CARMEL

% (e Zo put deu st teals
7 r

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: Allen Coup, Town Attorney

FROM: James Stables, Interim Town Administrator-Town Manager

DATE: August 28, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-659 PROVIDING ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

REVIEW (August 2024-August 2025) of JAMES STABLES as TOWN
ADMINISTRATOR/MANAGER and MODIFICATION of the TOWN
ADMINISTRATOR/MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

SUMMARY:
This resolution formalizes the annual performance review of James Stables, serving as the

Town of Mount Carmel Administrator/Manager and establishes certain benefits and
conditions for his continued employment as Town Administrator-Town Manager through
modification of the employment agreement.

REQUESTING PARTY:
Board of Mayor & Aldermen and Town Administrator/Manager

FISCAL IMPACT:

$2,051.77 (2.49%) annual salary increase; cumulative FY 25/26 increase $3,122.90 (3.81%)
which is below the minimum cumulative for all other town employees FY 25/26 .

STAFF ECOMMENDATION:

No staff recommendation

ATTACHMENTS:

Summary & Combined Town Manager Evaluation Information (12 pages)

Revised Employment Agreement for James Stables, Town Administrator-Town Manager dated
August 28, 2025 (3 pages)



MOUNT CARMEL.

%/;ﬁv«:c Yo /Jn?,‘//:-‘-w ve gaals

RESOLUTION 25-659

RESOLUTION PROVIDING ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
(August 19, 2024-August 19, 2025) of JAMES STABLES as TOWN
ADMINISTRATOR/MANAGER and MODIFICATION of the TOWN
ADMINISTRATOR/MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

BEFORE THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL,
TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel originally employed James Stables on August 19,
2024, as the Interim Town Administrator/Manager, and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen previously took action to remove the interim
title and employ him as the town administrator/manager on February 27, 2025, James Stables
has continued to perform his duties and meet the responsibilities of the position with a high
level of skill, professionalism, and dedication consistent with the expectations of the Board of
Mayor and Aldermen, and the public, successfully completing one year with the Town, and;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Mount Carmel have completed
an annual performance evaluation for the period of August 19, 2024-August 19, 2025, of
James Stables as the Town Administrator/Manager and provided dialogue and feedback as to
the evaluation awarding him collectively an overall “exceeds expectations” (4) rating on a
scale of 1 to 5, with 1 being the lowest score and 5 being the highest score, and;

WHEREAS, the adoption of this resolution continues James Stables’ employment as the
Mount Carmel Town Administrator/Manager and provides certain benefits, establishes certain
conditions of employment, and establishes working conditions for him as heretofore set Sforth
in the revised employment agreement (Attachment 2); and;



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AN ALDERMEN
OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE, as follows

SECTION 1. Receiving an acceptable annual performance review James Stables continues
employment as the Town Administrator/Manager for the Town of Mount Carmel under the
mutual covenants and benefits contained within the attached revised Employment Agreement,

Be It Resolved, the 25" day of September 2025

This Resolution was duly considered and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, in and
for the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, this 25 day of September 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor Attest:

Tyler Williams, Town Recorder



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF TOWN MANAGER
MOUNT CARMEL Management, Leadership, and Executive Skills

A ptuce le prt o psun

Name: James Stables
Department: Town Administrator/Manager
Date: September 25, 2025  (rating period 08/19/2024-08/19/2025)

INSTRUCTIONS: Please assess the Manager’s performance by rating on a scale of 1 to 5, each of the items listed under each of the ten major sections.
A score of 1 is the lowest and a score of 5 is the highest. If there is a rating of 1 or 5 use the comment pages to substantiate it.

" A collective Management rating shall be determined for each major category after individual ratings are determined

1 2 3 4 5
Does Not Meet Improvement Meels Exceeds Outstanding
Expeclations Needed Expectations Expectations Performance

1. ABILITY TO MANAGE

1.1 Exhibits competence in planning, D
organizing and follow-through.

. 1.2 Maintains control of organization

. 1.3 Shows understanding of employee
. relations.

N NANE

1.4 Prepares well before giving instructions.

. 1.5 Delegates as appropriate to allow time for
i Strategic leadership.

N

2. ABILITY TO LEAD

2.1 Establishes clear expectations and goals
to staff and board members.

&N

2.2 Involves others in decision making
process while maintaining responsibility for
final decision

N

2.3 Eamns the respect and gains the
confidence of Town employees

2.4 Exhibits integrity in all dealings.

2.5 Exhibits genuine concem for the
employees

&N &

2.6 Eams the respect and confidence of the
community.

2.7 Conducts self with a high degree of
professionalism.

N N

2.8 Resists pressure from all sources to take
inappropriate actions he/she considers
detrimental to the town, board, residents, and
employees.

&

2.9 1Is politically aware but remains ethically
bound, professional, and non-partisan,

N 1 S oo
N
U O Ouoog ot oooOd

OO0 Oo0O0O0oOooOoO0n0Oo oOdiodd
L O A 6 o

N



3. ABILITY TO COMMUNICATE

3.1 Consistently communicates thoughtfully,
clearly, and thoroughly.

3.2 Exhibits adequate verbal ability.

3.3 Uses appropriate illustrations and examples.

3.4 Shows communicative adaptability to
diverse audiences.

3.5 Recognizes and exhibits non-verbal
communications.

3.6 Develops proactive relations with the
medin.

3.7 Permits u free flow of information to Board
members from Town Mimager's office when
board members need to make decisions.

4. ABILITY TO MAKE DECISIONS

4.1 Collects adequate information before
making decisions

4.2 Uses reliable sources of information,

' 4.3 Does not delay important decisions nor

allow pressure to cause impulsive decisions,

4.4 Explains reasons for decisions to the

. persons affected.

4.5 Delegates decision making wherever
appropriate.

4.6 Understands the importance of timing to

. decision making.

4.7 Selects the best candidates for positions

4.8 Uses authority wisely and equitably,

4.9 Attempts to mainlain an objective view
when solving problems.

4,10 Has a working knowledge of Tennessce
Municipal laws and applics it in decision
making,.

4,11 Seeks and follows the advice of the Town
Attomey and Board, where appropriate, when
differences of opinion exist regarding important
decisions.

4.12 Gives employees an opportunity to differ

with his/her proposals and to submit alternatives.

4.13 Decision making is transparent with staff
accountability clearly defined.

S. RESPONSIVENESS TO OTHERS

5,1 Exhibits empathy when dealing with others.

5.2 Inclined toward praising others,

5.3 Reacts to mistakes with patience.

5.4 Corrects individuals in private.

1
Does Not Mcet
Expcctations

O O0|0/0|0 0

OO0O0O0 OO0 O Oooooooooog

2
Improvement
Needed

(N O Y

| 1 5 O o o i o

3
Meets
Expectations

N A O Y

o0 OO0 0O O0o0o0oooOobodgod

4
Excceds
Expectations

NENEEANA

N

N &

NENREE ©

N X

N &

NENEN

5
Outstanding
Performance

I A I I

oo OO 0O O00oO0Ooddfdodof



- with subordinates.

5.9 Ts fair in his/her dealings with employees

' 6.5 Promotes an ethical working environment

' 7.3 Shows flexibility without losing direction,

. them at the best level possible.

¢ changes as nccessary in policies and procedures.

| 85 Respects the policy-making authority and
. responsibility of the Board

1 2
Docs Not Meet Improvement
Expectations Needed

5.5 Friendly and open-minded in meeting
situations.

5.6 Steady and even-tempered but not self-
efficing under severe eriticism,

5.7 Coordinates and cooperates well with staff.

5.8 Is courteous, honorable and fair in dealings

5.10 Dues not give special treatment to some
manngers while ignormg others.

I

6. ABILITY TO MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE WORK CLIMATE
6.1 Promotes good motivational techniques.

6.2 Allocates resources impartially and
effectively.

6.3 Recognizes the achievements of employees,

6.4 Recognizes the importance of learning
opportunities.
free from conflicts of interest.

6.6 Encourages an atmosphere conducive to
productivity.

7. CREATIVITY

7.1 Demonstrates innovation in solving
problems.

7.2 Exhibits resourcefulness and ingenuity.

7.4 Encourages creative problem solving by
staff.

OOO0O0 OOoOoOoon

g

8. IMPLEMENTATION OF BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

8.1 Knows Town policies and implements

82 Assumes responsibility for requesting

83 Expresses thoughts and opinions on policy-
making appropriately

84 Supports and exceiites policy decisions as
finplized by the Board.

I I I A 0 A O

9. SUPERVISION AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT
9.1 Encourages the professional growth of staff.

9.2 Assists staff in setting objcctives and in
achieving thosc objectives,

9.3 Understands the relationship of goal setting
to improve performance.

o o 5 o 5 o o

I

9.4 Uses performance cvaluation tools
appropriately.

3
Mects
Expectations

1 1 O

4
Excceds
Expectatons

NENAANE

NANNNANN

N

NN

N

B &

ENNENUN

EEENHSEN

5
Outstanding
Performance

o € A o o o o



1 2 3 4 5
Does Not Meet Improvement Meets Exceeds Outstanding
Expectations Needed Expectations Lxpectations Performance

9.5 Shows honesty in evaluations by identifying
i areas of weakness as well as areas of strength.

9.6 Exhibits interest in the welfare of
individuals and work groups.

9.7 Supports competent staff for promotion
whenever appropriate,

9.8 Recognizes the importance of good
© employee morale.

RNENN N

9.9 Gives all employees opportunity for
recognition,

10. PHYSICAL AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

10.1 Carefully prepares Town budget.

10.2 Controls budget to maximize the use of

! resources available.

© 10,3 Coordinates objectives and priorities with
resource allocation.
10.4 Understands fiscal situations generally.

| 10,5 Requests appropriate preventative

maintenance and building renewal plans.
10.6 Manages staff effectively in maintaining
public buildings and grounds,

| 10.7 Sets a good example of fiscal restraint

10,8 Shows a capacity for knowing where funds
i should be allocated

N e I 0y
0 o A o 0 |
N0 o i o
OO0 Ood OoOooaood

RNAENANANANNENE

' 10.9 Prepares a realistic budget and keeps
spending limits within the budget.

OVERALL RATING SCORE: (max. 385 = 100%) - 0
20 Section 01 Ability to Manage (05 sections, max. 25) 308 o 80 /0

36 Section 02 Ability to Lead (09 sections, max. 45)

28 Section 03 Ability to Communicate (07 sections, max. 33)

52 Section 04 Ability to Make Decisions (13 sections, max. 65)

40 Section 05 Responsiveness to Others (10 sections, max. 50)

24 Section 06 Ability to Maintain an Effective Work Climate (06 sections, max. 30)

16 Section 07 Creativity (04 sections, max. 20)

20 Section 08 Implementation of Board Policies and Procedures (05 sections, max. 25)
36 Section 09 Supervision and Staff Development (09 sections, max. 43)

36 Section 10 Physical and Financial Resources (09 sections, max. 45)
OVERALL EVALUATION OBSERVATIONS & IMPRESSIONS

Alderman Cross "Overall | believe that his duties as town manager have met and been satisfactory
for the town and the board-He has showed that he understands and is very helpful to answering any
and all questions ask of him. He is a great asset to the board of Mount Carmel and town."




ANNUAL EVALUATION OF TOWN MANAGER
Management, Leadership, and Executive Skills

Comments
Please provide specific cxamples which serve as the basis for any “Does Not Meet Expectations” (1) or “Outstanding
Performance” (5) ratings on the preceding items.

1. Ability to Manage

Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”

Alderman Shugart, "Mr. Stables has shown a great ability to manage not only the staff members but the board members"

2. Ability to Lead

Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”

3. Ability to Communicate

Mayor Gibson, "When working remote or out of lhe office for the day, communicating that to city hall would be beneficial so everyone is on the same page.”

Alderman Patrick, “outstanding"”

4. Ability to Make Decisions

Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”

5. Responsiveness to Others
Alderman Patrick, "outstanding"

6. Ability to Maintain an Effective Work Climate

Alderman Patrick "outslanding”

7. Creativity
Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”

8. Implementation of Commission Policies and Procedures.
Alderman Patrick, “outstanding”

9. Supervision and Staff Development
Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”

10. Physical and Financial Resources
Alderman Patrick, "outstanding”




%S'18 | %6'9L %0°08 %0°00T %8°I8 %S"S9 %LV8 g8e
145 96¢ 80¢€ S8€ S1€ [A:14 9ce 1e101 mey
%S'18 | %8'LL %16  %0°00T  %0°08 %0°09 %0°08 sv
LE S€ 1A% =174 9¢€ Le 9€ 0T uonoes
%v°'08 | %0°08 %T'TL %0°00T %0°08 %0°09 %1°16 14
9€ 9¢ ce 174 9¢ LT v 6 Uojjoags
%E'ES | %0°08 %088 %0001 %0°08 %009 %0°C6 T4
x4 0¢ [44 14 0c ST €¢ & uonass
%8°08 | %0°08 %0°'68  %0°00T  %0°08 %009 %008 74
91 9T LT 0¢ 91 cl 91 £ uonoies
%C°LL | %LIL %0°0L %0°00T %0°08 %0709 %L 9L o€
€¢ €¢ 1¢ 0€ ve 8T €¢ g uonass
%E'18 | %0'9L %0°08 %0°00T %0°08 %0°¢9 %0°06 0§
144 8¢ ov 0S or 1€ 174 G uonass
%C6L | %S'8L %8€EL %0°00T %0°08 %1°€9 %0°08 69
[A*] 1S 14 59 [42] 114 [4°] v uohoss
%P'c8 | %L'LL %6'C8 %0001 %6°C8 %E'vL %L LL 1
6¢ LC 6¢ SE 6¢ 9¢ Le £ uonoes
%V°L8 | %9°SL %Y'v8  %0°00T  %6°88 %008 %9°G6 514
6€ 14 8¢ 174 ov 9¢ 1514 ¢ uofdss
%E'18 | %0'Y9 %008 %0°00T %0°88 %0°9L %008 214
114 9T 0¢ S¢ (44 61 0¢C I uonoss
ne 129s SS0ID yooisurg  uesnys Natned aleg uosqra




Sunew uo1s100p ul U sorjdde pue sme| [ed1oTUNA] 93559UUI T, JO 95Pa|mou Sunjiom B SeH
swojqord SUIAJOS Uaym MaTA 9A1399(qO Ue urejurew O} sidueyy

Ajqennbs pue Kjesim ALioyine sas(y

suonsod J0J SSJePIPUED 153 31J} S103[2S

Suryew uoIs199p 0} Sutwn Jo 9ouepoduwll Y] SPURISISPU()

oerrdoidde JoAsraym SuiyBul UOISIHAP Sa1eZje(]

Pa10ayJe suosiad oy} 0] SUOISIOIP JOJ SuOseal surejdxy

SuoIS1o9p SAIs|ndwr asnes 0} 91nssad MOJJe JOU SUOISIdAP JueHoduIl AB[Ip 10U $30(
UOIJBLIIOJU] JO S90INOS S[qeIal $3s(]

"SUOISIOOP FUDBW 210J2q UOHBULIOJUT jenbape §199]{0)

suojstoaq ayep 03 ANqy

SUOISIOSP 9B O} PISU SIOQUISW PIBO] USYM 301JO § JOFBURIA UMO ], WO SIIQUIdW PIBOE 0] UOTJBULIOJUT JO MO[ 9] € SPULId]
RIPSW 9} M sToIje]al 2anoeoid sdojaaag

SUOIJBOTUNWILIO) [8GIIA-UOU S)IQIYXD PUB SIZIUT00Y

SIOUSIPNE 9SIAAIP 0) AJI[1qeidepe SANEUNUIIOS SMOYS

sojdwexa pue suonensnj ajetidordde sasn

AYI[Iqe [eqIoA ojenbope sHqIYXg

A[ySnoloyy pus “A[Iea|o “AJNAYSNoY} SAIBIIUNWIIOD A[JUI]ISISUOD)

a1eagunILIo o} AyNqy

uesied-uou pue ‘feuorssajold ‘punoq AJ[eoIyid suretal nq sreme Afreontjod sy
s32£01dwa pue ‘S)uspIsSaI ‘pIeOq ‘UMO} 3} O} [BIUSUWILIIAP SIOPISUOI AYs/aY suonse syeurdorddeur sxe) 03 $391N0S {8 WOL aimssaxd SISISY
‘wsijeuolsssyoid Jo 22135p ySiy & yym J[3s sponpuo)

AJJUnuIos 9y} JO S0USPIFUOD pue J0adsal o sureq

ssa4K0]dwe oy} JOJ WISOUOD UINUST SUQIYXT

sguifeap jfe ur AJLZojul spquyxy

$9240jdwa UMOT, JO 22USPIJUOD J} Suled pue Joadsal sy sureq

"UoISIoap [eur 03 ANIqrsuodsal SuTUIeIUTeUr [IYM $S3201d SUDJRW UOISIAP Ul SISYIO SIAJOAU]
SI19qISW pIeoq pue Jjels 0} S[eos pue suore1oadxa Iea[o SSUSI[qeIsH

pea7 o1 Aungy

diysiapea) 9j8a3ens 1o} awiy moye 01 sendosdde se saredajeq

suononnsul Suing 81043q Jjem saledaid

suofe)al 99A0)dwa Jo FuIpuULISIBPUN SMOYS

uoRezIuesio 0 J0.3U03 SUBIUIeH

y8noayr-moyoy pue gusziuedio ‘Buiuueld uj 8ousadwod SUqIyx3

adeuely o] Aynqy

GZ0Z USULIBPY PUe 10AB JO pIROg DA11I91100 aY) WOI) S3109S U0NEN AT 198eue)) umo) aSeIany

oty
60’7
80t
L0V
90V
SO'v
Yoy
€0’y
[A\h74
107

JARY
90’
S0'€
70°€
€0’¢
c0'e
10°€

60'¢
80°C
L0°¢C
90¢
S0°¢
¥0°¢C
€0'¢
[A0ré4
10°C

GO'T
POl
€01
co'1
10T

ﬁl‘ﬁ'ﬁ'ﬂ'ﬁ'ﬁ‘ﬂ‘ﬂ'd‘ﬁ'mﬁ'mmm#Q#######Hﬁ'ﬂﬁ‘ﬁ‘ﬁ‘#?#ﬂﬂ




1SuanS JO SeaIL SB [[oM SB SSIUNEaM JO Seare SulAJTjuapl AQ SUOLBNIBAS Ul A1SSUOY SMOUS
Aarendosdde sjo01 uorieneAs soueunofad sasn)

soueunojlad aaoidwi o3 Suies 803 Jo diysuorzelal oyl SpueIsIapu}
$9A1105(q0 9501} SUTASIYIE UI PUB SIANO2[qO FUINSS UT JJBIS SISISSY
"JJels Jo ypmois feuoisssjoid oy safemosug

1wswdolansq yeis pue uojsiniadng

pieog a1 Jo Ajiqisuodsal pue Auoyne Supjew-4aijod oy s)oedsay
pIeog o3 Aq pazijeuly se suors1oap Aotjod saynoaxs pue spoddng
Kareudordde Sunyew-£o1jod uo suorurdo pue syy8noy) sassardxg
sa1npadold pue ssiorjod ul Aressaoau se safueyo Sunsonbai oy Anjiqisuodsss sawnssy
a1qissod [aaay 352q 2yl 16 woy) sjuswjdunr pue saroljod UMOT, SMOUY]
$8JNPadoid pue saidijod pieog Jo uoneluaw)diuf

‘Jre1s Aq Surajos wia[qod sAneaId safemoouy

uoreaIIp Suisof oYM KIJIQIXS[J SMOYS

Annuagul pue SSOUNII0IN0SAT SHQIYXT

swa[qo3d SUTAJOS Ul UOIJRAOUUI SOJRXSUOWA(]

Aunnear)

AyAponpord 01 2A1ONPU0d a1oydsow)e ue sefeinosug

1S3133UL JO S}OT[FUOD WIOLJ 99J] JUSWUONAUS SUDIOM [BIIY)0 U SAI0W0I]
sanunoddo Surures| o uspodur 2) SSZIUS029Y

$20401dwId JO SJUSUIAIYOIR Y SIZIUF093Y

A[9A1)93YJ5 pue Ajferyeduur $90In0Sa SJRIO[Y

sanbiuyo9) [RUOHEANIOW POOS SAOWOILJ

218w JIOM 9A1343 Ue ueulel o1 ANqy

s1ay30 SuriousI o[iyMm S1oZeuUew SWOS 0 JusUIeal) [B199dSs 9A13 J0U S30(]
sasAordwa ynm sSuieap 19y/Siy ul ey sy

SOJEUIPIOQNS YIm SSUI[eap Ul Jig) pue 9jqeIouoy ‘snospnos S|

‘J3eIS yim [[om sareradoos pue sareUlpIo0))

WSIONLID 319A3S Jopun SuIoBY-}19S 10U INq PaIodwial-usad pue Apeals
suonenis Supeow uy papurw-uado pue Kjpuatig

a1eAld UT S[ENPIAIPUT $1021L100)

aouarjed ypm sade)siw 0} spoey

sJoyo 3uisterd premo) pautou]

siayo yum Sulfesp usym Aypedwe spqiyxg

s1ay)0 0} ssauanjsuodsay

pauIjap Apreajo A)11qeIunoode Jels Y jusledsuel) si Suljew uoIsroa((

saAneuIs)e J1uuqns 0) pue sfesodoxd 1oy sty yim 1a331p 03 Ajunpoddo ue saskordws saAln)

SuoIS109p Juepodur Jurpredal 1sixa uoruido Jo seousIsyIp usym ‘o)errdordde sroym ‘preog pue ASWIONY UMO], U] JO S0IAPR O] SMO[[0] PUR §}93§

S0'6
¥0'6
€0'6
20’6
106

S0'8
¥0'8
€0'8
c0'8
10'8

v0'L
€0°L
0L
1072

90’9
S0'9
70’9
€0'9
¢0'9
109

oT's
60°S
80°S
L0'S
90°'S
G0'S
P0'S
€0'S
[A00]
10°'S

15498 2
[4% 4
Ty

vvaIvvvqﬁquvﬁv#vv#vH¢v<vHv¢vv#vvvvv



"Pa1eso[Ie 2q pinoys spuny a1ogm Suimorry 103 Aroeded B smoys
"PajRoO[IE 3q P[NOYS SPUNJ AISYM Surmowy] JoJ Ayoeded B SMoyg
JurenSal [BoSIY JO a[durexa poo3 e $19§

spunois pue sgurpying a1jqnd Suturejurew Ul AJSANSAL9 Jjels soSeUBIA
sue]d [emaual Suiping pus soususjuewW dAalEIUOARId S1eudoidde sysanbay
Ajre1ousd suonenyis [BSY SpULISIOpUN

UOI1BOO[[E 90IN0SAI (PIM SAIHIOLId PuB SIANA(GO SATBUIPIOO))
9jqe[IBAR S30INOSAI JO ASh AN SZIWIXeW 0} 183pnq s[onuo)

198pnq umo], saredaid Ajjnyore))

$921n0S3Y jejoueuld pue jesishyd

uonugooar 10 Ayrunpjoddo seafoduwo e s9AID

areIow aakojdurs pood Jo souepodwr ayy sazZiugoosy

sreudoxdde 1sasusym uonjowoid 103 Jye3s Jusjedwios spoddng

sdnoI3 ysom pue S[ENpIAIPUL JO ATBJ[3M Y} UI }SAINUT SUQIUXT

60'0T
80°01
L0°0T
90°01
S0'01
001
€001
¢0'0T
1007

01
60'6
80'6
L0°6
90’6

ﬁ‘#ﬁ‘ﬁ‘ﬁ'ﬁ‘ﬁ‘ﬁ'ﬁ‘ﬁ'ﬁ'#ﬁ'



Ty 0e 0§
8¢ 0¢ 0%
L€ 0€ 0§
oy 0¢ 0%
8¢ 0¢ 0§
Ty 0 0§
oy 0€ 0%
8'c 0¢ 0%
Ty 0¢ 0%
oy 0¢€ 0§
o0y T& 0%
ey 0V 0%
ge  0¢ 0§
ge 0¢ 0§
er 0¥ 0§
ey 0OV 0%
ey Oov 06
Ty oY 0§
v L€ 0%
ey 0¢ 0§
Sy OV 06
Sy 0v 06
gy Oy 0§
ey ov 0§
gy 0€¢ 06
Ty 0¢ 0§
ey 0¢ 06
Ty 0¥y 0§
v 8¢ 0§
oy 0¢ 06
ey 0% 06
oy 0¢ 0§

%0'00T 19

%18 %00Z 99 G
%G'T9 09T
%S'8T 9€ €

%0°00T ¥¥T
._ o &
%LS9 T6 ¥

%Y1t ¢l ¢

%988

%0°00T 861

%9°G6 ESH g
%I'IS 6
%y 9 ¢

%0001 <0t

%008 %WO'8Z G S vy 0¢ 09
%025 ¢S Vv 8¢ 0¢ 0§
%0'0¢ ST €

v ¢¢€ 09
OAY  mo7  USIH




%0°00T S8T
%008 % oL
%68y 88
%00 LT

%0°00T €0T

%008 % o

%087 8P

I

%0°0c ST

%0°00T 08
%0°08 % 0C
%009 8y
%0°0C ¢T

%0'00T 8TT
%E'ECL %00 0F€
%EES ¥9
%L'9C ¥C

%0°00T v0¢C
%0'9L %0¢CE 08
%07y 88

%0vc 9¢ €

S0°6
¥0'6
€06
¢0'6
106

508
70°8
€08
c0'8
10°8

0L
€0'L
c0’L
10°L

909
S0'9
¥0'9
€0'9
0’9
109

0T'S
60'S
80°S
L0°S
90'G
S0'S
¥0°'S
O]
¢0'S
10°S

15 98 4
[4%%
A%

€Y
8¢
8¢
8¢
8¢
oYy
ov
15074
v
oV
19074
(A7
oy
[A%
oy
0v
0y
8¢
0y
8'¢
8¢
8¢
8¢
6'€
ov
oy
ov
8¢
Sy
1904
1994
oy
L€
oY
v
8¢
8¢
[

o€
o€
¢
0¢
0€
0¢
0¢
0¢€
o€
0¢
o€
0'c
o€
0€
o€
0¢
0°¢
0¢
0€¢
0¢
0¢
0€
o€
0°¢
o€
0¢
0¢
0¢
0y
o€
)
0¢
0¢
o€
1€
0€
o€
0¢

0'g
0'g
0'S
0'S
0's
0°'S
09
0's
0§
0'S
0'g
0's
0’9
0’9
0'g
0’
0'S
0's
0§
0'S
0°S
0'S
0'g
0's
0'S
0§
0'S
0'S
0'S
0'g
0'S
0's
0'g
0'S
0'S
0'S
0'g
0'S



%001 G8¢€

%E'YS 968 v 60T 3 G8€/80¢ %008
%78 €1 € 1L W

TIVH3A0 G8E/L'ETE %S'18
L'ETE

60°0T Ty 0€ 06

80°0T ov 0€ 06

£0°0T v 0€ 0%

9001 or 0€ 06

50°0T ge 0€ 06

00T v 0€ 06

%0°00T 641 1%17% €001 oy (R 0°'S

%8 LL Y% S § 6 O zo'0T v 0€ 06

%8'LS V0T ¥ 9T 3 10°0T v 0€ 0§

%ZZC 0E € 0T W o1 Iv 0€ 0%

. 606 o 0€ 0%

80°6 ey 0€ 06

L0'6 oy 0€ 06

906 ¢y 0t 0§



Attachment 2
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF JAMES STABLES

as

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR/MANAGER

Section 1: Term

This agreement shall remain in force and effect until such time as it is terminated
pursuant to the provisions contained herein.

Section 2: Duties and Authority
The Employer agrees to employ James Stables as Town Administrator-Town Manager to
perform the functions and duties specified in the Charter of the Town of Mount Carmel,
and by the Municipal Code of the Town of Mount Carmel, including those duties
delegated to the Town Administrator as outlined in Ordinance No.: 17-463, and to
perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Board of Mayor
and Aldermen may from time-to- time assign.

Section 3: Hours of Work, Leave, and Compensation

The Employee shall work a minimum of 40 hours per week including sick leave,
holidays, vacation, etc., with such hours to be set by the Employee. The Employer agrees
to continue allowing accrual of the following leave benefits contained within the Town
of Mount Carmel Personnel Policies & Procedures effective 07/01/2025. Specifically,
sick leave at the rate identified in the Personnel Policies and Procedures, Section 4: Leave
Policies, 4.2 Sick Leave, for regular full-time employees, and vacation leave at the 11-15
years of service row, as defined in the Personnel Policies and Procedures, Section 4:
Leave Policies, 4.1 Vacation Leave Table. Additionally, the employee will be granted
executive leave and permitted to utilize it consistently with the executive leave benefit
provided to exempt employees defined in Personnel Policies and Procedures, Section 3:
Classification, Pay, and Fringe Benefits. The Employer agrees to pay the Employee
periodic pro-rated installment payments based on an annual salary of eighty-four
thousand one hundred and twenty-two dollars and ninety cents ($84,122.90). The
periodic installment payment schedule shall be the same schedule as all other employees
of the Employer are paid.

Section 4: Health, Disability, Retirement, Sick Leave, Vacation, and Other Benefits
The Employer agrees to provide, and the Employee shall be entitled to, the same level of
benefits provided to other employees in the Town of Mount Carmel.

Section 5: Separation of Employment and Severance
Termination with or without cause for purpose of this agreement, shall occur when (a)
majority of the governing body votes to terminate the Employee at a duly authorized
public meeting; or (b) the Employer, citizens or Tennessee legislature acts to amend any
provisions of the charter and ordinances pertaining to the role, powers, duties, authority,
responsibilities of the Employee’s position that substantially changes the form of



government; or (c¢) the Employer reduces the base salary, compensation or any other
financial benefit of the Employee, unless it is applied in no greater percentage than the
average reduction of all department heads; or (d) the employee resigns at the suggestion
of a majority of the governing body, whether such request is formal or informal.

A. Termination with Cause — may occur upon a finding that the employee: (a) has
been convicted of a felony or crime involving moral turpitude; or (b) has engaged
in actions deemed by the Employer to be conflicts of interest as defined by State
law or in the Town’s Personnel Rules and Regulations; or (c) has engaged in
actions deemed by the Employer to constitute gross negligence; or (d) has
engaged in conduct or activities deemed by the Employer to be detrimental to the
good name and reputation of the Town of Mount Carmel, provided that the
employee was given written notice of specific allegations of such inappropriate
conduct and that the Employee failed to substantially cure such alleged
deficiencies within thirty (30) days. Should after due process the Employee be
terminated for any reason listed above, Employee will be ineligible for severance.
However, the employee will be eligible for payout of vacation leave time accrued,
at the rate of pay eamned by the employee at the time of their termination of
employment.

B. Termination without Cause — may occur in Tennessee at any time for any reason,
or for no reason without incurring legal liability, with exceptions to the
“EMPLOYMENT-ATWILL” identified on the Tennessee Department of Labor &
Workforce Development website
(https://www.tn.gov/workforce/emplovees/labor-laws/labor-

lawsredirect/employee-rights.html)

C. Voluntary resignation may occur at the Employee’s discretion and must provide a
minimum of a 30-day notice, unless the parties agree otherwise. Severance is not
available for termination with cause or voluntary resignation and shall only apply
when termination without cause is exercised and shall be awarded based on the
schedule listed below.

Service Time Severance

0 to 6 months No Severance

6 to 12 months An amount equal to 1.5 months of salary
12 to 24 months An amount equal to 2.5 months of salary
24 to 36 months An amount equal to 3.5 months of salary
36 months or more An amount equal to 5.5 months of salary

Section 6: Disability
If the Employee is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties
because of sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health for a period of twelve
(12) successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave or family medical leave, and if no
reasonable accommodation exists under which Employee could continue to perform his
duties in the future, the Employer shall have the option to terminate this agreement
subject to the conditions of Section 3.



Section 7: Professional Associations and Conferences
The Employer agrees to pay the cost of the Employee's membership in the Tennessee
Town Management Association (TCMA) and International Town/County Management
Association (ICMA) if the Employee so desires. The Employer will pay for Employee
attendance at annual TCMA conferences and periodic ICMA conferences provided the
Town's budget can reasonably pay such expenses.

Section 8: Amendments
This Agreement may only be amended by the written mutual consent of the Employer
and the Employee.

Section 9: Effective Date and Severability
This Agreement shall become effective on such date as both the Employer and Employee
sign the Agreement. The invalidity or partial invalidity of any portion of this Agreement
will not affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any provision of this
Agreement is held to be invalid the remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full
force and effect as if they have been executed by both parties subsequent to the
expungement or judicial modification of the invalid provision.

John Gibson, Mayor Date
Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee

James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager Date
Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee



MOUNT CARMEL

%/)/ﬁ(:e Ze /Jn?,‘(/ﬂm 1w Aeels

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

DATE: September 25, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION & CONSIDERATION: Memorandum of Understanding

Between U.S. Department of the Army, BAE Systems Ordinance Systems,
Inc. and the Town of Mount Carmel, TN, Firc Department

SUMMARY:

BAE Systems, with a large campus and operational presence abutting the Town,
approached Fire Chief, Mitch Walker and submitted the attached memorandum of
understanding for mutual-aid assistance, when available, in regard to fire rescue services
for your discussion and consideration.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Firc Department-Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

FISCAL IMPACT:

None at this time

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

“MEMORANDUAM OF UNDERTANDING BETWEEN U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY,
BAE SYSTEMS ORDINANCE SYSTEMS, INC. CITY OF MOUNT CARMEL, DIVISION OF
FIRE" (3 PAGES)



MEMORANDUAM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
BAE SYSTEMS ORDNANACE SYSTEMS, INC.
CITY OF MOUNT CARMEL, DIVISION OF FIRE

Gentlemen/Ladies,

In order to provide effective use of available firefighting resources for contro!l of a major
emergency at Holston Army Ammunition Plant, (HSAAP), or in the City of Mount Carmel, the following

proposals are submitted for your consideration.

That a majority of Holston Army Ammunition Plant, (Area B), is in Hawkins County, Tennessee
bordering the City of Mount Carmel.

It is understood that the City of Mount Carmel will in no case be called upon to fight fires in
structures which contain hazardous materials or explosive materials. Calls for city assistance will be
made by HSAAP Commanding Officer, or designated representative, or the Ordnance Systems, Inc.,
(0Sl), Emergency Operations Center, or the OSI Command Post.

Any request on the part of the City of Mount Carmel will be made directly by the Mayor, the
City Manager, the Fire Chief or Deputy Fire Chief. Request for assistance on the part of the City of
Mount Carmel must be approved by the Commanding Officer, (HSAAP), the OSI General Manager or
Senior Fire Services Officer.

It is further understood that the City of Mount Carmel and HSAAP propose to render mutual
assistance to each other whenever practical to do so but they do not guarantee to answer every call
made. The City and HSAAP may choose not to render assistance in civil disturbance situations where
there is a significant danger of physical harm to fire fighters. Assistance may be withdrawn if the plant
or city officials fail to provide adequate protection to fire fighters. Firefighting equipment will not be

used for riot control.

The Senior Officer of each department in charge of firefighting equipment shall for reasons of
safety be authorized to withhold or withdraw any firefighting equipment needed inside the City or
HSAAP limits. In such event, neither will be held responsible to respond to the call of the other. All
responding personnel and equipment will be under the supervision of the Senior Fire Officer in charge

of such equipment.

In consideration of the mutual benefits obtained by each party by this agreement, each party
waives all claims of any kind or nature against the other for compensation or reimbursement for any
loss, damage, personal injury or death occurring as a consequence of the perfarmance of this

agreement.

BAE SYSTEMS.

© BAE Systems



Subject to the above restrictions, the parties will assist each other when called upon in Fighting
Fire, Hazmat, and CBRNE at specified locations on their respective properties by furnishing such fire
fighting, hazmat, and CBRNE equipment, and personnel as compatible with the security and safety of

the City if Mount Carmel and HSAAP.

City of Mount Carmel, Tennessee

BY:

Mayor

City Attorney

MOUNT CARMEL FIRE DEPARTMENT

BY:

Fire Chief

U.S DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
HOLSTON ARMY AMMUNITION PLANT

BY:

Commanding Officer

BAE SYSTEMS, ORDNANCE SYSTEMS INC

BY:

General Manager/Operations

© BAE Systems

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

BAE SYSTEMS



Centerra Group LLC, agrees to provide the necessary support of the Mutual Aid Plan in
accordance with current contract guidelines.

BY:

Fire Chief Date

© BAE Systems BAE SYSTEMS



MOUNT CARMEL

% L lace To pritdowie peeld
/ Vel

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

DATE: September 25, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION & CONSIDERATION: Surplus Fire Department Vehicle

SUMMARY:

The Fire Department requests consideration and approval to surplus the old fire
department ladder truek:

Fehicle Description Tehicle Identification Number Tug No. Mileage  Hours

1998 Picree Dash 75" Aerial {PICTO2S5W 4000461 TN 2809GE 124,596 §.902

This vehicle at 27 years old has more than met its useful and expected life cycle of
approximately 10 to 15 years of front-linc fire rescue service, and 3 to 10 years as a back-up
unit, and is no longer functionally serviceable for effective use in the Town and/or the Fire
Department. Any efforts to repurpose or maintain this vehicle in the Town would be costly
and inefficient.

The Fire Department, if approved to surplus this vehicle, intends to market through a
focused used fire apparatus dealer first, and then other available means if unsuccessful.

Any funds acquired from the sale of this fire apparatus will be placed in the general fund,
and will be made available to the Fire Department to purchase equipment for the newly
acquired ladder truck.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Fire Department-Mitch Walker, Fire Chicf

FISCAL IMPACT:

Unknown currently.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:
None




